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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

=R

Dr. Yang Zhihui (“Dr. Yang"), aged 50, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of Landing International Development Limited (the
“Company”) and has been an executive director of the Company
since 19 July 2013. He is one of the directors and the sole shareholder
of Landing International Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Dr. Yang had been a director of Hubei Landing Holding
Co., Ltd. (shares of which are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 000971) until December 2014 and a director and
general manager of China Dive Company Limited (shares of which
are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300526) until
December 2020. He was awarded with an honorary degree of Doctor
of Philosophy in Business Management at Jeju National University
in March 2017. Dr. Yang has extensive experience in property
development in the People’s Republic of China.

Ms. Chan Mee Sze (“Ms. Chan”), aged 47, has been an executive
director of the Company since 1 September 2018. She holds several
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company (together with
its subsidiaries the “Group”) as well. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Laws from University of London and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from University of Dundee. She is a Chartered
Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and a fellow member
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms. Chan
has extensive experience in corporate administration and corporate
finance. She was an executive director of OCI International Holdings
Limited (shares of which are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock
code: 329) and an independent non-executive director of Mingyuan
Medicare Development Company Limited (shares of which were listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 233) from May
2016 to January 2020.

Mr. Yeung Lo ("Mr. Yeung”), aged 52, has been an executive
director of the Company since 9 January 2020. He currently serves
as a Chief Operation Officer at Jeju Shinhwa World, the flagship
integrated resort project of the Group, which operated and
developed by Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. (“Landing Jeju”,
the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Yeung holds
several directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Group as well. He
graduated from McGill University, Montreal, Canada with Bachelor
Degree of Engineering in Computer. Mr. Yeung served as the Chief
Executive Officer in GONGZI (Macau) Investment Company Limited
from 2018 to early 2019, and earlier as a Senior Vice President
(International Marketing Macau) in Crown Melbourne Limited from
2015 to 2017. He has over 20 years of professional experience in sales
and operations for technology solutions vendors and gaming and
hospitality services providers.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Wong Hoi Po ("Dr. Wong”), aged 45, has been an executive
director of the Company since 3 February 2020. Dr. Wong holds
a Doctoral Degree in Business Administration, a Master’s Degree
of Business Administration in Finance, and a Bachelor's Degree in
Accounting from the United States. He currently serves as a Chief
Financial Officer at Jeju Shinhwa World, the flagship integrated
resort project of the Group, which operated and developed by
Landing Jeju and he previously served as a Senior Vice President at
Landing Jeju from 1 March 2019 to 5 January 2020. Dr. Wong holds
several directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Group as well.
Prior to joining Landing Jeju, he worked as a Chief Financial Officer
at Creative Brilliant Investment Company Limited, Macau from
2016 to 2019. Before 2016, Dr. Wong had worked as an executive
director of finance at Venetian Macau Limited for 10 years. As an
external auditor, he started his finance and accounting career for an
accounting firm in the United States back in 2000. With approximately
20 years of professional and practical experience in the field of
accounting and finance, Dr. Wong also served as a part-time visiting
associate professor at Macau University of Science & Technology
lecturing a number of business administration programs at master's
degree level.

Ms. Pu Shen Chen ("Ms. Pu”), aged 50, has been an executive
director of the Company since 19 February 2020. She is a seasoned
senior business leader with extensive gaming industry experience
in management, operations and marketing to her current role as
the Chief Operation Officer at Landing Casino, which operated by
Landing Entertainment Korea Co., Ltd., the wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and she previously served as an Executive Vice
President at Landing Casino from April 2019 to January 2020. Ms.
Pu holds several directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Group
as well. In 2017 to 2019, she held the chief executive officer position
at a gaming services company. Before that, Ms. Pu's professional
career began her executive positions at MGM Resorts International
and MGM Grand Paradise Limited since 1996. Ms. Pu received
her Bachelor of Science in Hotel Administration from University of
Nevada, Las Vegas.

Mr. Huang Wei (“Mr. Huang”), aged 40, has been an executive
director of the Company since 14 April 2021. He graduated from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with bachelor degree of
International Economics and Trading and obtained a master degree
of Business Administration. Mr. Huang is responsible for the senior
operation and management of hotels and theme parks of the Group.
He holds a directorship in a subsidiary of the Group as well. Mr.
Huang was a director of Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication
Co., Ltd, ShanXi (shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600234) until October 2020. He has over 10
years of experience in finance and travel industries.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Li Chun Kei (“Mr. Li"), aged 38, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 15 January 2020.
Mr. Li graduated from University of Hull, United Kingdom with
Bachelor degree of Law in July 2007. He is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Li has over 10 years of
experience in corporate finance and accounting. He also worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers from 2008 to 2011,

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (“Mr. Shek"), aged 76, has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 14 August
2020. Mr. Shek graduated from the University of Sydney and holds
a Bachelor of Arts Degree and a Diploma in Education. He was
appointed as a Justice of the Peace in 1995 and was awarded the
Silver Bauhinia Star and the Gold Bauhinia Star by the government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the "HKSAR") in
2007 and 2013 respectively. Mr. Shek was a member of the HKSAR
Legislative Council representing the Real Estate and Construction
Functional Constituency from 2000 to 2021. He is a member of the
Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission
Against Corruption, a member of the Court and Council of The
University of Hong Kong and a honorary member of Court of The
Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Currently, Mr. Shek is an executive director of Goldin Financial
Holdings Limited (stock code: 530), being listed public company
in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director
of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (stock code: 1313),
Chuang'’s China Investments Limited (stock code: 298), Chuang's
Consortium International Limited (stock code: 367), Cosmopolitan
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 120), Country Garden
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2007), CSI Properties Limited
(stock code: 497), Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (stock code:
3699), Far East Consortium International Limited (stock code: 35),
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1341), International Alliance Financial Leasing Co., Ltd (stock
code: 1563), ITC Properties Group Limited (stock code: 199), Lai Fung
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1125), Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited (stock code:1212), NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 659)
and Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 617), all being listed
public companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Shek is also an independent
non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited
(the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code:
2778)) and Regal Portfolio Management Limited (the manager of
Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881)), both trusts are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

During the last three years, Mr. Shek was an independent non-
executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
530), Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 47), MTR
Corporation Limited (stock code: 66) and SIM Holdings Limited (stock
code: 880), all being listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Du Peng ("Mr. Du"), aged 40, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 12 March 2021. Mr. Du
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with
a Doctoral degree of marketing in June 2009. He is the Head of
Department of Marketing, the Director of Management Case
Research Center and the Associate Professor of School of Business
and Administration in Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
Mr. Du has over 12 years of experience in marketing consultancy and
training.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
=R EF

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”)
of Landing International Development Limited (the “Company”), |
have the pleasure to report on the financial results, operations and
other aspects of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company is an investment holding company, and during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), the principal activities of the
Group are (i) development and operation of the integrated leisure
and entertainment resort (the “Integrated Resort Development”);
(i) operation of gaming and entertainment facilities (the "Gaming
Business”); and (iii) property development (the “Property

Development”).

The global economy and operating environment have been
severely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020.
Notwithstanding the rollout of vaccination across the countries in
2021, suffering from some new variants such as Delta and Omicron,
global travelling restrictions had yet to be uplifted during the Year.
With no doubt, tourism is among the most affected sectors following
the implementation of a series of travel restrictions and quarantine
control measures under the COVID-19 pandemic. Our major business
in Jeju Island, South Korea, which largely relies on entertainment and
hospitality market conditions, especially the gaming business, has
been inevitably affected.

Financial Results

For the Year, the Group's consolidated revenue was approximately
HK$1,349,996,000 (2020: approximately HK$788,011,000), representing
an increase of approximately 71.3% when compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020. The increase in consolidated revenue was
mainly attributable to (i) the boost in domestic consumption in our
Jeju Shinhwa World under a series of marketing campaigns leading
to the significant increase in revenue generated from integrated
resort segment; and (ii) the increase in residential property sales
activities. During the Year, non-gaming revenue was approximately
HK$1,261,392,000 (2020: approximately HK$601,525,000) while gaming
revenue was approximately HK$88,604,000 (2020: approximately
HK$186,486,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(continued)

Financial Results (continued)

For the Year, the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
was approximately HK$1,055,766,000 (2020: approximately
HK$2,115,001,000). The basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the parent was HK26.84 cents (2020: HK63.28 cents).
The increase in consolidated revenue and the fair value gains of
investment properties for the Year together with the stringent cost
controls in operating expenses, contributed to the decrease of
approximately 50.1% in the consolidated net loss for the Year as
compared to last year.

As at 31 December 2021, the consolidated net asset value of the
Company was approximately HK$8,810,335,000 (2020: approximately
HK$10,446,617,000) and the consolidated net asset value per number
of ordinary shares in issue attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately HK$2.08 (2020: approximately HK$2.97).

OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW
Integrated Resort Development

Jeju Shinhwa World, an integrated resort located in Jeju Island, South
Korea is the core business of the Group developed by Landing Jeju
Development Co., Ltd. (“Landing Jeju”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company.

Jeju Shinhwa World is an iconic world-class resort destination
in Northeast Asia comprising of a selection of premium hotels,
convention & exhibition centre, retail mall, food & beverage outlets,
leisure and entertainment complex, theme park and water park, and
one of the largest foreigners-only casinos in Jeju.

More than 2,000 high-quality guest rooms and suites are available for
bookings including own brand label Landing Resort, five-star rated
Marriott resort, family adventure Shinhwa Resort and full-serviced
Somerset suites in Jeju. The hotels are strategically positioned to
cater to all segments of guests visiting the resort. All hotels in the
resort have consistently ranked high in reviews by the guests and
won multiple commendations from the hospitality industry. The
spectacular view of Jeju's natural horizon distinguishes Jeju Shinhwa
World as the best integrated resort in Northeast Asia.

LETTER FROM THE BOARD
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
R

OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Integrated Resort Development (continued)

Shinhwa Theme Park attracts both domestic and foreign tourists. The
park is themed with Larva characters from a popular local animated
production and offers more than 15 amazing rides and attractions for
children and families including virtual reality games and experiences,
parades and shows on the way. The theme park is also an ideal
venue for large scale events and has been used for New Year's Eve
countdown party, FIFA World Cup soccer event, dinner function for
USPGA golf tournament, etc.

Shinhwa Waterpark is the newest and largest water park in Jeju
with 18,000 square meters of space. It features wave pools, water
slides, rapids, spas, kid pool, and a private cabana area suitable for
visitors of all ages. Together with six restaurants and a Korean-style
jjimjilbang sauna, Shinhwa Waterpark has anchored itself to be the
first-choice water park attraction in Jeju.

Jeju Shinhwa World also houses the most extensive food and
beverage outlets under one roof in Jeju, offering a wide selection
of local and international cuisines including the most authentic
Cantonese restaurant well-liked by both tourists and local residents
which is helmed by an award-winning master chef. Poolside bar by
Shinhwa Resort’s signature Sky Pool offers a romantic view of Jeju
island’s iconic Oreum ridge lines and our sports pub Café Vetro
furnish both entertainment and sports games.

The MICE business capitalising on the largest column-free ballroom in
Jeju and the adjacent conference room facilities, Landing Convention
Centre in Jeju Shinhwa World has been the host venue for many high
profile regional and international events and this is an ideal place for
various conferences. In the fourth quarter of 2021, Shinsegae Simon
Jeju Premium Center was opened in the central Jeju Shinhwa World,
which offer one-stop healing shopping from luxury to overseas/
domestic fashion, golf, kids and cosmetics, attracting both domestic
and foreign tourists.
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OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Integrated Resort Development (continued)

In response to the decreasing number of cross-border travellers,
during the Year, we continued to target domestic market by offering
special staycation packages and promotion events bundled with
our accommodation, water and theme parks as well as food and
beverage. In order to boost market awareness and competitiveness, a
wide variety of attraction events such as lighting show with fireworks,
kids" activities programs and local merchant night market with local
craft artists were launched to enrich our customer experience. We
believed that all those marketing campaigns were the keys to our
sustainable growth in sales, in terms of both the occupancy rate and
revenue compared to 2020.

For the Year, Jeju Shinhwa World generated segment revenue of
approximately HK$856,406,000 (2020: approximately HK$504,233,000),
which mainly derived from its hotels, MICE events, food and
beverage services, attraction theme parks and merchandise sales as
well as leases of retail spaces in the resort, representing a remarkable
increase of approximately 70% as compared with 2020. Segment loss
of the Integrated Resort Development for the Year was approximately
HK$420,736,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,280,324,000).

Gaming Business

Landing Casino, being an integral part of Jeju Shinhwa World, is one
of the largest foreigners-only casinos in South Korea with 150 gaming
tables, 210 slot machines and electronic table games with exclusive
gaming area of approximately 5,500 square meters.

Under a series of travel restrictions and quarantine control measures,
foreigner visitation from China and elsewhere to Jeju had dropped
significantly in 2021 and remained substantially below pre-COVID-19
levels. Therefore, the performance of gaming business remained
sluggish during the Year.

For the Year, Landing Casino recorded net revenue of approximately
HK$88,604,000 (2020: approximately HK$186,486,000) and segment
loss from the gaming business was approximately HK$671,820,000
(2020: approximately HK$509,375,000).

Impairment of approximately HK$398,449,000 (2020: approximately
HK$5,438,000 on goodwill and approximately HK$294,462,000 on
intangible assets) was made on the relevant intangible assets of the
business of Landing Casino for the Year based on the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of Gaming Business which
has been determined by value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections of financial budgets and referencing to the segment
performance. However, no impairment was recorded on the relevant
property, plant and equipment after the assessment.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
R

OPERATION AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development

With the increasing number of domestic visitors in Jeju Shinhwa
World, the growth momentum has been strengthened by the sales
and marketing activities for selling the resort condominiums and villas
in zone R of Jeju Shinhwa World during the Year.

For the Year, substantial increases in both the revenue and profit
derived from sales of residential property were recorded. Revenue
generated from sales of residential properties amounted to
approximately HK$404,986,000 (2020: approximately HK$97,292,000)
and segment profit of approximately HK$207,391,000 (2020:
approximately HK$8,725,000) was recorded in the Property
Development segment.

As of 31 December 2021, approximately HK$609,974,000 (2020:
approximately HK$875,637,000) was classified as completed
properties for sale.

OUTLOOK

Tourism is considered as one of the sectors most affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic. The emergence of new strains and highly
transmissible variant threaten renewed outbreaks. However, the
massive vaccination campaign in many countries has eased the
impact to a certain extent. Notwithstanding some countries have
lifted their quarantine and travel restriction measures gradually, we
believe that the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to cause significant
impact on our business in 2022. Given the uncertainties as to when
the new variants of COVID-19 will be under control and the business
impact thereof will remain challenging, we will continue to work
diligently to react and adapt to the circumstances and mitigate the
unprecedented impact on our business during this difficult period of
time.

Whilst some travel restrictions across different countries remain
in force, we have adopted a cautious approach in new business
developments as well as in renovation and upgrade of various
facilities within Jeju Shinhwa World. The status of the upgrade was
underway progressively although not aggressively in the second half
of 2021. It is expected that all those facility improvements will enable
the Group to capture the recovery of overseas demands and to
sustain its market share.
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OUTLOOK (continued)

Under the lockdown and travel restrictions in the Philippines, the
Group has yet to identify another suitable lease of land to develop
an integrated resort in the Philippines for satisfying the requirements
of the provisional license. As at the date of this report, the Group is
still in the course of exploring the issue with Philippine Amusement
and Gaming Corporation ("PAGCOR") under the travel restrictions.
Due to the unprecedented social and economic impacts caused
by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company will continue to adopt a
cautious approach to evaluate the feasibility of relevant lease of land
and development should opportunities arise and to negotiate with
PAGCOR for a mutually acceptable solution.

Recently, some major Asian economies, including South Korea,
Singapore and Hong Kong, have experienced a drastic surge
in coronavirus cases as the highly infectious Omicron variant
continues to tear through the region. Moreover, owing to the recent
devastating attack on Ukraine by Russia, the western countries are
targeting Russia’s economy, financial institutions and individuals.
Notwithstanding some foreign countries have already eased their
travel restrictions, those issues have jeopardized the recovery of
global economy. Taking into consideration such macro factors, the
Company aims at maintaining a healthy liquidity position as its priority
and stays cautious in capital commitments and future development
and investment plans.

In 2022, the Company will continue to progress maintenance,
renovation and upgrade of facilities in Jeju Shinhwa World gradually
and the Group will also re-evaluate the construction plan of a new
hotel in Jeju Shinhwa World. In addition, the Company will continue
to evaluate the funding needs and the financial position of the Group
from time to time and will also explore fund raising and financing
facilities if and when opportunities arise. Although Hong Kong is
facing a panic challenge due to the ripple effect of Omicron recently,
by the increasing vaccination rate and the easing of travel restrictions
around the world, the Company is expecting a return to normalcy and
global market recovery in the near future.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
R

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is aware that it is exposed to various risks, including

general risk factors applied to the overall market and specific risk

factors applied to our respective business segments. There are risk

management and internal control systems established to ensure that

significant risks which may adversely affect the implementation of the

Group's business strategy and performance are identified, reported,

monitored, and managed on a continuous basis. Principal risks and

uncertainties of the Group include:

Integrated Resort Development

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

market conditions and trends in the tourism industry: the
general market conditions and prospects of the global economy
will affect the growth and profitability of the tourism industry in
South Korea. Other factors can influence the tourism industry as
well, such as international tourism patterns, currency fluctuations
and the favourability of government policies. Any recession
in the global economy, deflation or change in government
policies, or deterioration in the tourism industry in South Korea
would adversely affect Jeju Shinhwa World's operations and
profitabilities;

shortage of labour and rising labour costs: the service industry
is generally labour intensive and the Group may encounter
difficulties staffing the operations. The operations in Jeju
Shinhwa World requires large number of labour from various
professions with specific skills. Significant increase in the costs
of labour would increase the Group's staff costs and adversely
affect the Group's profitability; and

project cost overruns and delays: the construction progress
may be affected by unforeseeable factors such as weather
interference, natural disasters, or shortages of building materials
or skilled labour. Contractors may be responsible for the
additional costs of delays. If the contractors are not able to fulfill
their obligations, the Group may be required to bear additional
project costs.

the outbreak of infectious disease (i.e. COVID-19) may have a
severe impact on the visitation of the Group's attractions and
thereby affect the operations performance of the Company.
The Group's integrated resort development, which is heavily
dependent on entertainment and hospitality market condition,
will be inevitably affected.

F A B B A W R

AEBANBHEAARZRERE  BREANE
EBMHE s —RARERMEARERMEBES
DHZBFERBRAER - ZFIERLREREER
NESESIEGIE - ARERAIISERR - EH - B
RREEARHEAREEHREEEREBRD
NEEBzBERRAR AEEZEE2RERTH
BAR=EE

REERERR

() IREFXNTRALEBE @ 2REHENEED
REASHTEBRIRERNRIIERR
BFKF - ERRMA R EMRESE
NS i AR S - B RO B B F R
BE - 2REBEHREMRR - BEEMR
X T IR R 5 B o R 2 iR 20 SR I i O
MAEE RN EERBNENFRIFE
&

() BTERRBBRALR  BHTREE
MEBRSBEED - AR BTER
BRIHTREHRE - BB EERE
e ST
T $IRAKE A BREARENA
TR - W ARERFISE D BRTHY
2 R

(i) EBEAABXRER : TREZAIREXE
FHEENERFE  fIWRRTE X
K BEMB RN TR - AEH
A BEZR AR IERR MO RRIP KR © fl A BB
EEITHEMT  AEEREAAERINA
BACA -

(iv) ERmEEEIFLERRS)XEHARE
ERENTXEENBRELE  #MTE
ARBEERE - AEENGEERNE
RIRAEE FEURMRE RBEZETR -
PRI L 42 AT s

& T T|| B 488
SXHTE -

14

Landing International Development Limited & % B B 58 f A FiL A ]



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Gaming Business

)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

winnings of players in casino could exceed casino’s winnings:
due to an inherent risk in the gaming industry, a casino does not
have full control over its win-rates or those of the players. If the
win-rates of players exceed those of the casino, the Group may
record a loss from gaming operations, which could materially
and adversely affect the Group's business, cash flow, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;

theoretical win rates for casino operations depend on various
factors, some beyond its control: in addition to the element of
chance, theoretical win rates are also affected by other factors,
including players’ skill and experience, the mix of games played,
the financial resources of players, the spread of table limits, the
volume of bets played and the amount of time players spend
on gambling. These factors, alone or in combination, may
negatively impact the casino’s win rates, which may materially
and adversely affect the Group's business, cash flow, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects;

risk of fraud or cheating by gaming patrons: players in the
casino may commit fraud or attempt to cheat at times in
collusion with employees of the casino in order to increase
their winnings. Failure to discover such schemes in a timely
manner could result in losses in gaming operations. In addition,
negative publicity arising from such schemes could have a
material and adverse impact on the Group's reputation, which
may further adversely affect the Company'’s business, cash flow,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects;

anti-money laundering policies and compliances with applicable
anti-money laundering laws may not be sufficient in preventing
money laundering activities at the casino: the casino gaming
industry is prone to potential money laundering and other
illegal activities and the casino may not be able to completely
prevent money laundering and other illegal activities from
occurring within its casino premises; and

the outbreak of infectious disease (i.e. COVID-19) may have
a severe impact on the number of patrons of the Group's
foreigner-only casino, which is heavily rely on tourism industry
in South Korea. The operation and profitability will therefore be
inevitably affected.
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
R

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Property Development

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

changes in government regulations and policies: the local
governments may periodically revise relevant regulations and
policies in property development according to the latest market
development in real estate, and this will significantly affect the
Group's development plans, budgets and strategies;

environmental risk: the potential liability for environmental
problems could result in substantial costs due to a variety of
laws and regulations concerning the protection for health and
the environment; and

volatile real estate prices: real estate demands and prices are
sensitive to various economic and social factors, for example,
the state of the economy, bank interest rates, the size of the
population and the prevailing immigration policy. The real
estate prices could be volatile due to these factors, in turn
affecting the Group's turnover, budget and operation.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2021,

the Group had non-current assets

of approximately HK$9,650,159,000 (2020: approximately
HK$11,511,550,000) and net current liabilities of approximately
HK$781,906,000 (2020: net current assets of approximately
HK$720,048,000). The current ratio, expressed as the ratio of the
current assets over the current liabilities, was 0.7 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: 1.5). The decrease in the current ratio is mainly due to the
reclassification of the bank borrowing, which will be expired in 2022,

from non-current liability to current liability as at 31 December 2021.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
(continued)

For the Year, the impairment of trade and other receivables (net)
amounted to approximately HK$782,000 (2020: approximately
HK$52,815,000). The provisions mainly consisted of overdue
receivables with long aging periods. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group had prepayments, trade and other receivables of
approximately HK$188,725,000 (2020: approximately HK$425,093,000).
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$820,917,000, with approximately HK$392,137,000,
HK$418,674,000 and HK$4,102,000 held in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), Korean Won (“KRW") and United States dollars (“USD"),
respectively and the remaining balances mainly held in Philippine
Pesos ("PHP") (2020: approximately HK$647,418,000, with
approximately HK$419,623,000, HK$206,692,000 and HK$19,310,000
held in HKD, KRW and USD, respectively and the remaining balances
mainly held in UK pound sterling).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade and other payables of
approximately HK$520,519,000 (2020: approximately HK$503,612,000)
and a bank borrowing in KRW with fixed interest rate of approximately
HK$2,114,515,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,536,498,000) while total
liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately HK$2,699,637,000
(2020: approximately HK$3,101,925,000). The Group's gearing ratio,
which was measured on the basis of the Group's total liabilities
divided by total assets, was 23.5% (2020: 22.9%).

The Directors have given careful consideration to the going
concern status of the Group in light of the fact that the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$781,906,000 as at 31 December 2021. The current liabilities
increased by approximately HK$1,324,775,000 and the non-current
liabilities decreased by approximately HK$1,727,063,000 which were
mainly attributable to the reclassification of an interest-bearing bank
borrowing from non-current liability to current liability during the
Year. The management will pay close attention to the Group’ s cash
position and keep contacts and negotiations with banks to ensure
that the existing bank borrowing will be successfully renewed in
longer terms and additional banking facilities are obtained when
necessary.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Issue of new shares

On 2 June 2021, the Company completed the allotment and issuance
of 704,374,800 ordinary shares (the “Subscription Shares”) under the
general mandate to a subscriber, who is an independent third party,
at the subscription price of HK$0.197 per share pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the subscription agreement dated 21 May 2021,
entered between the Company and the subscriber and subscriber’s
guarantor. The Subscription Shares representing approximately
16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issuance of the Subscription Shares immediately upon
completion. The net proceeds from the subscription, after deduction
of the subscription commission and other related expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$138,611,000 was intended to be used
for capital expenditure and development cost for Jeju Shinhwa World
as well as the payment of interest expenses and general working
capital. As at 31 December 2021, approximately HK$27,500,000 has
been applied towards the maintenance, renovation and upgrade of
the existing facilities within Jeju Shinhwa World and approximately
HK$68,238,000 has been applied towards interest expenses. Taken
into consideration the prevailing market conditions and the Group's
liquidity position, the Group has exercised caution in utilizing the
fund raised and intends to apply the balance of the proceeds largely
for interest expenses so as to maintain a healthy balance sheet.

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, the total number
of issued ordinary shares of the Company was 4,226,252,310 shares
with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Investments

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was holding listed equity
investments at a fair value of approximately HK$17,957,000 (representing
approximately 0.16% of the consolidated total assets of the Group), which
were classified as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (2020: approximately HK$30,420,000).
Net fair value losses in respect of these investments of approximately
HK$12,463,000, which was mainly resulted from the downward movement
of stock price of the equity investment in Kingston Financial Group
Limited (the shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1031), were recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the Year. There was no single
equity investment representing more than 0.2% of the consolidated total
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (continued)

Investments (continued)

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant investment,
material acquisition or disposal during the year under review that the
shareholders of the Company should be notified of.

The Company will make further announcements and comply with
the relevant requirement under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as and
when appropriate in case there is any material investment(s) being
identified and entered into by the Group. The Company does not
rule out the possibility that the Group will conduct debt and/or equity
fundraising exercises when suitable fundraising opportunities arise
in order to support future developments and/or investments of the
Group and the Company will comply with the Listing Rules, where
applicable, in this regard.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

LETTER FROM THE BOARD
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2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAxT
Contracted, but not provided for: BERTAEREME -

Property, plant and equipment M - WE L& 1,895 12,600
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material capital B E XA FZEEIN - AEEW BT EREAR
commitments. HHE o
CONTINGENT LIABILITY 2R £

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
R

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the following assets of the Group were
pledged to certain banks or financial institutions to secure general
banking facilities and other facilities payable granted to the Group:

e RiIE L

RZEBE-Z—F+-_A=+—8 ' x&£ERET
IRITHEEBIIFUATEE  FEALAEEE
B—RRITREREMEMTE ZER

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FBT

Property, plant and equipment ME - B RHEE 1,375,739 1,405,418

Investment properties B 62,364 54,649

Completed properties for sale HEETERME 609,974 875,637
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material B EXFTIEZEEN  AEEBVTETRNEREE

charges on assets. T -

CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY
RISK

The Group's objective regarding cash flow management is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through a combination of internal resources, bank borrowings, and
other debt or equity securities, as appropriate. The Group pay close
attention to the present financial and liquidity position, and will
continue to maintain a reasonable liquidity buffer to ensure sufficient
funds are available to meet liquidity requirements at all times.

CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE STRUCTURE

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in HKD,
KRW, USD, RMB and PHP. Currently, the Group has not entered into
any agreement to hedge against foreign exchange risk. In view of the
fluctuation of KRW, USD, RMB and PHP in recent years, the Group will
continue monitoring the situation closely and will introduce suitable
measures as and when appropriate.

The Group had no exposure to interest rate fluctuations on bank
borrowing as at 31 December 2021, as the interest rates applicable to
the bank borrowing is fixed throughout their respective loan term.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had around 1,364 (2020: around
1,525) full-time employees with total staff costs (including Directors’
remuneration) amounting to approximately HK$540,537,000
(2020: approximately HK$553,574,000) including management and
administrative staff. The employees were mainly stationed in South
Korea and Hong Kong. The remuneration, promotion and salary
increments of employees are assessed according to the individual's
performance, as well as professional and working experience, and in
accordance with prevailing industry practices. The Group also offers a
variety of training schemes to its employees.

CASH INCIDENT
Updates on the Cash Incident

As previously disclosed, the Group reported to Jeju Special Self-
Governing Provincial Police Agency of Korea (the “Jeju Police”)
in Jeju, South Korea in early January 2021 in relation to the
missing fund of approximately KRW14,555,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$103,713,000) cash (the “Incident”). As at the date
of this report, the investigation is still being conducted in Jeju and
KRW13,400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$87,867,000) cash
found has been retained by the Jeju Police until the investigation
process is complete. To the best knowledge of the Board, none of
the suspect is or is related to, any director of the Company. Save
as the loss incurred by the Incident in an amount of approximately
HK$28,961,000 being recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020,
there was no further adjustment or loss made for the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no other significant events subsequent to 31 December
2021 which would materially affect the Group's operating and
financial performance as of the date of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the dividend policy adopted by the Company, the
Board shall consider, among others, (i) the actual and expected
financial results of the Company; (ii) factors having impacts on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company; (iii)
the Company’s business strategy and operational plans; and (iv) the
current and expected liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Company. Further, the Company's declaration of dividends is also
subject to the compliance with the Company’s bye-laws, the Listing
Rules and applicable law(s).
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD
R

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2020: Nil).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to convey our sincere gratitude
to all employees for their diligence and contributions to the Group.

| would also like to acknowledge the continual support from our
customers, suppliers, bankers and shareholders during the Year.

Ji% &
EESTERERBEAEE RN RBRE(ZZ
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REAFRHE T AR TEHISH ©

For and on behalf of the Board

Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the belief that they are
essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders, to comply with increasingly stringent
local and international regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the Year, the Company has applied the principles and
adopted and complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, except that Dr. Yang Zhihui, the chairman and
executive Director of the Company, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2021 since he had
other business engagement out of Hong Kong, which deviated from
code provision F.2.2.

THE BOARD

The Board is mainly responsible for overseeing the business and
affairs of the Group and aims to enhance the Company'’s value for
stakeholders. The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Roles of the Board include reviewing and guiding corporate strategies
and policies, monitoring financial and operating performance and
establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management and
internal control systems.

The primary role of the Board is to oversee how management serves
the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. To do this,
the Board has adopted corporate governance principles aimed at
ensuring that the Board is independent and fully informed on the key
strategic issues facing the Company. As at the date of this report, the
Board comprises six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.
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The Company appointed Dr. Yang Zhihui as the chairman of the
Board and executive Director on 19 July 2013. Dr. Yang Zhihui has
over a decade’s experience in property development in the People's
Republic of China. There is a clear distinction between the chairman’s
responsibilities and the executive directors’ responsibilities for
running the day-to-day business of the Company so as to ensure a
balance of power and segregation of duties. The primary role of the
chairman is to formulate the overall strategic development of the
Group. The Company does not have a position of “Chief Executive
Officer”, therefore, the executive Directors undertake the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business and strategic planning of
the Group with the advice of all non- executive Directors. Under the
existing arrangement, the Board believes that the balance of power
and authority is adequately ensured and the current arrangement
is for the benefit of the Group. However, the Board will also review
regularly the board composition and appoint a Chief Executive
Officer if a suitable candidate is identified.

The balanced board composition has been formed to ensure strong
independence exists across the Board and save as mentioned herein,
the Company has met the requirements under Rule 3.10 and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Board to include at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing at least one-third
of the Board. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the
Listing Rules. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 4 to 7, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications. The Company has received from the
three independent non-executive Directors annual confirmations
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers such Directors to be independent. In
respect of code provision C.3.3 under the CG Code, formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their respective appointment were executed by all Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the
meeting at which he retires.

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate fullest
possible attendance. The company secretary of the Company (the
"Company Secretary”) assists the executive Directors in setting the
agenda of Board meetings and each Director is invited to present
any business that he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Board papers are circulated to all Directors within reasonable time
before the Board meetings to ensure timely access to relevant
information. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice if necessary. Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated
to all Directors for comments. Final versions of minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director. The Company held seven
(7) Board meetings and one (1) general meeting in 2021.
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The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee
particular areas of the Company'’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of its responsibility. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice, at the Company's
expense. As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board
and the Board Committees are given below and their respective

EXeCRV=—AEFZECEEARARTE
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responsibilities are discussed in this report.

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board of Directors Committee Committee Committee
gz EREES REZE8 ¥MEES
Executive Directors: BTEE:
Dr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman) NEEE+(FE) = - -
Ms. Chan Mee Sze REBLL = = =
Mr. Yeung Lo BREE - = =
Dr. Wong Hoi Po FTERET = = -
Ms. Pu Shen Chen BEE L - - -
Mr. Huang Wei BERAE(RZE=—F
(appointed on 14 April 2021) MA+mHEERE) = - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors: B FHTEE :
Mr. Li Chun Kei TEM A committee chairman  committee chairman  committee chairman
ZEEIR ZESTRE ZEETRE
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham AEHLE member member member
& & K&
Mr. Du Peng HEAE(R=-T=—F member member member
(appointed on 12 March 2021) “Bt+-_HEZT) 4=} E &
Mr. Lin Liangyong MEBRE(RZZ=—F member member member
(ceased on 12 March 2021) ZATZHRIEE®) D=1 K& 4=

An updated list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at
the Company, is available on the websites of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.

ARRGHEFRE(EFIREEARBZA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There is no service contract signed between the Company and
any independent non-executive Director. All independent non-
executive Directors were appointed for a term of one year, which is
automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon the
expiry of the relevant term.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (including
measurable objectives) in accordance with the requirement set
out in the CG Code (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company
seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All director appointments will be made on the basis of
merit and candidates will be considered against objective criteria with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board will
continue to take opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are identified.

As at the date of this report, 2 of the 9 Directors are female. The
Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity.

NOMINATION POLICY

According to the nomination policy adopted by the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”), the Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders of the Company for election
as Directors at general meetings or appointment as Directors to
fill casual vacancies with reference to various factors to assess the
suitability of a proposed candidate. The Nomination Committee shall
ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's
business.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Zenith CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

A B ) <

RAFEER BN BN TARRZEEHE
SEMEEAAERIRNMEEHIIMT

Fee paid/

Services rendered payable
SRR 2t EAEA
HK$'000

FHT

Audit of financial statements EAZP T RE 4,834
Review of interim results ERMFPHES 912
Total =) 5,746

In respect of the auditor’s remuneration for the audit services paid
or payable by the Company and its subsidiaries, respectively, please
refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chun Kei
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and Mr. Du Peng.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of the CG
Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to, among others,
(i) review and monitor the preparation of the Group's financial
statements and annual and half-year reports and accounts; (ii)
monitor, develop and implement the Group's policy on external
auditors; (iii) recommend the appointment and reappointment of
the Group's external auditor; (iv) supervise the Group's financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems;
and (v) develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board.
The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and the
external auditor the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and has discussed auditing and financial reporting matters
and risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee
and attended by the members to review and discuss financial
reporting matters, including the review of the interim and annual
consolidated financial statements and re-appointment/appointment
of an external auditor. During the Year, there were no disagreements
between the Board and the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company's
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee is comprised
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chun
Kei (Committee Chairman), Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and Mr. Du
Peng.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties
of the Nomination Committee are available on websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of
the CG Code.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to, among others,
(i) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
(ii) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment and succession planning of
Directors; (iii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iv) assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will also monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy and review the
respective policy, as appropriate, to ensure their effectiveness.

During the Year, three meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee and attended by the members to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Li Chun Kei (Committee Chairman), Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham and
Mr. Du Peng.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange to comply with the provisions of
the CG Code.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to, among
others, (i) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure for Directors’ and senior management
remuneration; (ii) ensure that they are fairly rewarded for their
individual contribution to the Group's overall performance, having
regard to the interests of shareholders; (iii) make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors
and senior management; and (iv) review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.

The remuneration payable to each of the Directors of the Company
is determined with reference to their individual performance,
comparable market statistics and the operating results of the
Company. During the Year, three meetings were held by the
Remuneration Committee and attended by the members to review
and discuss the Company'’s policy and structure of remuneration of
the Directors. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The overall attendance records of the Directors at the Board EFR _ZT-_—FHFESTELH ZEEZLB
meetings, Board Committee meetings and general meeting in 2021, @@Z&BRRRAS 2 EELE - WKE 2

and their training records are set out as below: HERE T
Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Training
BNZRE [REZRE  HMZERE
34 ] L ] i B E V- ]
(7in total) (2 in total) (Bintota)  (3intotal)l  (1intotal)
Number of meetings during the Year EEERERRY (BH7R)  (Rf2R)  (B#3R)  (B#3R%)  (RH1R)
Executive Directors HTES
Dr. Yang Zhhui (Chairman) NEsmt(2E) 07 NATEE  NATEER  NANER 01 v
Ms. Chan Mee Sze RERat M NARER NATER NATER li v
Mr. Yeung Lo kYt o7 NANER  NARER  NATER N 4
Dr. Wong Hoi Po THRET M ONIANER NIAMRER NATER N v
Ms. Pu Shen Chen BEYLL M ONANER NARER NATER 1L v
Mr. Huang Wei EREE(R_B—F
(appointed on 14 April 2021) MATMAEEL) 33 NANER  NARER NATER N v
Independent BukaiEs
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Chun Kei FHREE n 0 33 3 i v
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham RigREE n 0 3 3 li v
Mr. Du Peng HBEE(R-F=—F
(appointed on 12 March 2021) =Rt REERF) 55 22 22 22 1/1 v
Mr. Lin Liangyong MRERE(R-B_—F
(ceased on 12 March 2021) ZAtZBALER) 22 NIAMNER 1 M NATER
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities incurred in discharge of their duties
while holding office as the Directors and officers of the Company.

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of
the operations and businesses of the Group as well as the director’s
duties, responsibilities, and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

During the Year, all Directors were provided with regular updates on
the Group's business and operation, as well as its financial position
and budget. They were also provided with the information which
covered topics, including but not limited to, corporate governance
matters, disclosure and compliance of inside information, updates
and changes in relation to legislative and regulatory requirements
in which the Group conducts its business, and reading materials
which are relevant to their duties and responsibilities for their study
and reference. During the Year, all Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG
Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its model code for
securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
to all Directors by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view, and
are prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards in force, and are published
in a timely manner. The Directors are responsible for selecting and
applying suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis and
ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
are set out in the "Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 72 to 81
of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of risks (including ESG - related
risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives.
Besides, the Board is responsible for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems (including
those for ESG - related risks) for the Group on an ongoing basis, to
safeguard investments of shareholders and assets of the Group, and
to maintain proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal and external reporting. The systems
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements or loss of
assets. Also, the risk management system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Group's
strategic or business objectives.
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The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee to review risk
management (including ESG - related risks) and internal control
issues, if any, identified by the external auditor, regulatory authorities
and management, as well as to evaluate the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee reports material issues, if any, to
the Board. Regular reviews are conducted during the Year on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems,
covering all material controls in areas of financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risk management as well
as physical and information systems security. An annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems is conducted, and the Board receives annually a confirmation
from management of the Company on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has also established a formal risk assessment system. The
risk assessment exercise is performed annually through questionnaires
and interviews with senior management and function heads to
identify and evaluate significant risks of the Group. These identified
risks are prioritised based on the likelihood of their occurrence and
the significance of their impact on business of the Group. Moreover,
remedial actions or mitigation control measures are developed to
manage these risks to an acceptable level.

On an annual basis, the Group reviews the need to have an internal
audit function. During the Year, the operating subsidiaries of the
Group assign specific independent officers to perform the internal
audit function to conduct analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls systems, and have procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
There was no significant deficiencies in risk management and internal
controls reported.

The Company is aware of its obligation under relevant sections of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and Listing Rules. To
prevent possible mishandling of inside information within the Group,
safeguards on the handling and dissemination of inside information
have been implemented; including stringent internal structures have
been designed to prevent the misuse of inside information and avoid
conflicts of interest. All members of the Board, senior management,
executives, function heads, and staff who are likely to possess inside
information are bound by the SFO and the Listing Rules (including
the Model Code).
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To ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations on the
prevention of money laundering, especially for the Gaming Business,
the Group had engaged an internationally reputed consulting firm
having practices in both Hong Kong and South Korea to review and
advise on the anti-money laundering ("AML") and counter-terrorism
financing (“CTF") framework, the related design of controls and the
policies of the Gaming Business. Based on the applicable laws and
regulations and with reference to professional advices, the subsidiary
of the Company operating the Gaming Business has developed its
own internal control policy, including especially those related to
compliance with the applicable AML and CTF laws and regulations.
The responsible department will, from time to time, evaluate that
policy. During the current year, the Group engaged a Korean law
firm to perform an independent assessment on the design and
operation of AML and CTF policies, procedures and controls, as well
as the related monitoring system. The Board has also reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems,
including the AML and CTF controls, and found the result satisfactory.

For the Year, the Board, through the review of the Audit Committee,
considers that (i) the Group's risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate, and the Group had complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal control as
set forth in the CG Code; and that (ii) the resources, qualifications,
experience, training programmes, and budget of the accounting,
financial reporting and outsourced internal audit functions of the
Group are adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lok Man Tsit (“Ms. Lok”) has been appointed as the Company
Secretary since 22 January 2020. Ms. Lok has more than 12 years of
experience in acting as a company secretary of listed companies
on the Stock Exchange and providing related company secretarial
services. She holds a master degree of Science in Professional
Accounting and Corporate Governance. Ms. Lok is an associate
member of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries)
and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

The appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary are subject
to the Board's approval in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Whilst
the Company Secretary reports to the chairman of the Board on the
Group's company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary.
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According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Lok has taken no less

than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

VOTING BY POLL

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company

are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are

explained to the shareholders at the commencement of each general

meeting, and questions from shareholders regarding the voting

procedures are answered.

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

Procedure to Convene a Special General Meeting

(i)

(iii)

Requisition to convene a special general meeting can be
deposited by the members of the Company holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company.

The requisitionists must submit their requisition in writing, in
which it must state the objects of the meeting, and be duly
signed by the requisitionists, mailed and deposited at Units
1412-1413, 14th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, Nos.168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary; and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company's share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all registered
shareholders, provided that the requisitionists have deposited
a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company'’s
expenses involved in convening a special general meeting.
On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in
order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as
requested.
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(iv)  Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the directors do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

(v} A meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings are to be convened by Directors in
accordance to the Bye-Laws and the Listing Rules.

(vi)  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by
reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting
shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

Procedure for Making Enquiries to be Put to the Board and
the Company

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board by
email: enquiry@landing.com.hk, fax: (852) 3621 0052, or mail to Units
1412-1413, 14th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
Nos.168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Procedure to Put Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “"Bermuda
Companies Act”), shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting right of all the shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or not less than 100 shareholders are entitled
to request the Company to give shareholders notice of a resolution
which is intended to be moved at the general meeting. A written
notice to that effect signed by the requisitionist(s) with detailed
contact information must be deposited at the Company's principle
place of business in Hong Kong at Units 1412-1413, 14th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, Nos.168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
The notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the proposed
resolution desired to be put forward at the general meeting, the
reasons for such a proposal and any material interest of the proposing
shareholder in such a proposal.
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The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in
Bermuda or Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

BYE-LAWS

The Company's Bye-Laws (in both English and Chinese) are available
on both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
During the Year, there has been no significant change to the
Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The purpose of the shareholder communication is to promote
effective communication with shareholders, encourage shareholders
to engage actively with the Company and enable them to exercise
their rights as shareholders effectively.

Information shall be communicated to shareholders through the
Company's annual general meeting and other general meetings that may
be convened, as well as by maintaining a website (www.landing.com.hk)
on which information about the Company’s notices, announcements,
proxy forms, circulars, financial reports, results announcements (for
both interim and annual reporting periods) and Bye-Laws are made
available.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group is pleased to present the 2021 Environmental, Social
and Governance ("ESG") Report which focus on ESG performance
and various sustainability initiatives. Our commitment in creating
environmental, employee, operational and community values are
outlined in this report.

Reporting Guideline

This ESG report in prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The Board
confirms that it has reviewed and approved this report. For
governance section, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report in Annual Report 2021. Reporting principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency are applied in preparation of

this report:
Materiality:
basis.
2t BRERBNEREER B ERAEZEERE -

Quantitative:
progress in addressing ESG issues.

g1t FHBEABFNRFLLBO A RE2S - UBHIREERRIR -
Balance:

improve its ESG performance.
T RABHNIRHEEE KB AT EERRINERE

Consistency:
meaningful comparison over time.

— 2 HREE-B(BRRERERMBEMA L)

Reporting Boundary and Period

This ESG report covers the Group's business operations covering
businesses with holdings greater than 90% in Hong Kong and South
Korea for the financial year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021.

With respect to material environmental and social topics, the
Group aims to provide a better understanding of its practices and
governance for its stakeholders. Data in this ESG report are analysed
to account for year-on-year changes and clearly presented in a way
that allows consistent comparison.

BREL - Aba LR

oA % A e

AEBMARZE-ZT-_—FRE HELEA

(RE -HERER RS AHBEFER

RIR - HEMEARARZHEUBELEG -

RRE - e REAREMAHEERE B
BE R EEERNAE -

B

KRBT - 4@ REGRSE TIIRE L5 AIM &
FERE HERERBEHESIMBH -
EXZemRHCBHARMERS - BHEAG
D B2 FFRZIEEEERS -
EREAHmER CRERAERM B ¥4
R—HMEmHERAER

Material ESG issues of the Company are identified through engaging with stakeholders on an ongoing

HeMERER -

Data are presented in a manner conducive to year-on-year comparison in order to provide clarity about

HelERAFERER -

The Company strives to report its positive as well as negative impacts along with steps it is taking to

HERERARRIITHE

Consistency of data, including comparability with data for previous periods, is maintained to facilitate

AEEHB BZNRRLE

HREHERBHE

B HEREARERELEEL T
——F—F-—BRE-_E-——&G+-F=+—
BB TR A B 2 P SRR AR B 4B 90% 2
BaE -

REBREREGHEMS - AREEERE
M HEESARBZERRE BB ERAR
R NIREE - HENERMEZBETI/RE
""""" HEYMMADH - WARHE—BLL B 2T B
251 -
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Feedback

The Group shall continue to work towards sustainable growth
through communications with its stakeholders. Your feedback is
valuable and helps the Group improve the report further. Please
feel free to contact the Group for any questions or comments at
enquiry@landing.com.hk.

BOARD STATEMENT

The Group's management is conscious of its corporate social
responsibilities (“CSR") and continuously strives to be a responsible
corporation, primarily engaged in the development and operation
of integrated leisure and entertainment resorts, gaming and
entertainment facilities, and property development. While working
to provide its consumers with exceptional leisure experiences, it also
bears and fulfills its part of corporate social responsibility.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the ESG risks and
opportunities. Supporting the Board, the Group's senior
management is responsible for developing ESG-related policies and
their implementation in ESG areas, including policy optimization,
the development of innovative initiatives, resource allocation, and
integrating sustainability issues into all the Group's operations and

actions.

The Group's initiatives to address ESG-related risks and opportunities
in all business development, which account for most of its
environmental consequences, are detailed in this report. The Board
reviews progresses toward environmental goals on a regular basis
to ensure that the management policy properly addresses the
Company's operations’ environmental impact. The Board confirms
that it has reviewed and approved this report.

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholders of the Group include customers, shareholders,
employees, business partners, regulators, suppliers and the media
and practically all of them are now concerned about environmental
and social impacts of its operations. The Group engages with all
stakeholders to the best of its ability to obtain their perspectives and
prioritise material ESG topics (see bold topics) accordingly. Several
channels are used to ensure effective communication with different
stakeholders.

&

AEBBEEFBENGZHBELETER 8
NERAIFELK . BMTIREFTFTES
WEBAEEE —FTERE - A EAERH
2 R - BUDEH E enquiry@landing.com.hk
HEZC SR EHR AR o

EHERY

AEEEREERIACRYEET([hE4
EREEDIRERNRBABENEE T2
REBRIELEEARBNREERE - BF
FRIRGER AR MERR - EREFFPRMHIEL
ZRE R FER - R EAEREREOCEMS
BfE-

EXE2REERERE e RERRER MK
G RXFEFE AEERLEEERAER
REE HeRBEAMBEBRRERE H&
RERBENER BRETERR  ZRAR
EWEE BROELSAFEESERAR
KENAEZERTENA -

ARERAEFHINAKEERBEFERTEY
R e hERHBRARIEENER &
BTARBIRERERR - EEQTHEHER
RREBEMER  BREEBRREZZREAR
NELEHRENTE -BEXSEACDENAR
REZRE ©

NEEEE 22 H

AEBZMaBEERERR, KR EE -
BBt RERE HEBLKE mAT
FENGHBAERERIAEELEHRER
HEZHE AKREERABZHEMBENEA
ERE  AERRENE  ARUEEER
MEENRE He@kErzaB(AEFER)
MEBERFF - AEBERAZ ERERRETR
MERBAEETERAR -

40 Landing International Development Limited 5 i} B b 58 2 47 FR 24+



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - AhE R ARl

Key Stakeholder Groups  Key Concerns Engagement Channels
FEFNEEFEEERR FERTIRE SHRE
Customers ¢  Compliance with all laws and e Customer loyalty or membership
regulations programmes and events
*  Quality products and services e Customer satisfaction surveys
e  Customer satisfaction e Customer services hotline and emails
®  Social media
EF o  ETHBERNER s EFPAWMEXGEI LA
o BHERERY s ZFPWEERZE
s EFRRE s ZEPRBAEZGLRER
o HXREKEE

Shareholders

BRR

Employees

7l
i

Business partners

RBRH

Regulators

EEHRE

Suppliers

HERE

Media
HEe

Economic performance

Full compliance with regulations

BRI
2EETIER

Compensation and benefits
Occupational health and safety
Career development opportunities
Corporate culture and engagement
A INE R

BEEEELS

BEBREE

EEXERZEE

Long-term partnerships

RHAEBE

Regulatory compliance
Ethical operation

o= fAN

4

b

B
BRI

AT
S o>

Long-term partnerships
Ethical business practices
Supplier assessment criteria
RHAERIE
BIEEEEN
HERmFHERE

Community engagement initiatives
RS a8

Annual general meeting and other meetings
Corporate communications including
circulars, notifications, results
announcements, annual and interim reports
BRERBFAGREMAE

RERA - BEER - BHM EERE - F
W EmE

Performance appraisals
Employee involvement in volunteering and
CSR projects

=BG
EBESEEBBEIIE  CXHEEEER

Meetings and discussion sessions

S22 TG =oF 24 e 2%
PSR

In-person meeting with regulators
Compliance reporting

Circulars or guidelines

Ad-hoc enquiries

HEEREEH

BR|E

K IE S

EFMzEM

In-person meetings
Supplier audit
Supplier due diligence procedures

o sy
%Eﬁ

HIEmEZ
HEREREERT

Management interviews

EIEEM
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group continuously assesses the impact of its operations on the
environment and designs action plans to mitigate it to the extent
possible. During the reporting period, the Group complied with
all relevant laws and regulations in South Korea, where we have a
major part of our operations. These include but not limited to the
Air Quality Preservation Act, the Water Quality Preservation Act and
the Waste Management Act. The Hong Kong headquarter maintains
office-based operations and strictly complies with environmental laws
applicable in Hong Kong.

Climate Change

The Group is concerned about the possibility of climate change
affecting our activities. Extreme weather events, such as typhoons
and floods, have the potential to impair our daily operations. The
Group is committed to managing its operations’ climate change
risks by establishing plans in accordance with global and industry
best practices. In the coming year, the Group intends to establish
a climate change policy, which will detail the activities that must be
done and those that have already been taken to reduce the effects of
climate change and create knowledge of climate change resilience.

Environmental Targets

The Group has set targets for different aspects of environmental
protection and monitor its performance against these targets
regularly. These are as shown in the table below:

Aspect Target
L B

R

REBBEBTHHEBHREOFE - WRE
THFEINETREREESE - RBEHA -
REBETHEMBRBEIEREN  BEA
FEREMY ZEEERERBERTR
% 2= R E 2 (R # A (Air Quality Preservation
Act) * JKE{RFEE (Water Quality Preservation
Act) M EEY)E IR )% (Waste Management Act) ©
BEABIARANEEE  MEEETESEA
ZIRIBEAE o

RIEEL

AEERIREECHEERFMIABORAE
o B - KK EBRBRREM ARSI
HRL2EXE AKEFNEBERBREERRITER
EEAHIESIEREELERKRE(CER - K
FoAKBETERE-BARRELCHE - Hf
1w Al AR A R R DA R B SRR B - DA
BAORBERECNFELEEERARRZLER
BB ©

REREZ

AEED R TREEFIRFBRESE BRI E
MERAENEBABEENERE - AEBEHNT
x:

GHG emissions Full switch to electric vehicles by 2030

BEREIKR R-Z=ZFH2EE/EHE
Waste Gradually increase the percentage of waste recycled
FEZY) BAEINE IR BEEY)

Energy efficiency
gradually moving towards 100%

BEIR N BRI RERE M ER LA P E 100%
Water use
FA7K BERUS KGR B TIRIRIZAE

The proportion of electrical appliances with energy-saving labels is

Achieving 100% compliance with environmental protection standards to discharge sewage
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Energy Consumption

Sources of energy consumed by the Group include electricity, diesel,
liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and petrol. Major consumption is in
daily operations of hotels and casino in Jeju Shinhwa World (“JSW"),
South Korea. The Group consumed a total of 81,184,174.17 kWh of
energy, with an intensity of 60.1 kWh/thousands Hong Kong dollars
revenue, representing a 48.6% decrease over the previous year.

Energy Consumption

HETRHFE

= 455,429.65
S 100,000,000
=
5 Eg 80,000,000
B 42,237,796.91
£ — 60,000,000
2w
O >
giﬂg 40,000,000
2 s 49,077,316.00
e 20,000,000
L

0

2020

® Purchased Electricity ® LPG

BESE RACB MR,

For enhancing its energy efficiency, the Group has implemented an
energy management system at JSW. Several measures have been
taken to reduce energy consumption at JSW, while ensuring that
customer experience is not affected adversely. These measures are:

e  The push for use of light-emitting diodes (LED) lights continued,
which helped reduce electricity consumption.

® Inrooms, parking spaces and staircases, the Group has installed
sensors that automatically dim or turn off lights when the space
is vacant. At nights, lights in public areas are turned off to
reduce electricity usage.

*  Notice are regularly sent to all employees on energy saving
every Monday and Friday.

e  The green roof system reduces electricity consumption for
cooling.

B - AhE R ARl

k=
AEBAERMNERBIES S - £H - RibA
SR MU o FEAEM N R AN TR
([BEMEEHRR ) 2BE RIREIZHFEESD
HFE - AEE 2 BELRBFEE/R81,184,174.17
TEE BEA0NTEE/FTHLKZE &
KER A 48.6% °

S

374,705.56

27,326,974.17

53,188,585.00

2021
® Diesel Petrol
ey YU

RIERERUE  AEESEEMNGFETRE
IEEEREE RS - EERBEEERITIIERY
EMRIRT - EBEZHEHEURDEEMN
A AREEROBRE - XFHEEELE

EEHESERE N _REB(LEDE - A8

HOREE -

EEM - REMRER  AREERER
Eer UWRARABEESRETNERZE
& o B LR ARG ZEE - UKD

RE

BR-LBRAERRAERERLAEE
RS -
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®  Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems
operate according to seasonal change. Filter replacement are
increased from 2 to 4 times annually for energy efficiency.

®  When customers do not need air-conditioning in the casino it is
switched off.

e The manmade waterfall serving as an ornamental attraction has
its operational time reduced by 3 hours per day.

In addition to reducing energy consumption in absolute terms,
the Group is working to expand use of renewable energy. At
JSW, the Group has a solar generating capacity of 340 kWh and
the output is used in hotels, condominiums and other facilities.
For continued progress, the Group considers it important to raise
employees’ awareness on an ongoing basis. Therefore, the Group
has implemented green measures at the head office, encouraging
employees to turn off lights and electronic and electrical appliances
when not in use.

o HKAERHVAQRBREFHUEE LM
BT o AEBGER AT - EHUBER B
FE2RBMEGF4R -

s EEENRESATHFZLREELS

& o

s (FEEZANSHAERMNETRE
FRREDINE

BT eERERMBEE  AEETFRNE
RAIBARRIER - EEME@EER - A&
A 340 TR M ARGEERERE N BIHME
NARRBEE - REREMBRE - RITEEN
AEERRTHRSEINEIALREE -
It AEEEARRRECHEE YRBET
Rie MERZERNETRE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BERBHNR
60,000
g 50,000 0.045 e
e
Q i
g% 40,000
§'% 30,000
3 1z
‘€ 20,000 25,571.87
e
&= 10,000
9,901.49
0
2020
® Scope | ® Scopelll
#E— EE—

Operations of the Group result in emissions of greenhouse gases.
These include fuel consumed by vehicles, besides purchased
electricity. Direct emissions (Scope |) were 11,144.53 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (tCOze), while indirect emissions (Scope ) were
37,408.40 tCOze. The intensity for total greenhouse gas emission is
0.036 tCOze/thousand Hong Kong dollars revenue.

0.05 .
_. &
g =
004 .S IE
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003 3 M{Ji
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002 g 8% i
£33
o
001 3 ﬂ
11,114.53 o
0 £

2021
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Water Saving

For reducing water consumption, the Group has clearly defined
policies that emphasise higher usage efficiency and recycling, and set
up a grey water and storm water recycling facility at the JSW resort.
Also, the Group has the required effluent treatment facilities which
ensure that sewage discharged by the resort meets the stipulated
environmental standards.

The Group's daily treatment capacity is 600 tonnes of grey water,
which works out to 15,000 tonnes of wastewater annually. Recycled
water is used for watering plants, cleaning premises, etc. In 2021,
879,943.00 m?® of water is consumed, with an intensity of 0.65, while
282,817 m? of the total consumption is recycled. The Group did not
face any difficulties in sourcing water fit for the purpose during the
year.

Water Consumption

FKE
0.79
1,000,000
— 800,000
EQ
SR
o 600,000
g &
£
5% 400,000
SE 619,092.00
200,000
0

2020

® \Water consumption

FEKE

B - AhE R ARl
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Emission Mitigation

The Group consumes fuel in its vehicles and for operating
construction machinery. During the year, 0.0572 tonnes of sulphur
dioxide (SOx), 12.1785 tonnes of nitrogen oxide (NOx) and 0.3909
tonnes of particulate matter (PM) are generated. In order to reduce
the air pollution caused by fuel consumption, the Group draws plans
for reducing air pollution and greenhouse gas emissions which mainly
comprise energy-efficiency measures and energy reduction initiatives.

Air Pollutants
ZRTEY

0.0562

10

Emission (kg)
BER(AT)
A~ o

N

2020

e NOx REtY)

The management of the Group regularly reviews ESG initiatives
and measures. Environmental audits are conducted regularly to
help achieve better compliance with national and local regulatory
requirements.

Another important step being taken for minimisation of air pollutants
at JSW is the replacement of traditional petrol vehicles by electric
carts and electric vehicles for in-resort transportation. In addition,
super low NOx emission boilers are now in place to replace
conventional burners. In compliance with applicable laws, operations
records are reported to the designated governmental authority, along
with results of tests of air emissions. Another source of pollution is
leakage of refrigerants, and this is checked by regular inspections of
all pipes used in air-conditioning.

® SOx &t

B

AEEMERMEERMNETHEZERER
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Waste Management

“Reduction, Reuse and Recycling” is the core guiding principle in
the context of waste management. This idea is constantly promoted
among employees and visitors, to control generation of waste. The
Group's estate management services team helps implement the
prescribed procedures and other relevant measures.

Considerable non-hazardous waste is generated by guests visiting
resort, including plastic bottles, packaging materials and metal
containers. These are all collected in bins placed at appropriate
points. This waste is then handed over to designated parties who
recycle it. The Group also encourages use of reusable dishes,
silverware and glassware in order to minimise use of disposables.

A separate facility has been built for treatment of waste food. Food
waste is dried and compressed in order to reduce the volume. It is
then incinerated in conformity with local regulatory requirements. The
process of incineration generates ash which is treated as fertiliser for
gardening.

In 2021, a total of 3,803 tonnes of non-hazardous waste and 0.77
tonnes of hazardous waste was generated, while 1,767 tonnes of
waste was recycled. During the year, the Group's operation did not
involve in significant consumption of packaging materials.

Environmental and Natural Resources

Before setting up the JSW the Group had commissioned a consultant
for a comprehensive environmental impact assessment covering
potential adverse environmental impacts. In tune with advice
rendered by the consultant, the resort design included eco-friendly
features and this has helped reduce the environmental impact of its
operations.

The Group tries to minimise consumption of resources of all kinds,
including the use of paper, by encouraging use of softcopies as well
as both sides of paper in case hard copies are unavoidable. Similarly,
envelopes and file folders are re-used wherever possible. In the long
run, these approaches enhance employees’ environmental awareness

and minimise waste generation.

B - AhE R ARl
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The Group implemented an array of initiatives for increasing
resource usage efficiency that include energy conservation,
rainwater harvesting and wastewater recycling, apart from following
responsible sourcing practices for office furniture and equipment. To
further enhance environmental consciousness, the Group also offer
employee training on general waste separation methods.

Engaging with the community where we operate, the Group
disseminates environmental protection messages to the community.
To this end, the Group organises environmental protection events
regularly, while our volunteer clubs collaborate with community
service organisations in Jeju for the benefit of local residents. The
Group is looking forward to encouraging employees to support
environmental protection activities in future.

SOCIAL ASPECT
Employment

Providing the right kind of working environment and growth
opportunities to its employees is of paramount importance as the
Group views employees as its most important asset. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group had a total of 1,364 employees. The
Group has made it a practice to strictly comply with all employment
laws and regulations applicable at Jeju, including but not limited
to the Labour Standards Act of South Korea and the Employment
Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong.

The Group's policies are implemented based on the principle of equal
opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination. The Group complies
with the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability Discrimination
Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance and Race
Discrimination Ordinance. All employees enjoy equal opportunities
for promotion and are treated in a fair and open manner regardless of
age, gender, marital status, family status, race, skin colour, nationality,
religion, political affiliation or sexual orientation.

The Group believes in free and frank discussions and communication
with employees through several channels. While a safe and enjoyable
work environment, equitable compensation, benefit schemes,
opportunities for career growth and a variety of learning and
development programmes are a given, we strive to create a strong
corporate culture where employees’ contributions are recognised
and rewarded.
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Development and Training

The Group strives for the best available talent but further honing of
skills is always required and this is an important part of our human
resources strategy. The Group's goal is to be a leading developer
and operator of leisure resorts and for ensuring continued growth
we provide comprehensive and the appropriate training to our
employees. Emphasis is always on enhancement of problem-solving
skills and work efficiency. The Group adheres to the Vocational Skills
Development Act in South Korea.

JSW stresses training programmes designed for specific positions,
one example being leadership training at appropriate levels and
service training at all levels, covering all resort operations. The Group
are also working on training some of employees to become tutors
and have designed a systematic Train-the-Trainer course for this
purpose.

Besides the regular training provided by different departments which
is specific to duties of the concerned employees, approximately 48%
employee of the Group completed an average of 12.03 hours of
training.

Health and Safety

Ensuring occupational health and safety of employees is a task
the Group takes seriously. It strictly complies with all relevant
occupational health and safety regulations including but not
limited to Occupational Safety and Health Act in South Korea and
Occupation Health and Safety Ordinance in Hong Kong. Providing
a safe and healthy working environment is achieved by the following
measures:

e Office as well as work environment at the resort must comply
with or exceed requirements of the relevant laws;

e  Safety procedures for work entailing risks should be clearly
defined and communicated;

®  Protective equipment, medical insurance and regular health
check-ups are provided for employees;

®  Machinery and equipment are checked regularly to prevent
malfunctioning that may lead to accidents;

® In the event of emergency events like a fire or an explosion,
there should be clearly laid out procedures for employees to
follow;

e Allworkplace injuries are recorded and causes are analysed.

B - AhE R ARl
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Safety training was provided to employees during the year.
Inspections and work environment checks were carried out on a
regular basis. In 2021, the Group recorded 10 cases of work-related
injury and no case of work-related fatalities. To raise the safety
awareness of the sub-contractors, monthly meetings and weekly
inspections were organised.

The Group was not aware of any instance of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that have a significant impact, relating to a safe
working environment and protection from occupational hazards
during the year.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the Labour Standard Act in
South Korea and prohibits the use of child and/or forced labour.
Compliance is ensured by way of the following:

®)
9]

TR AREREEBRALE2EI - WEME
??$A§&$?§IT’EE&1‘E R-ZF-—% A%
BEG+RIEMER  AEATIFRGER -
RETD @?ﬁZzz%ﬁ** BARTEELE

BETIRE -

FA - AEEL T IBEAEERER SRR
MAREEERRFEZ2TERERRELR
BEREBETEBNERZENER

% T 2R
ZNEYE )&y

Standard Act) *
HIEBT o

8 <F B3R &5 T 42 % J% (Labour
W AT R ET K, 5kia
VERRTYE R T YT A EIREST

.

Age Restriction Ensuring Workplace Safety Age Verification
FRRMRE BRIERERZ BEFR

No employee should be less than 16
years of age

No employee who is under 18 should
be assigned any hazardous work and

Diligent verification of age must
be conducted before hiring a new

EEMFERTSER 165 asked to work at night so that their employee by the human resource
studies are not affected department. Documents submitted
18EATZEETAINEABBER 2  as proof of age are checked and
THE- WEIEHE ETIE - B2 the it is ensured the appearance of
= F the applicants are consistent with

the photograph on the identity
documents.
EREMEFEREEN - ANBIREE
BREEFie - SRR ERFR
22X WHERPFEARRER 5 S
FEAX M ERR R

50 Landing International Development Limited B B PR A PR A )



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

When an instance of forced labour comes to light, immediate actions
stipulated by the relevant legislation are taken. The subject employee
is removed from the workplace immediately. The human resource
department is asked to verify all relevant information and confirm
whether the employee is indeed a case of forced labour. The reasons
why the employee was not identified in the recruitment process is
analysed and rectification measures are taken within 90 working days.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations having a significant impact on the Group
relating to employment and labour practices; nor did we identify any
incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.

OPERATION ASPECT
Supply Chain Management

Setting up and operating JSW has entailed working with several
contractors and suppliers and the Group has developed and
maintained long-term relationships with them. The Group selects our
business partners carefully through due diligence, in order to obtain
and supply high-quality products and services. Transparent, fair and
open procedures are the hallmarks of procurement procedures for
all materials, services and contents. The Group cooperates with only
those business partners who believe in the same ethical values and
standards.

The Group worked with 642 suppliers during the year, of which 638
were Korean enterprises and the remaining 4 enterprises were from
Hong Kong and China.
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RLEMERIITE - BRAEB SRR R
TG XBRKANBRBEZABEHEBE
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Product Responsibility

The Group's JSW resort and casino improve customer satisfaction by
providing world-class products and services. Whenever a customer
complaint is received, remedial procedures are followed to resolve
it promptly, often by offering feasible solutions or further assistance.
During the year, the total number of complaints received by the
hospitality business and the attractions unit were 1,379 respectively.
They were all handled and solved in a prompt manner after thorough
review and investigation.

The Group complies with all applicable laws and regulations,
which include but are not limited to Product Liability Act, Personal
Information Protection Act and casino regulations promulgated
by The National Gambling Control Commission in South Korea.
Confidentiality of personal information is maintained diligently, in
accordance with consumer data protection and privacy policies.
Use of personal data by staff is monitored to ensure information
collected from guests and customers is stored and managed in strict
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. Access to such
information is limited to employees specifically authorised to use it,
for specified purposes.

At JSW, the Group has clearly laid out the privacy policy and
posted it on the resort’s website as required by the Korean Personal
Information Protection Act. JSW collects only such information as is
necessary for smooth operations. The Group obtains prior consent
of customers if the information is required to be provided to third
parties for bona fide reasons. Selective personal data are collected
and used in full compliance with the information network law of
Republic of Korea.

Protecting intellectual property rights of its own as well as those
of suppliers, customers, business partners, competitors and others
is an essential component of business practices followed by the
Group. In all contracts with third parties, there are clauses stipulating
observance and protection of intellectual property rights. In order
to stay up-to-date on applicable laws and regulations and to avoid
any infringements, expert advice is sought regularly from patent and
trademark lawyers.
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NIBEFRIRFEE (Personal Information Protection
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To the best of our knowledge, there were no incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that could have had a
significant impact, in respect of occupational health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided or methods of redressal.

Responsible Gaming

The casino at the resort in Jeju is allowed to entertain only foreign
nationals and unlawful entry of Korean citizens is prevented by using
the following initiatives.

B - AhE R ARl
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e "No Minors Allowed” signs are displayed prominently at the entrance of the casino

to inform all guests to prohibit people under the age of 19 from entering the casino
EREGAODBRUEBEIIRKNFALNMFEAIZETE  UWBHAEEAZEIL
195 A T ATHEAIRRESS

Strict enforcement of identity checks before guests are allowed to enter the casino
BEANEARLEGHBBAITHEORE

Casino reserves the right to deny access or remove a person from the gaming area
under circumstances it deems appropriate such as behaviours affecting the safety or

security of others

s HEFRFEMALETRIRBMALEZEFBRT - RESFRBEBIATESLE

AT EREIREE R 2 T

The casino ensures responsible gaming by working closely with the
relevant government authorities and community bodies, minimising
any negative social impact. The highest standards of professional
integrity are followed.

Training is provided to the entire staff of the casino for promotion
and practice of responsible gaming. Staff is trained to resort to
culturally appropriate interventions when necessary and provide any
available information, support and referrals to guests. The Group has
a responsible gaming awareness training programme that all new
hires are required to attend and this is followed by annual refresher
programmes that equip the staff to offer the necessary help and
resources to guests when needed.

In order to ensure responsible gaming, it is necessary to build the
requisite awareness among the staff of the casino and the resort. For
this purpose, informative messages are posted on staff notice boards,
as well as internal newsletters and posters in staff areas.

IREESS EARBE BN B R BB B RS (R
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Anti-corruption

The Group strictly adheres to the anti-corruption related laws and
regulations where it operates, including Improper Solicitation and
Graft Act in South Korea and Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in
Hong Kong, especially when it enters into contracts and agreements
with suppliers of goods and services. The Group tolerates no
instances of corruption or bribery. There was no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against the Company or its
employees during the year.

Casino strives to remain alert about compliance with applicable laws
and regulations on prevention of money laundering. The Group had
engaged an independent third-party consulting firm, both in Hong
Kong and South Korea, to examine the efficacy of its systems and
advise on the Anti-Money Laundering (“AML") and Counter Terrorism
Financing ("CTF") framework, besides the design of controls and
policies of the gaming business.

The Group operating gaming business has developed a detailed
policy for internal controls, which ensures compliance with the
applicable AML and CTF laws and regulations.

The Board also reviews the internal control system and its
enforcement periodically. The latest of such reviews has returned
satisfactory results.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that could have a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Community Investment

Giving back to the community is a part of the Group’s cultural
ethos. During the year, the Group recorded a total of HK$1,039,021
donation, which went to investments in town development, theme
park and water park tickets, youth association and community
organization.
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AU BRI R

2020
—E-FF

— = —=

ENVIRONMENT

Total Energy Consumption (kWh)
Gasoline/Petrol (kWh)
Diesel (kWh)
Liquefied petroleum gas (kWh)
Purchased electricity (kWh)
Energy Consumption Intensity

(kWh/Revenue HK$'000)

Water Consumption (m?)
Water Consumption Intensity
(m3/Revenue HK$'000)

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions (tCOze)

Scope 1 (tCO2e)

Scope 2 (tCO2e)

Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity
(tCOze/Revenue HK$'000)

Air Emissions
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (tonnes)
Sulphur oxides (SOx) (tonnes)
Particulate matters (PM) (tonnes)

Waste
Hazardous waste (tonnes)
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)

WORKFORCE DEMOGRAPHICS
Total Headcount

& i
£

RABFER (TR

U (TR )

sem (T Rk )

BAcamE (T RE)
BEEN(TEK)
BERFEETE (TRE THTKE)

FRB(LFK)
FREBBE (LK FETHER)

BERBAENE(M_SLtHREE)
HE—(E_athEs
HE—(F-_atixgE
BERBHERERE

(B—RLiREE FExha)

ZRITRN
R (E)
mRet (mg)
FRFRLF (R )

BRI
BEEEY (W)
EEERY (M)

EBEADO&E
ETHH

81,184,174.17
293,909.44
374,705.56
27,326,974.17
53,188,585.00

60.10

879,943

0.65

48,552.93
11,144.53
37,408.40

0.036

12.1785
0.0572
0.3909

0.77
3,803

1,364

92,101,548.91
331,006.35
455,429.65
42,237,796.91
49,077,316.00

116.88

619,092

0.79

35,473.36
9,901.49
25,571.87

0.045

12.1795
0.0562
0.3909

0.79
3,393

1,525
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2021 2020
=B —F —EFF
HEALTH AND SAFETY REREZR
Occupational Health BERREZEZRE
and Safety Performance
Number of work-related injuries Ti58E 10 5
Work-related accident rate THEEIMNEER
(per 100,000 working hours) (# 100,000 T{ERF&1) 0.21 0.17
Lost days due to work injury EITEmiERm TIERE 244 226
Work-related fatalities TER G HN 0 0
Safety Training Z 2
Total training hours ﬁ'ﬁ'iﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%( 31,116 40,309
Percentage of employees trained ZiIEEBESD 100% 30.7%
DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING R KI5
Total Number of Employees Trained ZIEEAH
By Gender gkl ba)
Male Bt 902 847
Female 7t 731 600
By Position LA B D
Office staff /NYN = 287 268
Operations staff EiEAB 1,346 1,179
Total Training Hours of Employees BESEIIRE
By Gender RMRIE S
Male S 8,896.2 7,570
Female gegis 7,511.6 6,053
By Position R B S
Office staff WMAREAE 3,754.9 3,252
Operations staff ZiE A8 12,652.9 10,371
SUPPLIERS HIES
Total Number of Suppliers HEREEE 642 328
By Geographical Distribution i S El D
Korea F7 638 322
Macau BT 0 8
Malaysia ISP i 0 2
Singapore ¥ N 0 1
Hong Kong B 2 0
China i 2 0
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Details of (i) business review and relevant principal risks and
uncertainties and (ii) future development of the Group's business
are set out respectively in the "Operation and Business Review”,
“Outlook” and “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” sections under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of the Letter from the Board.

The Group understands the success of the Group's business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

Key Financial Ratios

Details of the Group's business performance are indicated in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section of the Letter from the
Board, and other financial ratios are set out below:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EHREHE

EXZRNRZBEAFEZFRAEEZES
BAIEERE -

FEEH

ARABREERAT < ARTEEHBAT
2 EBEBEREANBRANE -

S0 1ol Jgd
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BROEHEELEHEERRRTHE
= RMAREEBRRER 2F B RIER
ExglERENmEIN N EERER
OEl REIREZZABETHAREIS
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AEEPAAAREEERBRDBURNE X E Mt
HEEZXR  BREER TP #ER - R
T EERBERERR AKEREEERSTR
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EEMBLE
EMAREEBRR L HEREES LA EE
BREDIT BRI - TR %8
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2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

Debt to equity ratio BEXREBRLE 30.6% 29.7%

Quick ratio REN L= 0.4 0.8
Notes: BisE -

(1M Debt to equity ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total equity.
Debt to equity ratio increase from 29.7% in 2020 to 30.6% in 2021.

) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets less inventories and
completed properties for sale by total current liabilities. Quick ratio decrease
from 0.8 in 2020 to 0.4 in 2021.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of the Company's environmental policies and performance
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

(1) EBEXBBHEDUBEREREERTESE -
EARABHER T _TF20/%EAE-ZF
Z—5F230.6% °

(2 BILRDURDEELERGTERFEDEK
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“TEZO08RMAET - —F 204
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EEAARBREERERRE Y HERNRE -
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HeMERRE
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance of the applicable rules
and regulations. The Group has been allocating system and staff
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
effectively through effective communications. During the Year,
the Group has complied with, among others, to the best of our
knowledge, the following major laws and regulations:

Hong Kong

— the Listing Rules;
—  the SFO;
—  Companies Ordinance; and

—  the Gambling Ordinance.

South Korea

—  Tourism Promotion Act;

—  Special Act on the Establishment of Jeju Special Self-governing
Province and the Development of Free International City;

— Jeju Special Self-governing Province Tourism Promotion
Ordinance;

—  Foreign Exchange Transaction Act;

—  Building Act (and its Enforcement Decree);

—  Landscape Act (and its Enforcement Decree);

—  Environmental Impact Assessment Act (and its Enforcement
Decree);

—  Road Act;

EREREESR

AEBEGETEERTERROIMBRE 2
TERER - ARE-—ENERRRANER
DRERFEETROINAE  WEBBARER

B B

sNm

ERBREZREAFRE - AFER - B
BAPITEE -

AEEDET(RPEE)UTE

2IEBIRER

&E

ETAREAN
E5 MG R
NAENED) R

HRBFAR A SR (Tourism Promotion Act)

BB N B Rl B oA B Rk R B K
B B ¥ M % Al % & (Special Act on
the Establishment of Jeju Special
Self- governing Province and the
Development of Free International
City) :

BN B B R & ik R E 1F B Jeju
Special Self-governing Province Tourism
Promotion Ordinance) ;

N (B X 5 7k Z(Foreign Exchange
Transaction Act)

BEERR(RAEEHAES)(Building Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :

HIEAR (R EEEES) (Landscape Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :

BREFTETGLER(RAEERES)
(Environmental Impact Assessment Act
(and its Enforcement Decree)) :

B AS (Road Act)
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—  Jeju Special Self-governing Province Building Ordinance;

—  Commercial Act; and

—  Foreign Investment Promotion Act.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 82 and 83.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

On 2 June 2021, the Company completed the allotment and issuance
of 704,374,800 ordinary shares (the “Subscription Shares”) under the
general mandate to a subscriber, who is an independent third party,
at the subscription price of HK$0.197 per share pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the subscription agreement dated 21 May 2021,
entered between the Company and the subscriber and subscriber’s
guarantor. The Subscription Shares representing approximately
16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issuance of the Subscription Shares immediately upon
completion. The net proceeds from the subscription, after deduction
of the subscription commission and other related expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$138,611,000 was intended to be used
for capital expenditure and development cost for Jeju Shinhwa World
as well as the payment of interest expenses and general working
capital. As at 31 December 2021, approximately HK$27,500,000 has
been applied towards the maintenance, renovation and upgrade of
the existing facilities within Jeju Shinhwa World and approximately
HK$68,238,000 has been applied towards interest expenses. Taken
into consideration the prevailing market conditions and the Group's
liquidity position, the Group has exercised caution in utilizing the
fund raised and intends to apply the balance of the proceeds largely
for interest expenses so as to maintain a healthy balance sheet.

Movements of the share capital of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 224.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman)

Ms. Chan Mee Sze

Mr. Yeung Lo

Dr. Wong Hoi Po

Ms. Pu Shen Chen

Mr. Huang Wei (appointed on 14 April 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Chun Kei
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham
Mr. Du Peng (appointed on 12 March 2021)
Mr. Lin Liangyong
(ceased on 12 March 2021)

In accordance with Bye-Law 84(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
code provision B.2 of the CG Code under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, Dr. Wong Hoi Po, Ms. Pu Shen Chen and Mr. Li Chun Kei will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and are
eligible for re-election.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in information
of Directors are set out below:

Name of Director Details of changes

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

R
AR
RiIE EHRBNE1351B(1)  EFERNEBHH

Fan

BEEHR BEFRE

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham —  Acted as a member of the HKSAR Legislative Council until 31 December 2021

Vari T Pl — EAREARITREFEHEEE T - —F+=-_A=+—H

Mr. Yeung Lo —  Adjusted the annual remuneration from HK$2,118,000 to HK$1,758,000 (equivalent to
monthly salary from HK$176,500 to HK$146,500) with effect from 1 October 2021 to 31
December 2022

BERLE — FEFHMAE2118000F T FAEE1,758,000F T(HHE N AFHF R 176,500 THESR

146,50087T) B2 - —F+A—BHEE_ZT-_"F+-_A=+—HEXK

Dr. Wong Hoi Po S

Adjusted the annual remuneration from HK$2,004,000 to HK$1,644,000 (equivalent to

monthly salary from HK$167,000 to HK$137,000) with effect from 1 October 2021 to 31

December 2022
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Ms. Pu Shen Chen —

Adjusted the annual remuneration from HK$2,028,000 to HK$1,668,000 (equivalent to

monthly salary from HK$169,000 to HK$139,000) with effect from 1 October 2021 to 31

December 2022
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company and any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under note 33 to the consolidation financial
statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-Law 164 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and relevant
provisions of the regulations stipulated, every Director or other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
losses and liabilities which he may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto,
and no Director or other officers shall be liable for any loss, damages
or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred by the Company
in the execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto,
provided that this Bye-Law shall only have effect in so far as its
provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda Companies Act.

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year.
The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO), which are
required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii) pursuant
to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Percentage of
issued Share

Number of Long or Capital of the

Name Capacity Shares held  Short Position Company
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Dr. Yang Zhihui ("Dr. Yang”) Held by controlled 1,481,567,297 Long 35.06%
MEEEL ( [MMEL] ) corporation (Note) 4f&

PRIEH 2 R RHA (BHEE)
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Note: 1,481,567,297 ordinary shares are held by Landing International Limited

("LIL"), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire
issued share capital is held by Dr. Yang. Dr. Yang is one of the directors of
LIL as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors was a director or employee of a company which had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO and
none of the Directors, the chief executive of the Company nor their
associates had any other interests or short positions in the shares of
the Company, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any such Director or the
chief executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
(c) to be notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to

the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested
in any business apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business as at the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the issued
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share capital of the Company.

Percentage of
issued Share

Number of Long or Capital of
Name Capacity Shares held  Short Position ~ the Company
HARRF
ERITRA
"L LB g% FEROEE HFRIKE Bak
LIL Beneficial Owner 1,481,567,297 Long 35.06%
B S ERR EmEBA (Note 1) #FE
(M3
Ms. Xu Ning ("Ms. Xu") Interest of spouse 1,481,567,297 Long 35.06%
Hrrt(Tthzx]) [T (Note 1) #FE
(B3
Wealth Millennium Limited Beneficial Owner 704,374,800 Long 16.67%
("Wealth Millennium™)
Wealth Millennium Limited BB A (Note 2) Hf@
([ Wealth Millennium )
(M3E2)
Ms. Lam Pauline (“Ms Lam”) Held by controlled 704,374,800 Long 16.67%
MESZE((HEt]) corporation
IR A/NCIE ¥ =] (Note 2) &
(MF3E2)
Tinmark Development Limited Held by controlled 138,283,200 Long 3.27%
("Tinmark™) corporation (Note 3) &
Tinmark Development Limited FriE®l 2 RRIFHE (Ff3E3)
([Tinmark])
Beneficial Owner 79,201,200 Long 1.87%
EnEEA (Note 3) #f&
(M3E3)
Mr. Yao Jianhui (“"Mr. Yao") Held by controlled 217,484,400 Long 5.14%
phrEsE oA ([ ke E ) corporation (Note 4) 7=
Frizslz ARFE (PffE4)
Beneficial Owner 4,425,600 Long 0.11%
EmEBA (Note 4) ifE
(MF3E4)
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Notes:

1. LIL, whose entire issued share capital is held by Dr. Yang, is interested in
1,481,567,297 shares of the Company. Ms. Xu is the spouse of Dr. Yang.
Under the SFO, Ms. Xu is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Dr. Yang is interested in.

2. Wealth Millennium, whose entire issued share capital is held by Ms. Lam, is
interested in 704,374,800 shares of the Company.

3. Tinmark, through its owned subsidiaries, holds 138,283,200 shares of the
Company. Together with 79,201,200 shares of the Company beneficially
owned by Tinmark, representing approximately 5.14% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company.

4. Tinmark, is a controlled corporation wholly owned by Mr. Yao, which is
interested in 217,484,400 shares of the Company. Together with the 4,425,600
shares of the Company beneficially owned by Mr. Yao, Mr. Yao is deemed to
be interested in a total of 221,910,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 5.25% of the total number of issued shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no other person
(other than the Directors and the chief executive of the Company)
or their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of, the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No disclosure was required for the connected transaction(s), if any,
according to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of any of listed securities
of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 16% of the annual revenue and
purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers represented
less than approximately 34% of the Group's total purchases. The
sale to the largest customer represented approximately 5% of the
annual revenue and purchase from the largest supplier represented
approximately 10% of the annual purchase. None of the Directors
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 2.5 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
management of the Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are considered and reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the year are set out below:
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Share Option Schemes
2020 Share Option Scheme

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 17
September 2020, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2020 Share Option
Scheme”) which became effective on 17 September 2020. Under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant options to
the participant to subscribe for the Company'’s shares subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the 2020 Share Option Scheme will be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the date on which it
became effective.

Details of the 2020 Share Option Scheme are as follows:
(@)  Purpose

The purpose of the 2020 Share Option Scheme is to reward
the participants who have contributed or will contribute to
the Group and to encourage the participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(b)  Participants

The participants of the 2020 Share Option Scheme comprise
of any Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
employees of the Group, any director or employee of a
company or entity in which the Group has invested in and any
advisors (professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners,
joint venture business partners, promoters, any director or
employee of any service providers of any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed
to or will contribute to the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the 2020 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the 2020 Share Option Scheme. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the 2020 Share Option
Scheme and (as the case may be) such other share option
schemes of the Company under which such options are granted
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating whether the
abovementioned scheme mandate limit has been exceeded.

The total number of shares available for issue under the 2020
Share Option Scheme is 352,187,751 shares, representing 8.3%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under the
2020 Share Option Scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not (when
aggregated with any shares subject to options granted during
such period under any other share option schemes of the
Company other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting) exceed 1%
of the shares in issue for the time being.

Any further grant of options to a participant would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such further grant representing
in aggregate over 1% of the shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by shareholders in general
meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting, and all other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant who is a connected
person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled or outstanding) under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme to each participant who is an
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as such
term as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any
of their respective associates, in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue on the date of such grant and
the aggregate value based on the closing price of shares on the
date of such grant shall not exceed HK$5,000,000.

Any further grant of options in excess of the above-mentioned
limit shall be approved by the shareholders with all connected
persons of the Company abstaining from voting in favour at
such general meeting.

Period with which the shares must be taken up under an option

The period to be determined and notified by the Board to the
grantee at the time of making an offer which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The 2020 Share Option Scheme does not specify a minimum
period for which an option must be held nor a performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised. However, the rules of the 2020 Share Option Scheme
provide that the Board may determine, at its discretion, such
term(s) on the grant of an option, which decision may vary on a
case by case basis.
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Amount payable upon acceptance of the option and the period
within which payment must be made

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the participant
concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of grant
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after
the expiry of the option period or after the 2020 Share Option
Scheme is terminated or after the participant has ceased to
be a participant. An option shall be regarded as having been
accepted when the Company receives from the grantee the
duplicate of the offer letter, comprising acceptance of the offer,
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of
option. Such remittance is not refundable in any circumstances.

Basis of determining the subscription price of the options

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a Business Day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.

Remaining life of the 2020 Share Option Scheme
The 2020 Share Option Scheme became effective on 17

September 2020 and will remain in force for a period of ten
years from that date.

During the Year, no share option has been granted, exercised or

cancelled under the 2020 Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s

Bye-Laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company

to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable or other donation of approximately
HK$3,083,000 during the Year.

AUDITOR

Zenith CPA Limited shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re- appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Ol

SO A BB

REARRAIAFRESZENRLESHAA
EXERABARANBEAFE—ERFRESR
Z EMRABRERARTIE

Hak
AEERBERAFECFLHESHEMIBRY
3,083,000 7T °

23 ]

HEREAMEBAARRAFRAR A EEK
RBEAGREALTEEBRBENE LEE -

On behalf of the Board

Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B8 A% S

ASSURANCE | TRANSACTIONS | ADVISORY

ZENITH@%

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LANDING INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Landing
International Development Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “"Group”) set out on pages 82 to 222, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
Material Uncertainty Related To Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicated that the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$781,906,000 as at 31 December 2021 and incurred a net loss
attributable to owners of the parent of HK$1,055,766,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021. These conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in note 2.1, indicate that material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

The Group's Cash Incident

We also draw attention to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, which describes the Group's cash incident (the “Cash
Incident”) and reported a loss of KRW4,405,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$28,961,000) in the previous year. As at the reporting date, the
Cash Incident is still under investigation by the Jeju Special Self
Governing Provincial Police Agency of Korea (the “Jeju Police”),
together with KRW10,150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$66,556,000)
held by the Group as at 31 December 2021 and subsequent cash
found by the Jeju Police, totalling of KRW13,400,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$87,867,000) has been seized and retained by the Jeju Police
until the investigation process of the Cash Incident is complete. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

T A% B e

A
BERESEHBcERTHBRE

BMEFRREISREVBmERMT21 - 9
EEER - -_—F+_A=+—8HZ2
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HREETEE

CESHENAE Y

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz BT NNEERRENSEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment of the
business for development and operation of the integrated leisure
and entertainment resort operated in Jeju Shinhwa World (the
“Integrated Resort Development Business”)
RENSFEEARNEECRREQREGERARREEBRN XL (F
EERBRRERER ) 2YX  BERREZBETG

Refer to Notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRI A ERERAEIR 14

The Group has been developing the Integrated Resort Development
Business, which includes hotels and theme park operated in Jeju
Shinhwa World. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$29,193,000 related to the
Integrated Resort Development Business, and the carrying amount of
the property, plant and equipment related to the Integrated Resort
Development Business amounted to HK$8,658,885,000 as at 31
December 2021 which mainly included hotels and theme park.
EEELRRECERBRERER  ETEERNEMNMELEREEL
BERTEAE BE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE  EXE
AR EREEREFELEEANFMT 2919300087 - RZFZ—F
T-A=1—0B SeEREZEREXBZYE  BENMRBEZREE
#38,658,885,000/87C * ERERBHEEREELE -

In determining whether property, plant and equipment related to the
Integrated Resort Development Business were impaired, it required
an estimation of the fair value less cost of disposal of the relevant
assets. The fair value less cost of disposal was determined by the
management with reference to the market value.

ErTARSaEREEREB YR BELRBAESRER @ Aff
AAFEERLEEHEBEEZAE - ERELETMEEEATFEER

Management engaged an external valuer to assist in performing an
impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment related to
the Integrated Resort Development Business.
EEERFISAEMGNETARGAEREEREBZYE - B
Pe X st 2 BB R ©

We focused on this area due to the significance of the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment related to the Integrated Resort
Development Business in the consolidated statement of financial
position and significant judgements required by management in
assessing if impairment indicators were existed at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position.

B INLER  REERGSERRERER 2WE - BEKR
BzRAEHFESMBRARKEEE - N LEEENGS MBI
* BB AREREREAFERFELERAL -

Our procedures in relation to the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment
related to Integrated Resort Development
Business included:
EMBGEEBRERREE ZNE BERR
RREEZEFERE :

— Understanding, evaluating and
validating the operating effectiveness
of the controls over the additions of the
property, plant and equipment related
to Integrated Resort Development
Business;

TR FEREREEREERRER
EB2IERRIMIE - BB RREBZE
YERCRR

— Performing substantive test on
the additions during the year on a
sample basis by examining relevant
documents such as invoices to evaluate
whether additions have been properly
capitalised;
RERNMBEEBEIIKAETES LA
& DERREBREZHEYE XM ARG
BINKAZEEHEE BN

— Evaluating management'’s policy in
determining the estimated useful life
and depreciation;

ML EEEEE A EAFHRATE
R

— Assessing the competency, objectivity
and independence of the external
valuer engaged by management,
and discussing with the external
valuer about their scope of work, and
assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology used; and
AT I8 JE P HS AR SN ER 1 (B 2 B A% -
BEERE MBI - EINBEEM R
ETREBETHW  LAEAAZ
HEFEEERE &

— Understanding and evaluating the
Group's procedures regarding the
identification of sources of information
relevant to impairment indicators.
TR BESEHENEEREER
BB RIRIREVIZFF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HREETEE

T A% B e

IoH i 2 = 0 ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz BT NNEERRENSEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment for the business and operation of the gaming
and entertainment facilities operated in Jeju Shinhwa World (the
“Gaming Business”)
REMGEERAANEECBERRERBILEEREB 2HE - BF
BEEURYE - BERREZRETE

Refer to Notes 3, 14, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial
Sstatements.

BRRGR A TSR GE3 14~ 1718 °

The Group recognised impairment loss of HK$398,449,000 on the
intangible asset allocated to Gaming Business, respectively, during
the year ended 31 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, carrying
amounts of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment related to the Gaming Business were Nil, HK$169,636,000
and HK$82,978,000, respectively.
BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE  BEEEERSRTERES
DE 2 BV EE ZRERIE 398,449,000 - R-E-—F+_H
=t—B AEBERBONZIEE  BYEEARDE  BEER
HBZRIEDRIAZ - 169,636,000 47T & 82,978,000 & TT °

In determining whether goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment related to the Gaming Business were impaired,
it required an estimation of the value-in-use of the relevant assets.
The value in use was determined by the management based on the
five-year profit forecast of this cash generating unit discounted to its
present value.
EETEBYRBHEBILEHE  BREENNRYE  BEMREBRS
BERER  FRHBREEZEREBEETH - EREEIHER
BERUBREFBUVURERAREZ AFHEMNBAERE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on goodwill,
intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment related to the Gaming Business
included:
EMPREEEETRAYEBER2HE - &
HEEURN¥ BERRERENGZRF
B

— Evaluating management’s five-year
approved cash flow forecast;
A EREECAFHEHAER ERETR
Al

— Assessing the competency, objectivity
and independence of the external valuer
engaged by management;

AR ERERRIE BN R ER 2 B
FERE KB

—  Discussing with the external valuer about
their scope of work, and evaluating
the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;
EANBIEERM R EF 2 TIESRETT
i WaHhFTAZ MEFERRRE ¢

— Assessing the reasonableness of the

key assumptions used by the external
valuer and management such as
revenue growth rate, terminal growth
rate and discount rate by comparing
these assumptions against historical
information, relevant market data and
industry research;
AN EMREREMA . FER
RELGEE  MHEERE  HRIER
RRBEER - HERBZERREBHE
BR - MBS EEBLRITERTRETL
5
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREETEE

ToH 2 it = 0 (4

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz BT NNEERRENSEE

Management engaged an external valuer to assist in performing
an impairment assessment on the goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment related to the Gaming Business using
a value-in-use calculation.

ERERRINBEEMGAACABEFE Y REYEKBE A
B BEEARYE - BB MREETRERE -

We identified impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment related to the Gaming Business as a key audit
matter due to the significant management judgements involved in the
underlying assumptions of the impairment assessment, including the
revenue growth rate, terminal growth rate and discount rate.
HREREFEEHBRRTILEEENERAE  BEKaER
R REERREERE  HREABYEEZEHE  BREENNR
WE - BEMEEIBREMS - RF@EH SREREZSEER -

Testing the arithmetical accuracy on the
value-in-use calculation of the Gaming
Business; and
AABEEBEREEAEZEM 2B
FERRE &

Evaluating the potential impact of the
impairment assessment based on the
possible changes of key assumptions
used in the valuation model.

RIB A ERE P A BERRR 2 AT ae &
FHERE O BERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HREETEE

T A% B e

ToH 2 =0 (4)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Rz BT NNEERRENSEE

Determination of net realisable value of properties under
development ("PUD") and completed properties held for sale
("CPFS")
BRIMX(BRINXDRSGECERNE(FECERDE]D 2
RRFEZER

Refer to Notes 3, 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRI B AL - 21 K22 -

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group's
properties under development and completed properties held for
sale amounted to HK$113,921,000 and HK$609,974,000, respectively.
These balances were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

RZZBZ—F+ZA=+—H0  E5EEZEETVERGFECERKDME
ZBREE D Bl 7 113,921,000 % 7T & 609,974,000 & 7T © 7% & 4 /IR AK
REAT]EIRFEME R 2 BIEEER

The calculation of the net realisable value of the PUD and CPFS as at
31 December 2021 was performed by the management.
EREN T - —F+ A=+ HiEERTMERGEDERY
FZAI I RE -

We considered the determination of net realisable value of PUD
and CPFS as a key audit matter because the calculation of the net
realisable values of PUD and CPFS involve significant management
judgements and estimations in determining the estimated costs to
complete each property development project as well as in assessing
the expected future net selling prices for each property development
with reference to recent sales transactions generated internally or
nearby locations, the estimated future selling costs and relevant taxes.

FH RAERFABEZRRTVENRGECERMEZAIZRFEL R
EREEEBHE MG UAERL TR ESRYEERIAR 2K
e UWRSZERISEOEOAMHEER S - Hat RREEKA R
AMEAMMESEYFERAR ZERRIFEE -

Our procedures in relation to assess the net
realisable value of PUD and CPFS included:
RS FEERTARRGECERNRTE
BFEZRFEE

Assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the preparation
and monitoring of management budgets
and forecasts of property development
projects;

AR NEREEERE R EE
RIEBBEAMG EHERAMBERE 2R
it B SEERR

Conducting site visits to property
development sites on a sample basis,
and discussing with management about
the progress of property development
projects; and

WMERKRMFRRIAB AN - YERE
EENWYRERRE 2ER - K&

Comparing the estimated selling prices
to the recent market transactions making
reference to the latest of the Group’s
selling prices of the sold units in the
same project or the prevailing market
prices of comparable properties with
similar sizes, usages and locations, after
considering future market development.
REBARTHERR  BB2E &
SEMERBEAECDEEN R EENE
PURE - ARz RMEZ
BIIMSER - S HEEREIH
MIHRXBEITLE -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Lee Kwok Lun.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Kwok Lun

Practising Certificate Number: P06294
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A AR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E —ZT - —F+-A=+—BILFE

2021 2020
—F-—-F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FE T T
REVENUE Y= 5 1,349,996 788,011
Cost of properties and inventories sold B I EWERFE ZHKA (244,875) (110,812)
Other losses, net HubEsiE - FE 6 (35,365) (72,604)
Gaming duties and other related taxes TR R E 8B FE (7,451) (24,296)
Amortisation and depreciation BENITE (589,632) (620,508)
Employee benefit expenses EERFER (540,537) (553,574)
Other operating expenses HEipeiEE A (551,784) (685,540)
Finance costs, net BARSRR » JF5E 8 (134,443) (125,020)
Fair value gains/(losses) on WEYEZ N EERZ
investment properties, net (E18) - F5 112,809 (343,496)
Impairment of goodwill and REREEERE
intangible assets (398,449) (299,900)
Impairment of trade and JEW B 5 /IR K EoAth WK IR
other receivables, net BE - EEE (782) (52,815)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB ATEE 7 (1,040,513) (2,100,554)
Income tax expenses iSRS 11 (15,253) (14,447)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE ®BATREEAELEESRE
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT (1,055,766) (2,115,001)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ®BAR#EAEAELERER
OWNERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic HAR K(26.84) cents HK(63.28) cents
Bl AL
Diluted g K(26.84) cents HK(63.28) cents
AL P
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aok 1 2 T AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZE—ZT - —F+-A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—F-—-F —B-FHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kg THET T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBR (1,055,766) (2,115,001)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hfth 2 H (B51#8) Wz
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that ABER AR E#R 72
may be reclassified to profit or loss Ba 2 A2 H
in subsequent periods: (E1E) W -
Exchange differences on translation BEBINRBZERZRE
of foreign operations (707,178) 521,488
Release of exchange reserve RSB A R 2
upon disposal of subsidiaries b 5 30 = 19,296
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income AR HB M ER D EE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss in Bam  Efham|
subsequentperiods | UBR) WamFEw A7) Bl
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will  #51 &R A 1£ BRI E 3757 25 2
not be reclassified to profit or loss B Al 2 E
in subsequent periods: Wean (E#8) -
Remeasurements of employee B EEERNER
benefit obligations 514 4,345
Equity investments designated at fair value  #87E A AT EBEF AEM
through other comprehensive income: 2HNKE 2 RIERE -
Changes in fair value NFEEED (12,463) (5,42¢6)
Net other comprehensive loss that will BrenrEgiBfRER »EE
not be reclassified to profit or loss Bz B 2 EERFRE
in subsequentperiods (_1_‘!,_949_) ___________ ( _1,081_)_
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FEHM2ME (FE), W
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HIBR# 18 (719,127) 539,703
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR BAREAARGEERE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRARE
OWNERS OF THE PARENT (1,774,893) (1,575,298)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ak £ S IR LA

As at 31 December 2021 R=Z-—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E—fF —E-THF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BfaE FiExT FA&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KRB 14 8,787,003 10,210,788
Investment properties wEME 15 666,410 537,164
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 2,992 7,857
Goodwill S 17 = =
Intangible assets BVEE 18 171,643 614,911
Equity investments designated at EERBRATEBER AR
fair value through other comprehensive 225 2 IR HEISE
income 19 17,957 30,420
Prepayments, trade and other TERNFRIAE - EME 58 K
receivables H A FE W R IR 20 4,154 110,410
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 9,650,159 11,511,550
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development BERAPYE 21 113,921 122,622
Completed properties for sale CASNIDEIES 22 609,974 875,637
Inventories rE 23 63,817 70,497
Prepayments, trade and other TERRIE - BUE HRIER
receivables H A fE IR 20 184,571 314,683
Tax recoverable A Yz [B] 7 TE 57 6,135
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 24 66,556 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEED 24 820,917 647,418
Total current assets mENE EMEE 1,859,813 2,036,992
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables JERE 5508 Rk E b e 53R 25 508,629 471,735
Interest-bearing bank borrowing SHRRITER 26 2,114,515 829,234
Lease liabilities HEBE 16(b) 1,663 7,689
Tax payable JESRIR 16,912 8,286
Total current liabilities mEN B ERE 2,641,719 1,316,944
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS #BI(BEFE) EEFE (781,906) 720,048
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BREERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,868,253 12,231,598
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Aok o B B IR L A

As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=—F+=-H=+—H

2021 2020
—E—fF —EIERF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MIsE FET FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5518 R H A FE T 5RIB 25 11,890 31,877
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FHEIRITIEE 26 = 1,707,264
Lease liabilities HEARE 16(b) 1,664 786
Deferred tax liabilities FEFHIEEE 27 44,364 45,054
Total non-current liabilities IERE B ERE 57,918 1,784,981
Net assets BEEFE 8,810,335 10,446,617
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BRAREE AEGER
of the parent
Share capital [N 28 42,263 35,219
Reserves i 29 8,768,072 10,411,398
Total equity e 8,810,335 10,446,617
Yang Zhihui Wong Hoi Po
e E25))4

Chairman and Executive Director

FTERIITEF

Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR MBS A B R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E —ZT - —F+-A=+—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADEHEEAELR
Share Other Accumulated Total
capital reserves losses equity
EN HitfRfe RitER ol 3
(Note 28) (Note 29) (Note 29)
(Pff=E 28) (FizE 29) (B zE29)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TER
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-F-H 35,219 17,369,109 (6,957,711) 10,446,617
Loss for the year EEER - - (1,055,766) (1,055,766)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FEEMEABE
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligation ~ EFEEERFIEMT - 514 - 514
Changes in fair value of equity investments at RATEEF AL M2 ERE
fair value through other comprehensive income ZREREZ AT EEES - (12,463) - (12,463)
Exchange differences on translation of MEBNEB ERER
foreign operations - (707,178) - (707,178)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EEAEBRASE - (719,127) (1,055,766) (1,774,893)
Release of revaluation of investment properties REEZNE - BERRER
upon transfer to property, plant BEORENEZEE
and equipment - (950) 950 -
Release of revaluation of investment RESHR B 55
properties upon written-off BEZENE 2 ER - (1,097) 1,097 -
Issue of shares (Note 28) 17itn (HH5E28) 7,044 131,718 - 138,762
Share issue expenses (Note 28) BRER(ME28) - (151) - (151)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--£+-A=t+-H 42,263 16,779,502* (8,011,430) 8,810,335
At 1 January 2020 R-2-Bf-A-H 29,350 16,700,180 (4,844,763) 11,884,767
Loss for the year EEER - = (2,115,001) (2,115,001)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREAMREESE :
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligation ~ EfErEEEBFET - 4,345 - 4,345
Changes in fair value of equity investments at RATEETALEERR
fair value through other comprehensive income 2R E 2 AEEEEE = (5,426) = (5,426)
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBER
foreign operations - 521,488 - 521,488
Release of exchange reserve upon R EMRBARERRZ
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 30) B 5 i (P 30) - 19,296 - 19,296
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEPAEBRASH = 539,703 (2,115,001) (1,575,298)
Release of revaluation of investment properties REEEYE « BE L& ER
upon transfer to property, plant BERENE 2B
and equipment - (2,053) 2,053 -
Issue of shares (Note 28) 17t (5 28) 5,869 132,070 - 137,939
Share issue expenses (Note 28) EARE (M 28) = 791) = 791)
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+-A=1+-A 35,219 17,369,109* (6,957,711)* 10,446,617

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * W EFHBEEESGAVBRIRZEE
HK$8,768,072,000 (2020: HK$10,411,398,000) in the consolidated fi# #58,768,072,000/8 (= T = T 4 :
statement of financial position. 10,411,398,000/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBemER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZE—ZT-—F+-A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—BE--f e St -3
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FifsE TET THT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES B&(BzRERE
Loss before tax FRBATE B (1,040,513) (2,100,554)
Adjustments for: HEE
Dividend income from equity investments at AT EEF AEMEENE 2
fair value through other comprehensive R E 2 IREWA
income 6 (76) (484)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR ZER 6 = 21,386
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, &M « HiEKFEER 2
plant and equipment BB/ () 6 2,622 (5,471)
Investment properties written off REYEMH 6 3,585 -
Loss on disposal of right-of-use asset and RERIHAEREE
lease liability on early termination CRREEREEREVER
of lease 6 - 18,950
Revision of a lease term arising from a change AN A M S EE
in the non-cancellable scope of a lease FTEE & 2 MEIRRIERT 6 - (1,013)
Derecognition of interest accretion REBOBTREERRILER
on early redemption of bank borrowings ZMBER 6 1,772 815
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 413 « BE kFEEITE 7 581,912 607,548
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEECITE 7 7,374 12,629
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE B 7 346 331
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets ~ FEREF EER(E 398,449 299,900
Impairment of trade receivables, net [EWE 5 FIERE T 7 434 74
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of B ERFERE (RERE)
gaming receivables, net R 7 6,726 (7,720)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of Hi UG IECRERER) JRE -
other receivables, net R 7 (6,378) 60,461
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1% + R K& 2 R{E 7 50,660 184,887
(Reversal of provision)/provision for inventories 775 (B & ) /Bl 7 (2,203) 1,398
Fair value (gains)/losses on BREMEZ ATFEEME)/
investment properties, net &8 38 (112,809) 343,496
Finance costs BBRA 8 141,717 146,304
Finance income FIHA 8 (7,274) (21,284)
26,344 (438,347)
Decrease in completed properties for sale FEEERMFERD 178,363 67,800
Decrease in inventories FERDY 2,373 8,760
Decrease in prepayments, trade and BAHIE - ERE SHEREAM
other receivables MR 223,286 554,141
Increase/(decrease) in trade and BB 5508 R E b e 7R
other payables =,/ (OR) 51,065 (59,759)
Increase in restricted cash SRR LM (68,916) =
Cash generated from operations REXBHAERS 412,515 132,595
Interest received EYFI S 7,274 21,284
Interest paid ERME (141,387) (123,977)
Interest element on lease liabilities MEEENEHH (330) (1,447)
Income tax refunded BREIFTEH 5,783 1
Income tax paid BAT{EH (7,744) (11,045)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEBEMSREREFH 276,111 17,411
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBleiER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E—ZT - —F+-A=+—HBILFE

2021 2020
—E--F —T-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Fifst TER THET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZFHZRERE
Dividend received from equity investments BURERE 2 RE 76 484
Proceeds from derecognition of financial assets 4 IFERE N FEEFABZEZ
at fair value through profit or loss M EEMSHIE - 2,527
Purchase of items of property, plant BEWE  BENRREER
and equipment 14 (31,946) (6,939)
Additions of items of completed REFECEKYMEEE
properties for sale (15) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, &M - BE REHEER
plant and equipment S s08 2,694 150,561
Additions of intangible assets NEEREE 18 = (526)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARFTETIE 30 = 118,864
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities 1% & E)(FT),/Fii5REREFHE (29,191) 264,971
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZE HEHRE
Net proceeds from placing of shares A& AR TS s IR F 2 28 138,611 137,148
New bank borrowings FERITEE = 1,890
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERBTIEMEE (229,227) (186,797)
Principal portion of lease payments MENFAEHH 31 (7,649) (18,713)
Net cash flows from financing activities BETHMEREREFH (98,265) (66,472)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEMEMFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 148,655 215,910
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FPzReKASEEY
of the year 647,418 398,033
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ INEEXREH) 7 &/& « F5 24,844 33,475
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND ~ §#ZHRERALEEY
OF THE YEAR 820,917 647,418
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBESENGEHR DN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B e RIRTT 45 24 650,652 477,390
Non-pledged time deposits with original BERREHEIR=(EA2
maturity of less than three months EERTHER
when acquired 24 170,265 170,028
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in IBHRARAT 2 RE KRR EE
the statement of financial position -t 820,917 647,418
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). The address of registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda, and the principal place of
business of the Company is located at Units 1412-1413, 14th
Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, Nos. 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group is principally engaged in
development and operation of the integrated leisure and
entertainment resort (the “Integrated Resort Development”),
operation of gaming and entertainment facilities (the “Gaming
Business”), and property development (the “Property
Development”).

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate and ultimate
holding company of the Company is Landing International
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1

ok 7 S 25 R M

257 B 45 5

RARARFAEHSTEMNLERER
EGBZ2ERAR HRORBBHA
REMBRARIBRA]) R L -
AR R) 2 5k M 3% = Bt ik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda ' MARAZF BE M2
R BB THET 168-20057 5@ L3
BRAE141E1412E1413F -

FA - AEETERFTERIGLHEEIK
HARREERR((FEEREBRRE]) &
B MRERE([HERER]) kR
ROMERR]) -

BEERA ARAZEERERIZER AT
RN RBREIEBEMKY 2 ERERE
fRAA]

FEMB AR ZER
ARREEMBAR ZFBWAT :

follows:
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Name registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/ ERR ERTEER/
£ Bexmn EMRE  FAREGESEIL  EERXE
Direct Indirect
Ef 53
Bright House Company Limited Macau Macau Pataca 25,000 - 100%  Investment holding
REARAHA - 25,000 2FI7T RERR
Callisto Business Limited British Virgin Islands United States dollars 100% - Investment holding
("US$") 76,470,000
Callisto Business Limited RERNAES 76,470,000 =7([ %7 )) RERR
Chi Shun Investment (Yangzhou) The People's Republic of China Renminbi (“RMB") - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited (“Chi Shun")* ("PRC") 400,000,000
(Note i) (Note i)
BEREGM)BRRE (8R)F PEARLANE(HE]) ARE(TARS]) REHR
(Bt i) (st i) 400,000,0007C
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

90

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1 2AnREEER(H)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMB AT ZER (&)

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/

Percentage of equity

Name registration and business registered share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR/ R R BERTEER/
L BEXHH dfRE  AAAEERZEASL  FEXRE
Direct Indirect
E# A

Datsun Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Asset holding

KEREARAT 5t 1000087 aziE

Golden House Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100%  Marketing

Golden House Ventures Limited EERNAS 2ET B

Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore dollar - 100%  Investment holding

("SGD") 97,472,000
Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. A 97,472,000 REER
s (T M ])
Landing Entertainment Korea Co., Ltd. South Korea Korean Won 58% 42%  Gaming business
("KRW") 65,387,235,000
Landing Entertainment Korea Co., Ltd.  BJ& 65,387,235,000 5 & BYER
((&8))
Landing Estate Management South Korea KRW100,000,000 - 100%  Residential
Services Co., Ltd. management
Landing Estate Management B 100,000,000% FxER
Services Co., Ltd.

Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. South Korea KRW465,000,000,000 50% 50%  Development,
management,
operation and
rental of facilities for
tourism, commerce,
accommodation
and recreation

EQEMARHA gL L 465,000,000,000 &8 ¥R EE HER
BERE &%
(R RRERS

Landing Management Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$100 100% - Management office

ESEERRAA &R 10077 ERIRER

Landing Resorts Management Hong Kong HK$100 100% - Management office

Company Limited
ESREERERAA &R 10077 ERBZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo A B 5 AR i

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1 A6 REEER(H)

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

TENE AR ZER (&)

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
Name registration and business registered share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/ ERR ERTEER/
e BEXHHR dfRE  AAAEERZEL  FEXRE
Direct Indirect
B L3
Landing Resorts Philippines Republic of the Philippines Philippine Pesos - 100%  Management office
Development Corporation ("PHP") 10,300,000
Landing Resorts Philippines SFREHNE 10,300,000 ERRER
Development Corporation FEERZ
(E 5t ed)
Leader Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Securities Investment
BIABRAA &R 1A BHRE
Rainbow Source Developments Limited  British Virgin lslands US$100 100% - Asset holding
TRERBRAA REBRIES 100 (7 BERNA
Shinhwa World China Co., Ltd. PRC US$59,860,000 - 100%  Sales and marketing
("Shinhwa China")* (Note i) (Note i) services
BRKEESAALE)ARAA i 59,860,000 %7 HERERRS
(g 1) (B ) (AR i)
Yao Zhan Trading Limited British Virgin lslands US$1 100% - Property holding
RRESBRAA RERIES 1%7 NERE

The English name of the company referred to in these consolidated
financial statements represent management’s best effort to translate
the Chinese name of the company, as no English name has been

registered.

Note i:  These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

under PRC law.

Note ii:  The registered capital of Chi Shun amounted to RMB400,000,000,

of which RMB385,020,000 was paid up as at 31 December 2021.
The Group had the remaining unpaid capital contribution of
RMB 14,980,000 as at 31 December 2021.

Note iii: The registered capital of Shinhwa China amounted to

US$59,860,000, of which US$57,844,955 was paid up as at 31
December 2021. The Group had the remaining unpaid capital
contribution of US$2,015,045 as at 31 December 2021.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

B3

MR EEMEX A - RSEAHBE
£ AT X AR ERERR
RBHEZA FR X AT 2 8138 -

MiFEi: WEERBREFEAGERRINEEE
=,

i

MiaEii © 215 MR & AN B A K ¥ 400,000,000

T ERR=ZFE=—F+=A=1+—H
2 & W A R ¥ 385,020,0007C ° A —F
——F+=ZA=t+—H8 ' A&EEHEX
TAHEE AR 14,980,000 7T ©

MiaEiii : 18R A &kl & & 459,860,000 % Tt

HPR—_FE-_—F+-_fF=+—HEE
1157,844,955%TC c R=ZT = —F+=
A=+—8  A"EEHEARZNEERE
2,015,0453<7C °

FRIHEERRIBEFEASBFAXE
BRAKAEEFEEEARLD ZARA]
MELRR - EERRREHEMCHERRZ
FE<TRIBERITE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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oy
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S 785 e A i

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 has been prepared under the going concern
basis, notwithstanding that the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$781,906,000 as at 31 December 2021 and incurred a net
loss attributable to owners of the parent of HK$1,055,766,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the foreseeable future, based on
the cash flow projections of the Group and after taking into
consideration that the Group obtained a letter of intention
from the bank for their willingness of the renewal of the bank
borrowing. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of the bank
borrowing was HK$2,114,515,000 which will be expired within
one year.

Should the bank borrowing is renewed, the directors are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. Consequently,
the consolidated financial statements has been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and liabilities as current assets and liabilities, respectively.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in this
consoldiated financial statements.

Landing International Development Limited & % B B 58 f A FiL A ]

2.1 BAR#

BEAEEN _ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H
BB ERE A781,906,0008 7T 0 R E
E-E-—H+-A=+—HItFEER/A
AEA AFEIL BB F 585 1,055,766,000 75
T BE_E_—F+_A=+—HIEHF
BRATBHRRDIZFELEEERR -
EERE REAEENRESTERIR
KEEAEBEMEBRITENES  BEE
FIRITIEE  AEEBRHEACHEESR
SBH ZIEREITRA B ARKREH R
EFE -RNZZE=—F+=-A=+—H R
TR E 4 52,114,515,0008 7T © R —
FREHE -

WERITIEERBEY  EXEMAEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income which have been
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16  COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June
2021 (early adopted)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"”). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if
the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required
by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without
the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments
and risk management strategy.

The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

96

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of
the Covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient
are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1
January 2021. However, the Group has not received
Covid-19-related rent concessions and plans to apply the
practical expedient when it becomes applicable within the
allowed period of application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate orJoint Venture®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ?

Amendments to HKFRS 17  /nsurance Contracts %°

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies ?
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting Estimates ?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction?
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 [llustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 411

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

g No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

S As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right
to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.4 CAEAMAE MR AR 2 B %R

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments on the Group's accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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o B 5 A R i

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.4 CAEAMAE MR AR 2 B %R

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

102 Landing International Development Limited #5434 B 5 R A L 4 7l

e ()

BRGFHERIE 7 R ZAEFTARE © BB
BEERABGTEREIRAGENREESR
BME  BITAANKARRBEERRESGH
BREKKRA - BERESOBBNKARE
BITAKMMBEXRA(MERTE MR
ERINESEEERREBITRNAMMNE
AP EEEITRAOMBZME - B
FERREBBZTEEAARENERR
EERA) o —MRRITHAARNES LI &
BERE  RIEBRESHOMARELR
HBFHUEBOER  BRIATEREER -
ZEERAB T A BHZE
Fte < FREMIREEN - WEREARE
EREBRERZFETAZFEREN
BRI AREREMBEEZEH -
RFFHRFER - HAMBERZFERA
ZRBFFEREARENERERB BN
FORAE  MEBASILRER -
BHIZFERI A IS HAKE 2 B HH
RERETMNEATE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
[llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

fo A B 5 AR i

2.4 O i 4H i R AR R 2 A i U B R
e ()

BB HHREER < FRUE(=ZF—/1
FE_F_FF)HIN BBV BREER
FH - BEWBEREENEWR - FE
MR EERE 16REM B NEESR
FHERISE 4157 2 BRT A - BEERNAS
B2 AFERT AR

ERUBMEEMNEOFHFE LA :
BB ERAENEH BT B
BEZHERRTERENBAGBLZ
BGRERTAKABEZER - %
FEREEEERARERAZE
EfHE WA HIE(BREAERA
FERARKE T EMNKE WERH
ER) ERUEZERBEAERE
AIMFEREHEMERR 2 &RE
HARBNH R ERBER &
FAIE-E-_—_F—- A BHxZEKHA
Mz FEARRER WAl FE
e BRETH TN AKE 28
BRFEKNERTE °

BEMIERELERNFE16RAE : B
BREBUBREERFE 165N 2
gH13A HEABHERESH
RIS RAERE o WWERSHBRR B RS
B BEHRELENE16RREREEE
15 2 BIERE o

Annual Report 2021 4£# 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 A
oy

2.5

104

S 785 e A i

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FEEGTBORBIE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FEEGTBORBIE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, completed properties for sale, properties under
development, financial assets, deferred tax assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value-in-use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(viii a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bring the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of
the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to accumulated
losses as a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land outside Hong Kong  Not depreciated

Buildings Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 50 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease terms or

4.5% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 10% to 33%
Aircraft 5%
Gaming equipment and 20%

accessories

Structure and other facilities 2% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties for sale

Properties under development and completed properties for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Development cost of properties comprises cost of land use
rights, construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period. Once the construction or development
of these properties is completed, these properties are
reclassified to the appropriate categories of assets. If a property
under development is intended to be redeveloped into an
owner-occupied property, it is transferred to construction in
progress at the carrying amount.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and completed properties for
sale are classified as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Gaming licenses

Gaming licenses acquired in business combinations are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Gaming licenses
have indefinite useful lives and are carried at cost less any

impairment losses.

Trademarks and patents

Trademarks and patents acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
and patents have finite useful lives and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of trademarks and patents over their estimated
useful lives of 7 to 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms

Facilities Over the lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

®)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery, motor
vehicle and office equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued))

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

® the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit loss(es)
("ECL(s)") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FEEGTBORBIE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 180 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade and
gaming receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2—  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3—  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and gaming receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and gaming receivables that contain a significant
financing component, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the general approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, and interest-bearing bank borrowing.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average method.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management. Bank deposits
which are restricted to use are included in “Restricted cash”.
Restricted cash is excluded from cash and cash equivalents
included in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FEEGTBORBIE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

*  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.5 FEEGTBORBIE ()

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the costs, for which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Gaming duties and other related taxes

According to the respective local legislation by the Government
of South Korea, the Group is required to pay certain percentage
gaming tax on the net gaming wins from gaming operations.
In addition, the Group is also required to make certain variable
and fixed payments to the Government of South Korea based
on the gaming wins generated from tables and slot machines
in its possession. These expenses are recognised as “Gaming
duties and other related taxes” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Integrated resort revenue

Revenue from integrated resort, mainly comprised
hospitality, food and beverage sales and services, theme
park ticket sales and retail sales. Revenue from hotel
room rental, food and beverage sales and other ancillary
services is recognised at the point in time when the
services are rendered. Revenue from theme park ticket
sales are recognised at the point in time when the tickets
are used. Revenue from the sale of food and beverage
and sale of goods are recognised when the products are
sold to customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B 5 A R i

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

®)

Gaming revenue

Gaming revenue represents the net difference between
gaming wins and losses. Commissions related directly
to customers and allowances to gaming counterparties
calculated based on certain percentages of net gaming
wins or rolling amount, are recorded as a reduction to
gaming revenue. Gaming contracts include a performance
obligation to honor the patron’s wager and typically
include a performance obligation to provide a product
or service to the patron on a complimentary basis to
incentive in exchange for points earned under the Group's
loyalty programs.

For wagering contracts that include products and services
provided to a patron in exchange for complimentary
commissions or points earned under the Group's loyalty
programs, the Group allocates the estimated stand-alone
selling price of the points earned to the loyalty program
liability and casino revenue. The loyalty program liability
is recognized as a deferral of revenue until redemption
occurs in fair value bases. When redemption of loyalty
program points occurs, the Company recognize revenue.
The stand-alone selling price of each product or service is
allocated to the respective revenue type.

For redemption of loyalty program points with third
parties, the redemption amount is deducted from the
loyalty program liability and paid directly to the third

party.

Commission and allowances to gaming counterparties is
calculated based on certain percentages of net gaming
wins or rolling amount and is recorded as a reduction to
gaming revenue when the relevant services have been
rendered by gaming counterparties.

Unredeemed Chips retained by customers are recognized
as contract liabilities, instead of operating income as they
are not related to gaming play.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(c)

Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the
point in time when the purchasers obtained the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has the present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources

(a)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or

a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before

the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract

liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs

under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or

services to the customer).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover
the goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset
is measured at the former carrying amount of the goods to be
returned, less any expected costs to recover the goods and any
potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The
Group updates the measurement of the asset for any revisions
to the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in
the value of the returned goods.

Share-based payment

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including Directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments ("“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value on the date at
which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's certain subsidiaries which
operate in South Korea are required to participate in a
defined contribution is a pension plan under which the
South Korea subsidiaries pay fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when an employee has
rendered service.

In addition, the subsidiaries in South Korea also operates
a defined benefits scheme in South Korea, the assets of
which are generally held in separate trustee-administrated

funds.

The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds,
determined by periodic actuarial calculations. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define
an amount of pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of services and compensation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued))

The liability recognised in the statement of financial
position in respect of defined benefit pension plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Past-service costs
are recognised immediately as income.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries, which operate
in the Philippines, are members of government-managed
“Social Security System Scheme”. The Philippine
subsidiary is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution
or certain percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and met the minimum mandatory requirements of the
Social Security System Scheme. The Philippine subsidiary
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Certain subsidiaries which operate in Singapore make
contributions to the Central Provident Fund scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. Contributions
to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related service
of the employee is performed. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the fixed contributions have
been paid. The Group's contributions are recognised as
employee compensation expense when they are due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the date of
consolidated statement of financial position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3 EKEEHAR KA

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

Impairment of trade and gaming receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date using a loss rate approach to measure
expected credit losses. The credit risk categorisation is
determined based on a number of factors which include
(i) debtors’ ageing; (ii) historical repayment behaviour
of debtors; and (iii) other debtors’ specific information
available to the Group which is relevant for credit risk
assessment. The credit risk categorisation is adjusted to
reflect subsequent information uncovered to an extent
that such information provides evidence of conditions
existed as at the year end date and forward-looking
information. The expected loss rates are estimated based
on the expected cash flows that can be recovered from
the estimated repayments based on historical recovery
ratios.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
recovery ratio, estimated repayment and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and estimates may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade and gaming receivables is disclosed in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3 EAKEEHAE KA G ()

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

T2 THBEEE (&)
(b)  Impairment of other receivables (b) EftENIERE

The impairment provisions for other receivables are
based on assumptions about expected credit losses. The
Group uses judgements and estimates in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions at the end of each reporting period. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecasts of future economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecasts of future
economic conditions may also not be representative of
a debtor’s actual default in the future. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
results of the assessment and it may be necessary to
make an additional impairment charge to profit or loss.
Details of other receivables are disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and gaming licences
with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether goodwill and gaming
licences with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units or the fair
value of gaming licences to which the goodwill and
gaming licences with indefinite useful lives are allocated.
Estimating the value-in-use and fair value requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a material
impairment loss or further impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and gaming licences
with indefinite useful lives (continued)

The estimated cash flows and discount rate are subject to
higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the current
year due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic
may progress and evolve the volatility in financial markets,
including potential disruptions of the Group's operation
of Integrated Resort Development and Gaming Business.
Changes in the key assumptions including the growth
rates of revenue and costs, working capital needs and
pre-tax discount rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts arising from the
current changing in market conditions after the outbreak
of COVID-19. The duration of the travel restrictions and
the related impact on the financial performance of the
Group is unknown subjecting these key assumptions to
greater uncertainty.

Details of goodwill and gaming licences are disclosed in
notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right- of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value-in-use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22
A

S 785 e A i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

(7)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
fair value of the asset. The fair value for the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment is estimated
based on either (i) fair value less cost of disposal, or (ii)
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by management and by reference to external valuation
reports. Details of property, plant and equipment
are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties for sale

The Group's properties for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Based on the Group's recent
experience and the nature of the subject properties, the
Group makes estimates of the selling prices, the costs
of completion in cases for properties under or held for
development, and the costs to be incurred in selling the
properties based on prevailing market conditions. If there
is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in provision for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale. Such provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the
periods in which such estimate is changed will be
adjusted accordingly. In addition, given the volatility of
the property market and the unique nature of individual
properties, the actual outcomes in terms of costs and
revenue may be higher or lower than that estimated at
the end of the reporting period. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.
Details of properties under development and completed
properties for sale are disclosed in notes 21 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Q)

(h)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including:

() Current price in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences;

(i)  Recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(iii)  Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessment of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Details of investment properties are disclosed in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have
to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

Details of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are considered to
be the Group's Chief Operating Decision-Maker (“CODM").
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to
make strategic decisions. The CODM considers the Group
is operating predominantly in three operating segments as
follows:

(@) Integrated Resort Development;
(b)  Gaming Business; and
(c)  Property Development

The CODM monitors the results of the operating segments
separately for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing
performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of adjusted
profit or loss before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except
that finance costs, net, changes in fair value of investment
properties in Hong Kong, loss on disposal of subsidiaries as
well as head office and corporate income and expenses, net are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, investment properties in Hong Kong, equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income,
tax recoverable and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowing,
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed
on a group basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A s R M
4 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4 rabER(A)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—-S+=-HA=+—HL#F
E
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
=e
EREEZE HRER YIEER st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET THET THET THT
Segment revenue: (Note 5) 238Uz @ (F¥EE5)
Sales to external customers RSMIBRFSZ
SHE 856,406 88,604 404,986 1,349,996
Segment results DEPEE (420,736) (671,820) 207,391 (885,165)
Reconciliation: Ep
Finance costs, net BITEAAS  JFER
(other than interest on (HEAEF B
lease liabilities) BRI (134,113)
Corporate and other EREMRDE
unallocated expenses, net  FY ' F&E (24,635)
Fair value gains on BBREME
investment properties Z N FEERE
in Hong Kong 3,400
Loss before tax R A& 18 (1,040,513)
Segment assets DEPEE 8,912,228 753,571 730,364 10,396,163
Reconciliation: Ep
Investment properties BBREMHE
in Hong Kong 192,400
Equity investments EERBRATER
designated at fair value T AEAM
through other 2 e 2 Bk
comprehensive income ®E&E 17,957
Restricted cash XERHIE 66,556
Cash and cash equivalents R& KIREFEY 820,917
Tax recoverable AU EI B IE 57
Corporate and other P REAMAR DB
unallocated assets BE 15,922
Total assets BERE 11,509,972
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B 5 A R i

4

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

53 HR R (%)
BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HL#HF

E (%)
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
A
wh 3
EREER BREH MERR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TET THET
Segment liabilities PHBEE 289,104 75,425 60,382 424,911
Reconciliation: Hk -
Interest-bearing STERITEE
bank borrowing 2,114,515
Tax payable FER TR 16,913
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEAE 44,364
Corporate and other EREMARDE
unallocated liabilities A& 98,934
Total liabilities BEAE 2,699,637
Other segment information ~ T AZEEEZ
included in segment results: ~ Hfth A ZBER :
Amortisation and depreciation # 5 & T8 541,574 41,166 = 582,740
Impairment of intangible assets & & ER{E = 398,449 - 398,449
Impairment JEWE 5 /I K
of trade and other HAth e FRIE
receivables, net BIE - FEE 4,545 6,726 - 11,271
Fair value gains on investment FEIEEYZE 2
properties in South Korea N EE K (109,409) - - (109,409)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 December 2020

fo A B 5 AR i

53 6B & B (4)
BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=+—HLHF
B

Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
SR
EREERE LR mEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
Segment revenue: (Note 5) &Pk s :  (FfFEES)
Sales to external customers  [AIIMNESEF 2
HE 504,233 186,486 97,292 788,011
Segment results DEFELE (1,280,324) (509,375) 8,725 (1,780,974)
Reconciliation: Eor
Finance costs, net BTSN - JRER
(other than interest on (HEEaERE
lease liabilities) BR5I) (123,573)
Corporate and other R REAM R DB
unallocated expenses, net B + JF%58 (175,621)
Fair value gains on BEBREME
investment properties Z N FEEKE
in Hong Kong 1,000
Loss on disposal of & — AT B A A
a subsidiary ZEE (21,386)
Loss before tax BRTAIEE (2,100,554)
Segment assets DEPEE 9,924,839 1,339,495 963,054 12,227,388
Reconciliation: HAR -
Investment properties BEBREYE
in Hong Kong 189,000
Equity investments EERRATEE
designated at fair value FTAEAD
through other 2 2 AR E
comprehensive income K& 30,420
Cash and cash equivalents  R& KBS EEY 647,418
Tax recoverable BIRdELE 6,135
Corporate and other EREAMARDER
unallocated assets BE 448,181
Total assets BERE 13,548,542
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

53 HR R (%)
BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=+—HLHF

E (%)
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Development Business Development Total
oNe)
EREERE B ER MEER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH FHT FAT
Segment liabilities pan: =Rt 244,880 119,628 28,917 393,425
Reconciliation: Hk -
Interest-bearing STERITEE
bank borrowing 2,536,498
Tax payable R HIR 8,286
Deferred tax liabilities REFIRAE 45,054
Corporate and other EREMARDE
unallocated liabilities BfE 118,662
Total liabilities BEAE 3,101,925
Other segment information ~ st AZEEEZ
included in segment results: ~ Ht D EHER :
Amortisation and depreciation &5 & ITE 542,430 55,166 = 597,596
Impairment of goodwill EEKRELEE
and intangible assets VERER = 299,900 = 299,900
Impairment of trade FEW B 5 I8 K
and other receivables, net H b YRR IE
BE - FE 68,674 (1,572) - 67,102
Fair value losses on investment FEREYIZE 2
properties in South Korea NFEEEE 344,496 - - 344,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A s R M
4 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4 rabER(A)
Geographical information HwEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) RENBEFZWz
2021 2020
=B —F —ECFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
South Korea AR 1,349,996 788,011
The revenue information above is based on the locations A EWEER IR EE PR
of the customers. 5 o
(b)  Non-current assets b) FRBEE
2021 2020
—E—fF —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
South Korea AR 9,257,943 10,554,823
Hong Kong B 198,447 198,186
Others HAftb 15 2,800
9,456,405 10,755,809
The non-current assets information above is based on the N EFERBEEERTREBEERM
locations of the assets and excludes gooduwill, intangible EUETEEEE BEEE &
assets, prepayments, trade and other receivables and RFRIE - BIRE 5 RIE & A FE U
equity investments designated at fair value through other HIEREER/RATEBET AR
comprehensive income. ZHE G 2 RERE )T -
Information about major customers FHRXEEFZEHR
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no single BHE_ZE_—GFR-_T_FTF+_H
customer contributed over 10% of the Group's total revenue. =T —BIEFE #REE-KFPHAEE

W an A RRER B 10% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BRI S R M
5 REVENUE 5 Wik
An analysis of revenue is as follows: W DT -
2021 2020
=B —F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FET
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAAIA Kz 1,330,784 776,269
Revenue from other sources B R K 7
Gross rental income from investment REREYHELEHE
property operating leases HeWABRE 19,212 11,742
1,349,996 788,011
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEAHNHWE
Disaggregated revenue information DR ER

BE-_Z-_—H+-A=+—HLHF

E
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Segments Development Business Development Total
Foe)
Ban:i EREZR EREK MEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TFHT TFHT
Types of goods or services AmRREEE
Hotel rooms B IEE R 581,319 = = 581,319
Theme park ticket sales FHEAREMEEE 75,952 = = 75,952
Food and beverage sales BHIHE 168,615 - - 168,615
Retail sales TE 11,308 - - 11,308
Table games SEEE - 82,037 - 82,037
Electronic machine games BT RERER - 6,567 = 6,567
Sales of properties HEYIZE - - 400,634 400,634
Property management MEEREBERA
fee income - - 4,352 4,352
Total revenue from contracts B FE & XK K=
with customers 4B 837,194 88,604 404,986 1,330,784
Geographical markets HEW S
South Korea AR 837,194 88,604 404,986 1,330,784
Timing of revenue recognition Y 5 7 528 B &
Goods transferred at a point R —BFFE2hEEE
in time Z 837,194 88,604 404,986 1,330,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A s R M
REVENUE (continued) 5 Wk (49)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EFEANWE (&)
Disaggregated revenue information (continued) D E R (HE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-F-FF+-A=+t—HLHF
E
Integrated
Resort Gaming Property
Segments Development Business Development Total
e
pan:i EREEE BRES MEER #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHBT T FET
Types of goods or services AmBREES
Hotel rooms B 5 362,814 - - 362,814
Theme park ticket sales FELBEMRHEE 25,351 = = 25,351
Food and beverage sales BHHE 98,018 = = 98,018
Retail sales TE 6,308 = = 6,308
Table games SHEEL = 178,439 = 178,439
Electronic machine games BT R B = 8,047 = 8,047
Sales of properties HEMZE = = 90,769 90,769
Property management MEEEBWA
fee income = = 6,523 6,523
Total revenue from contracts ~ BFE & AR W
with customers Rk 492,491 186,486 97,292 776,269
Geographical markets i E %
South Korea e 492,491 186,486 97,292 776,269
Timing of revenue recognition U %5 7 52 B5 4
Goods transferred at a point ~ RIE—RFE 28
in time 2 Em 492,491 186,486 97,292 776,269

Annual Report 2021 4£# 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 A
Fo3e)

152

S 785 e A i

REVENUE (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contract and contract related liabilities

In providing goods and services to its customers, there may
be a timing difference between cash receipts from customers
and recognition of revenue, resulting in a contract or contract-
related liability.

The Group primarily has five types of liabilities related to
contracts with customers: (1) loyalty program liabilities, which
represents the deferred allocation of revenues relating to
incentive earned from the loyalty programs; (2) unredeemed
chip liabilities, which represents the amounts owed in exchange
for gaming chips and tokens held by a customer; (3) patrons
deposits and other gaming liabilities, which represents casino
front money deposits that are funds deposited by customers
before gaming play occurs; (4) contract liabilities for sales of
goods and services, which represents the advance payments on
goods and services to be provided, such as advance ticket sales
and deposits on hotel rooms; and (5) liabilities for pre-sales of
properties, which represents advances received from buyers
in connection with the Group's pre-sales of properties. These
liabilities are generally expected to be recognised as revenues
within one year of being purchased, earned, or deposited and
are recorded within other payables, accruals and deposits
received on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Increase in balance mainly due to the increase in advanced
payments received in relation to sales of goods and services
and increase in cash received from buyers in relation to the pre-
sales of properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Contract and contract related liabilities (continued)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

sk (44)
EF AR ()
BRIREXNHHE E (&)
BRRESBHIIWMT

fo A B 5 AR i

Patrons
Loyalty Unredeemed deposits and Sales of
program chip other gaming  goodsand  Pre-sales of
liabilities liabilities liabilities services  properties Total
BHE AER BEEAR  HEER
HEEE SEEE HAEVEE k%  EENE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THERT THERT THERT THERT
Balance at 1 January 2020 R=B-Z2%-f-AH
A <3 3310 16,487 2,344 10,975 18,256 51,372
Increase in contract liabilities as [P RUEEEH
a result of cash received from AHAEEM
customers in advance 8,052 9725 2,660 38,014 74,084 132,535
Decrease in contract liabilities as ~ FAMERM G AR Y
aresult of recognising revenue  BEEHA %’Jﬁi@ﬂ/
during the year was included in
the contract liabilities (7,114) (16,070) (3,049) (34,159 (68,853) (129,245)
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR 265 398 100 941 1,467 3171
Balance at 31 December 2020 ~ R=-B=F&
and 1 January 2021 +TZA=t-BK
—8=-%-f-H
A o3 4,513 10,540 2,055 15,771 24,954 57,833
Increase in contract liabilities as [ FRUEEEEH
a result of cash received from AHAEEM
customers in advance 8,749 15,876 61,739 109,540 433,427 629,331
Decrease in contract liabilities as ~ FAREARK I ARY
aresult of recognising revenue  BESHAHEERD
during the year was included in
the contract liabilities (3,896) (14,621) (60,912) (86,530) (401,347) (567,306)
Exchange realignment B 5 (526) (884) (193) (2,046) (3,088) (6,737)
Balance at 31 December 2021  R=B=—&
TZAZT-H2&R 8,840 10911 2,689 36,735 53,946 113,121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B s R R
6 OTHER LOSSES, NET 6 HAbEHE - HH
2021 2020
—2--F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FEE THET FAET
Dividend income from equity BEAFEEFAEMEE R
investments at fair value through Z BAEIRE 7 B B A
other comprehensive income 76 484
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE 30 - (21,386)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of items of HEWE  WEKRHEER
property, plant and equipment 2 (E518),/ W (2,622) 5,471
Investment properties written off LERENHE 2 ER (3,585) =
Loss on disposal of right-of-use asset RFHXILHERRE 2
and lease liability on early EREEENEEAEZ
termination of lease &8 = (18,950)
Revision of a lease term arising from BRI i $H A9 & &0 [E 2
a change in the non-cancellable FE & 2 HEERIEET
scope of a lease - 1,013
Derecognition of interest accretion  HEFMEEIERT T8 B FRF 4L ETER
on early redemption of the ZABEE
bank borrowing (1,772) (815)
Early redemption charges of the RITEEZIRRELOER
bank borrowing - (2,537)
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N R - R (34,626) (39,428
Others Hit 7,164 3,544
(35,365) (72,604)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

fo A B 5 AR i

B Bt il s 1R
AEEZBRBRABERENR,GEA) T

(crediting): KIF
2021 2020
—EZ—F T TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FH& T FET
Cost of properties and EEMERFERA
inventories sold
— Cost of properties sold —BEEWERKK 178,363 67,678
— Cost of inventories sold —BEFEERKAK 68,715 41,736
— (Reversal of provision)/ —TFE (B ERE) Rt
provision for inventories (2,203) 1,398
244,875 110,812
Employee benefit expenses EERNER(TEEES
(excluding directors’ F(MEE 9))
remuneration (Note 9)):
— Wages, salaries and other —TIT8 HehEM
staff costs* 8 T A+ 481,219 484,712
— Retirement benefit costs** —IRIRAE TR AR ** 37,955 36,337
519,174 521,049
Amortisation and depreciation: BHNMITE:
— Depreciation of property, —ME - BB REEZ
plant and equipment e 14 581,912 607,548
— Depreciation of right-of- —(EAREEZITE
use assets 16(a) 7,374 12,629
— Amortisation of intangible assets ~—#EE & EE 2 4 8H 18 346 331
589,632 620,508
Impairment of trade and JEUE 5 /IR K Bt e U
other receivables, net: FIBRE - FEE
— Impairment of —EWE S FIERE -
trade receivables, net FER 20(i) 434 74
— Impairment/(reversal of — ¥ e RIE
impairment) of WE CRERE) -
gaming receivables, net FEE 20(ii) 6,726 (7,720)
— (Reversal of impairment)/ —E fh e RIAE
impairment of other CR{ERE),BE -
receivables, net FER 20(iii) (6,378) 60,461
782 52,815
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LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

% 58 i A 18 (48)

2021 2020
=F=—F =P
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
bz FET FHET
Expenses included in "Other SATHEMEEER P2
operating expenses” ***: BR o
— Auditor’s remuneration —IZE R &
— Audit services to the —RAARRERMH 2
Company EiHR 2,000 3,500
— Audit services to the —mARE ZHERF]
subsidiaries of the Company R 2 FEET RS 2,834 2,778
4,834 6,278
— Building, equipment and facility =~ —1&F « 3 MR EBERE
maintenance expenses t=4;3) 125,854 111,411
— Bad debt written off 152 BR T 5H = 44,784
— Cash on hand written off —F AR S M 24 - 28,961
— Impairment of property, —WZ - BB REERE
plant and equipment 14 50,660 184,887
— Lease payments not includedin ~ — st AME&EREZ
the measurement of HEFIE
lease liabilities 6,078 9,486
— Sales and marketing, promotion ~ —$HE N EH « HENES
and advertising expenses & 41,380 45,704
— Utilities expenses —RHAEXEH 81,483 69,661

*%k

During the year ended 31 December 2021, government grants
of HK$10,331,000 (2020: HK$8,592,000) and HK$75,000 (2020:
HK$530,000) were received under the “Employment Retention
Subsidy” of the Government of South Korea and the “Jobs Support
Scheme” of the Government of Singapore, respectively. Besides,
government grant of HK$1,064,000 was received under the “Anti-
epidemic Fund” of the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for the year ended 31 December 2020. These
amount are included in the “wages, salaries and other staff costs” and
there are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these
grants (2020: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension
schemes in future years (2020: Nil).

The remaining items of “Other operating expenses” including but not
limited to consumable supplies and administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A R B
FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 WA - HH
2021 2020
—EZ—F —EETF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest expenses: MERAX :
— Lease liabilities —HHEsE (330) (1,447)
— Bank borrowing —RITEE (141,387) (144,857)
Finance costs B 5 B S (141,717) (146,304)
Interest income: FEUWA :
— Bank interest income —IRITRI B UA 560 361
— Other interest income —E B U A 6,714 20,923
Finance income g T ON 7,274 21,284
Finance costs, net MR A - R (134,443) (125,020)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 HEEHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the RiE EmAR B FE R F KK Z383(1)
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong @~ o) MHIEARAT(HEZESA
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure AR HGIZE 2 ERIRER 2 AN FEE S
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as R
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-F4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Executive directors: HITESE
Fees e 11,425 17,245
Other emoluments: Eipl< :
Salaries, discretionary bonuses, Fe - BIBTEL
allowances and benefits in kind ERE N B YR T 9,144 14,332
Employer's contributions to retirement 1B £ Z R IRFEHETEl
benefit schemes HER 302 262
20,871 31,8392
Independent non-executive directors: BUIFRITES :
Fees e 492 686
21,363 32,525
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BRI S R M
9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9  HEIFH ()
Executive directors’ and independent non-executive BITEBENRBYFYTES WS
directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid to executive directors and independent RENEXNTHTEZRBEIIFNTE
non-executive directors during the year were as follows: EZMeT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E--F+-A=1+—BLHF
E
Employer's
contributions
to
Allowances  retirement
and benefits benefit
Name i Fees Salaries in kind schemes Total
Exz
EER BIKEA
ue e BWEA HEER #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TERT TEx FTExT TExT
Executive directors: HTES:
Dr. Yang Zhihui MEsEt 10,000 - - - 10,000
Ms. Chan Mee Sze REBLZL 300 1,200 - 18 1,518
Mr. Yeung Lo BREE 300 1,728 456 106 2,590
Dr. Wong Hoi Po® TEEELe 300 1,614 966 106 2,986
Ms. Pu Shen Chené EEY L 300 1,638 406 58 2,402
Mr. Huang Wai'® BRAED 225 1,136 - 14 1,375
11,425 7,316 1,828 302 20,871
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Li Chun Kei® TR S 120 - - - 120
Mr. Li Liangyong’ MRBEE® 24 - - - 24
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham' AESEET 300 - - - 300
Mr. Du Peng'2 TS 12 48 = = = 48
492 - - - 492
11,917 7,316 1,828 302 21,363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A B i
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9  EIHM(4)
Executive directors’ and independent non-executive BITESRBYFUTESZHE
directors’ emoluments (continued) (#8)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZE-2F+-A=1+—HLHF
E
Employer's

contributions
to
Allowances retirement

Discretionary — and benefits benefit

Name e Fees bonuses in kind schemes Total
EBxz
EI R RIRAER

e RETEAT EWEN REIEE et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TR TAT

Executive directors: HOES:
Dr. Yang Zhihui MEEHL 10,000 13,780 — - 23,780
Ms. Zhou Xueyun? HEP 48 - - - 48
Ms. Chan Mee Sze BEBLL 1,500 - - 18 1,518
Mr. Chu Huafeng’ A T 44 400 - - 444
Mr. Yeung Lo’ BRELE! 2,073 = 76 69 2218
Dr. Wong Hoi Po? FERELe 1,826 = 76 90 1,992
Ms. Pu Shen Chen? BRY KL 1,754 - - 85 1,839
17,245 14,180 152 262 31,839
Independent non-executive BUFHTES -

directors:
Ms. Wang Yuying® FRBL LS 11 - - - 11
Mr. Bao Jingiao™ HEHEE 235 - - - 235
Mr. Li Mingfa FHEREE™ 88 - - - 88
Mr. Li Chun Ke® FEMT S 115 - - - 115
Mr. Nguyen Van Tu Peter* =i 61 - = - 61
Mr. Lin Liangyong’ MRBRE? 62 - - - 62
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham'’ ARRHAE" 114 - - - 114
686 - - - 686
17,931 14,180 152 262 32,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B s R R
9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 HEFHM(H)
Executive directors’ and independent non-executive BITEBENRBYFYTES WS
directors’ emoluments (continued) (#&)
' Appointed on 9 January 2020 TRIE_TF-ANBEZEHE
2 Resigned on 9 January 2020 RIE-TE-ANBEHME
% Appointed on 15 January 2020 SRIE_TE-—A+HHEEERE
* Appointed on 22 January 2020 and passed away on 16 June 2020 CRIBEZEF AT ZBREZARR=Z=F
FRATRBEHE
5 Resigned on 22 January 2020 SRZZEZTHE—AZ+ZHEHE
¢ Appointed on 3 February 2020 CRIZZEF_A=BEZE
7 Resigned on 3 February 2020 TRIZEZZEF_A=HEHE
8 Appointed on 19 February 2020 SRIZBEZEF_ATNBERE
? Appointed on 26 June 2020 and ceased on 12 March 2021 TRIBZEFERAZTRNAREER

MRZZB-—F=R+ - HRILBS

10 Retired on 26 June 2020 ZEZTFANAZFNBERMA

" Appointed on 14 August 2020 TRIZEZZEFNATHBEZRE

12 Appointed on 12 March 2021 PRIZEZ—FZATBHEZE

3 Appointed on 14 April 2021 BRIZE-Z—FMOATHBEERE

There were no other emoluments payable to the executive FRWEENRITESREBIIRITES
directors and independent non-executive directors during the ZHMME(ZE=FF &) o

year (2020: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or RAFE I E = S Yk R E R WA
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. Bz 5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
directors (2020: two directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 of the consolidated financial statement
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2020:

fo A B 5 AR i

T4 d v i e B

RAFE  IAGEaFEEEENEES
(ZZE_ZF  MBEE)  REZMEH
BEHERN EXRA M BRI TS - H
—H(ZETF  ZR)BRESHFLFES

three) non-director highest paid employee are as follows: BEZBHEFBHOT -
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R KEYET 2,376 15,952

Employer’s contributions to a retirement 1B £ Z R IRB A ET SR

benefit scheme 1 85
2,377 16,037

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

REEZERFEEZFHEBENTFUT
AR -

2021 2020
=B —F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 &L E
2,500,00078 7T 1 1

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 B TE
3,500,000 7T = 1

HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 &=
11,000,000 7T = 1
1 3

Annual Report 2021 4£# 161
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o B 5 A R i

11 INCOME TAX 11 Fifesi
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group HE-_ZT-—HF+-_A=+—HILFE"
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong AR EE I MmN R E ST ERT R
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). Taxation Ao HREAESENESHIELEE( =S
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated ZTFE)  BINENZMIBIIRAE
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing | 25 5 A8 & P AE B 2R F A (i 51 JE AR 50 V4 )
in the countries in which the Group operates. ZBRITREGE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current — South Korea BNER — FgR2
Charge for the year FAHER 120 166
Underprovision in prior years BTEFERETR 14,543 =
14,663 166
Current — Elsewhere BNER — Efthith =
(Credit)/charge for the year FR(ER), Tk (2,696) 5,795
Deferred tax (Note 27) EFRTE (M 5E27) 3,286 8,486
Total tax charge for the year FATIBF T 25 15,253 14,447
The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from the AEBRRATEBE 2 HEEKBGRS TR
theoretical amount that would arise using weighted average tax EAERZ NEFIOHRAERBERD
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows: B2EZROT -
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-F4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAxT
Loss before tax BrFi R Es1E (1,040,513) (2,100,554)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REABR 2 EHEA
applicable to profits in the MEMEAE 2 HIA
respective countries (179,060) (432,034)
Adjustments in respect of current tax ARBEFR 2 AHITHIE
of previous years 14,543 —
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (227,627) (193,057)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR HE A IE R 2 587,730 555,067
Tax losses utilised from prior periods 5 @A AR R A 1R (416,975) (97,300)
Tax losses not recognised REERHNTIAEIE 236,642 181,771
Tax charge for the year FABIARX 15,253 14,447
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A s R M
DIVIDEND 12 8
The directors did not recommend the payment of a final EETEEMEBEE=_ZE-_—F+=A
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). =+t —BLEFERNRERE(ZE=F
Fom) e
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13 B Wl N REAG bt 1R
OWNERS OF THE PARENT
The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based BREARREEEB 2 FERETIER -
on:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Loss =]
Loss attributable to owners of AR ESRERR
the parent, used in the basic and i SE A SN
diluted loss per share calculation: A AEIGES (1,055,766) (2,115,001)
Number of shares
ROEE
2021 2020
—gF-—-F —TTF
‘000 ‘000
TR TFh&
Shares &y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR EBRERREE
in issue during the year used in B2 FADBEITE B
the basic and diluted loss per share calculation  J##EF35£k 3,932,924 3,342,256
The Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding REBERAFENEBITEINEEEDE

during the year (2020: Nil).

EEBR(ZE_TE M) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B 5 A R i

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 ¥ - W ekt

Furniture, Gaming
Freehold fixtures equipment Structure
land outside Leasehold and office Motor and andother  Construction
Hong Kong Buildings ~ improvements  equipment vehicles  accessories facilities ~ in progress Total
BRI HENx B %E BERE GERIR
KA%ELY BF 56 RHAZRE RE REH ARl ARIE -h
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
TEn Thn Tén T Tén TEn Tén TEn Tén
31 December 2021 Z8>-£4ZR=1-8
At 1 January 2021 R=B=-%-5-8:
Cost A 1,165,502 7,460,585 38,803 1447915 88,333 145,060 1,808,712 4724 12,197,634
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERWE
and impairment - (469,183) (38,803) (808,377) (60,843) (62,789) (546,851) - (1,986,846)
Net carrying amount RAFE 1,165,502 6,991,402 - 639,538 27,490 8221 1,261,861 42,724 10,210,788
At 1 January 2021, RZB=-%-5-R"
net accumulated depreciation  FRiTERAE
and impairment 1,165,502 6,991,402 - 639,538 27,490 8221 1,261,861 42724 10,210,788
Additions hE - - 1,040 145 - 12 - 30,749 31,946
Depreciation provided for the year FE &R = (148,260) (58) (238,863) (9.560) (19,622) (165,549) - (581912)
Disposals i = = = (437) (1.717) (338) (2,829) - (5317)
Transfers £ 408 = - 2,497 115 = 27,685 (30,705) =
Transfer from investment ERARENE (M3 15)
properties (Note 15) - 3,626 - - - - - - 3,626
Transfer to investment ERERENE (W3H15)
properties (Note 19) - (56,866) - - - - - - (56,866)
Transfer from properties ERRERTYE
under development (Note 21) ~ (fif&¥21) 1930 = = = = = = = 1930
Transfer to properties BREERRONZ
under development (Note 21) ~ (Fif&21) (17 - - - - - - - ()
Transfer from completed propertiesE&# B & B &
forsale (Note 22 & (HE2) - 43,487 - - - - - - 13487
Transfer to completed properties EBZFERER
for sale (Note 22) % (F22) - (19,304) - - - - - - (19,304)
Impairment A - - - (673) - (572) (49,415) - (50,660)
Exchange realignment B A% (89,384) (557,480) - (42867) (1,506) (5821) (89.471) (3.409) (789.938)
At 31 December 2021, RZB=-F
net accumulated depreciation  T=A=t-H"
and impairment BRATEREE 1077619 6,256,605 982 359,340 14,822 55,930 982,286 039 8,787,003
At 31 December 2021: RZB=-F
tZR=1-A:
Cost KA 1077619 6,827,840 1,040 1,331,708 80,882 131,095 1,656,349 39359 11145952
Accumulated depreciation ZHERWE
and impairment - (571,235) (58) (972,368) (66,060) (75,165) (674,063) - (2,358,949)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,077,619 6,256,605 982 359,340 14,822 55,930 982,286 39,359 8,787,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo 1 T 5 A W
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W3 ~ R Rkt (48)
(continued)
Furniture, Gaming
Freehold fixtures equipment Structure
land outside Leasehold and office Motor and andother  Construction
Hong Kong Buidings ~ improvemnents  equipment vehicles Aircraft  accessories faclities ~ in progress Total
BRI BEME AR RE BY& GRIR
KAFHEL B 2B REAZRE g it REf kit kEIR a3t
HK$000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
T TR Fin T T T Fin Thn ThnL T
31 December 2020 ZBIBETIAZT-B
At 1 Janary 2020: A-8-%%-5-8:
Cost A 1177890 68716817 832 1427801 89730 426,531 138,163 1782726 482,586 12445966
Accumulated depreciation ZHERRE
andimpairment (15778) (428517) (35879) (558925) (50,667) (239919 (40054) (375,502) - (1,745.231)
Net carrying amount FHFE 1,162,112 6,448,300 1847 868,876 39,063 186,612 98109 140124 482,586 10,700,729
At 1 January 2020, net acumulated R=3=F%-A-R
depreciation and impaiment  FRAFERAE 1162112 6M830 T84 868,876 3063 186612 B109 140724 1825 10700729
Additions hE o o - = o = b1 = 6878 6939
Depreciation provided for the year £EHERfE - (153969) (689) (212 (10,182 (3630 (19363) (162414) - (607,548)
Disposals HE = = = (1,024) 2331) (146,268) 379 (36279 (21,09) (207,39)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHERA
(Note 30) (H£30) (53171 (63642 - (8.289) (83 - - (5,780 1981 (122.954)
Transfers 1 - 201,781 - 541 - - - 1134 (278,156) -
Transfer from investment BRaRENE (1)
properties (Note 19) - 25816 - - - - - - - 25816
Transfer to investment BEZREME (M3 10)
properties (Note 19) - (55941) - - - - - - (61,683) (117,624)
Transfer from propertes R
under development (Note 21) (B3 21) 6478 188 - - - - - - 124,183 131,049
Transfer to properties ERTEEMNZ
under development Note 2]~ (Hi&£21) (0%) (750 - - - - - - ®) (809
Transfer from completed properties &5 8 FEEEA
forsele Note 22) iz - 164,001 - - - - - - - 164001
Transfer to completed properties  ERZHERER
forsale (Note 22 nx (i) - (21,50 - - - - - - (61923 83173
Impaiment il (1,050) (1431) (7,088) (197) - (31,6%) - - (143421) (184,887)
Exchange realignment B 55975 378305 13 7053 9 - 3803 57976 (12409 511,645
At 31 December 2020, H=8-%%
net accumulated depreciation ~ T=A=1-H>
and impairment FRATERAE 1165502 69140 - 639,53 70 - 8.1 1261861 Q7410210788
At 31 December 2020: H-8-%%
t2A=1-A:
Cost A 1,165,502 7460585 38,803 1447915 88,333 - 145,060 1808712 L 12,197,634
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTERAA
andimpairment - (469,183) (38.803) (808,377) (60,843) - (62,789) (546,851) - (1,986,846)
Net carrying amount RAEE 1,165,502 6991402 - 639,538 2749 - 81 1,261,961 Qi 1020788
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S 785 e A i

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying amount of HK$1,375,739,000
(2020: HK$1,405,418,000) were pledged to banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 26).

The directors considered that certain property, plant and
equipment of the Group were subject to impairment because
(i) respective cash-generating units of these property, plant and
equipment were underperform, suffered from substantial losses
and asset’s value has declined more than would be expected for
the year, or (i) certain subsidiaries continued to underperform
and incurred losses, or (iii) construction in progress were
either terminated or temporarily suspended. The Group has
performed an impairment assessment with recoverable amounts
of the relevant assets determined based on either (i) fair value
less cost of disposal, or (ii) value-in-use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by management.

In determining the fair value of the relevant property, plant
and equipment based on fair value less cost of disposal, the
Group either (i) engaged Daeil Appraisal Co., Ltd. (Kyungi
Buktu Branch), an independent professionally qualified valuer
to perform the valuation in Korea, or (i) arrived at on the basis
of market approach with reference to the second-hand market
value. The fair value assessment, which were performed by
the valuers, have been arrived at based on either (a) sales
comparison approach with reference to the current comparable
prices, or (b) cost approach with reference to the reproduction
costs less depreciation. The key assumption on determining the
fair value less cost of disposal was the economic obsolescence.
The fair value hierarchy on assessing the fair value less cost of
disposal was level 3.
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R-ZEBE-_—FE+=-A=+—08" BEF
8 /1,375,739,0008 (= & = & F :
1,405,418,0008 ) 2 AE BB/ FTHWE
BEMEBERALERER Z —RIBITE
& (M 26) IR FIRIT ©

EERA AEEETYME  BEMERE
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B () ETHBARBERRRERE
HEEE S ERIERKIERER -
AREBIRE () A FEER D ERASL ()R
EEREMLEBRAFHRMERE
AAENEREEEECHBEE ZIKE
EREITRERE °

BRBERATFERLDEKRETHEBYE - H
BERHZEzATFEER - AEE()Z1EE
S EFE A B K HERD Daeil Appraisal Co.,
Ltd. (Kyungi Buktu Branch) 2 BI#7T {4
B H () K2 _FHEEERETMSE
BT - BfAEMET A FEERN G ()
Z2EZRITA B RERBIREELBOL
() 2 ER B AR ERBZKAEE
TE o EETE A FEER L SRR B RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo A B 5 AR i

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 W3 ~ R Rkt (48)
(continued)
The impairment assessment of certain property, plant and SEEEREBReEEEM([EEER
equipment, which is allocated to Gaming business cash REEEEN ) 2ETYE  BELER
generating unit (the “"Gaming CGU"), were included in ZBERAH B AARGE B EmRMTT 17
the value-in-use calculation as disclosed in note 17 to the ZEREEFECA -
consolidated financial statements.
An impairment provision of HK$50,660,000 (2020: HK$184,887,000) B (B B #550,660,0008 TT(Z T =T F :
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 184,887,000 70 ) B NEF & Bam &k ER -
loss to write down the carrying amounts of these property, LA ZEYE - BE &R 2 REEMUR
plant and equipment to their recoverable amount of FHR-ZZB-_—F+A=+—HZAK
approximately HK$1,282,161,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: B & 4 51,282,161,0008 T(ZE=F
HK$42,943,000). 1 42,943,00087T) °
The Group’s management decide to appoint which external AEEEBEELZEIINBEEMBERE
valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the BN A - R LR BET S M
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, BoBE CBUMRESHSEETE -
reputation, independence and whether professional standards AEEzERED N GEREGERM
are maintained. The Group’s management have discussions it ERRREEER - UE25 KR
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation & o
results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting
purpose.
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 #&EWE
2021 2020
—E_—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZREE 537,164 776,838
Transfer from property, plant HEBYE BER
and equipment (Note 14) A (HEE14) 56,866 117,624
Transfer to property, plant HEZYE  BER
and equipment (Note 14) FE(MHEE14) (3,626) (25,816)
Disposals HE (3,585) =
Fair value gains/(losses), net AN EEWZ(EE)  F5E 112,809 (343,496)
Exchange realignment S (33,218) 12,014
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+=-—A=1+—HZEHEE 666,410 537,164
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15

168

S 785 e A i

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties are residential properties
in Hong Kong and commercial properties in South Korea.
The directors of the Company have determined the class
of asset (i.e., residential and commercial) based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the properties. The
Group's investment properties in Hong Kong was revalued
on 31 December 2021 based on a valuation performed by
Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, while the properties in Korea was revalued
on 31 December 2021 based on a valuation performed
Ltd. (Kyungi Buktu Branch), an
independent professionally qualified valuer. The fair value was
HK$666,410,000 (2020: HK$537,164,000), and fair value gains of
HK$112,809,000 (2020: loss of HK$343,496,000) was recorded

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

by Daeil Appraisal Co.,

Each year, the Group's management decides to appoint which
external valuers to be responsible for the external valuation
of the Group's properties. Selection criteria includes market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s management have
discussions with the valuers on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting purpose.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$62,364,000 (2020:
HK$54,649,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 26).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are
included on page 223.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A B i
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15 HEWE(4)
Fair value hierarchy AEEESER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TREBEAEEREMEZ AV EEFE
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: E -

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 using
R-ZB-_—-+-A=+—RER
LT &Ez A EETE
Quoted Significant Significant
pricesin  observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTEE ERTAUHBRE
ERTISERE BARE BARE

(F—%&%) (B=#&%) (B=#&%) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FET THET
Recurring fair value NTRIBZEEE
measurement for: NBEGTE
Residential properties in BREEEWE
Hong Kong - - 192,000 192,000
Commercial properties in EEESIES
South Korea - - 474,410 474,410
- - 666,410 666,410
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B B s R R
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15 H&EWE(H)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EBESHK(E)
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 using
RZZE-_ZFF+=-A=+—HER
LTS Ez A EESZ
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEARAER EARNAE
BT IS RE B ABUR B ABUR
(B—#) (B=8) (B=#) HaEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FABT FABT
Recurring fair value ATNRIEZ &HME
measurement for: NEEEE
Residential properties in BEEEYE
Hong Kong - - 189,000 189,000
Commercial properties in EEAHESES
South Korea = = 348,164 348,164
- - 537,164 537,164
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - B-REF_REWELTEE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers AECEE TEEANELHE=RZE
into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). M ZBZTF ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

15

fo A B 5 AR i

BeE Wk (4)

RATBESHE=BNSE2ATEE
HEHE

Hong Kong Korea
Bk EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiH5 FAR
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 R=-ZB=-ZTF—HA—H
ZEREE 188,000 588,838
Transfer from property, plant and EREYE  BE
equipment (Note 14) PECAC ALY - 117,624
Transfer to property, plant and EEREYE - BB
equipment (Note 14) K&t (T 14) = (25,816)
Changes in fair value recognised REZRERZ AT EEE
in the statement of profit or loss 1,000 (344,496)
Exchange realignment HEE 5, 5 BE - 12,014
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+=-A=+—H
and at 1 January 2021 K=—B=-—-%—-A—H
ZBREE 189,000 348,164
Transfer from property, plant and HEBYE KE
equipment (Note 14) PEIACIEREY - 56,866
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE  BERRE
equipment (Note 14) (BtzE14) - (3,626)
Disposals HE - (3,585)
Changes in fair value recognised in REZKRERZ AT EEZ
the statement of profit or loss 3,400 109,409
Exchange realignment PE 5 FH 2 = (33,218)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 R-ZB=-—F+=-H=+—H
ZBREE 192,400 474,010
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o B 5 A R i

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15 H&EWE(H)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the TXHARIREMEGER A2 AER
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: EREEBH AR
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
EER % EXTUBRBARE FTABEERARBEE
2021 2020
—B--F —TTF
Residential properties Direct comparison Adjusted market value 55,400 50,900
— Hong Kong (HK$/square feet) (Note i)
FEWE— B BEEEA EAEMSERE 55,400 50,900
(B FHR) (M)
Commercial properties Income capitalisation — Avenge monthly unit 3,000 to 80,000 4,000 to 70,000
— South Korea approach rate (KRW/square meter)
(Note ii)
— Capitalisation rate per annum 5.5% 5.8%
(Note iii)
E/E Sl L ON-EN |7 —FHEf ARER 3,000t0 80,000 4,000 to 70,000
(%8, FHxK) (M)
—BFEXM R (M) 5.5% 5.8%
Notes: MisE
(i) The higher the market unit rate, the higher the fair value. (i) MisEMERER A TFEESS °
(i) The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value. iy MERtME AFEEES -
(i)~ The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value. (i) EBARERBE  AFEEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation technique

Fair values of residential properties in Hong Kong are generally
derived using direct comparison method. The fair value is
estimated using assumption regarding the market value of the
comparable sales transactions as available in the market. The
valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment
properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor
level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive
at the market price per unit. The key input was the market price
per unit, which a significant increase/decrease in the market
price would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the investment properties in Hong Kong.

Fair value of commercial properties in South Korea are generally
derived using the income capitalisation approach. Under
the income capitalisation approach, fair value is estimated
on the basis of capitalisation of existing rental income and
reversionary market rental income. The market rentals of the
investment properties are assessed and capitalised at market
yield expected by investors for this type of properties. The
market rents are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the investment properties as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The market yield, which
is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar properties and adjusted to take account of the valuers’
knowledge of the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group's investment properties.
The key inputs were the monthly rent rate and the market yield,
which a significant increase/decrease in the monthly rent rate
in isolation would result in a significant increase/decrease in
the fair value of the investment properties and a significant
increase/decrease in the market yield in insolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties in Korea.

fo A B 5 AR i
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A B B TR i

16 LEASES 16 HE
The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings AEEHRBHEEMAZ ZBEBF LR
and facilities used in its operations. Lease of buildings generally HEHESY -HEEFHB KA
have lease terms of 3 years while leases of facilities generally 3F - MEERBIZHEBH-—RABOF - A
have lease terms of 6 years. Other buildings and facilities A8 F KR HE—M A 12E ASAT
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is %,/ S AR BIEEE -

individually of low value.

(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) EHEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets AEENERAEEERDFERSE
and the movements during the year are as follows: FREIEBHOT :
Buildings Facilities Total
BF B3 e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET

As at 1 January 2020 R-BZEF
—A—H 43,138 50,973 94,111
Depreciation charge HEER (10,822) (1,807) (12,629)
Disposals on early REEKIE
termination of a lease HERRE = (47,876) (47,876)
Revision of a lease term E AR E
arising from a change HEFFES
in the non-cancellable 2 HEIEFRIER]
scope of a lease (24,560) = (24,560)
Disposal of a subsidiary & —fEME A A (42) = (42)
Exchange realignment PE 5 SR 143 (1,290) (1,147)
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-EF
and 1 January 2021 +=HA=+-—H
R-B-—%F
—HA—H 7,857 - 7,857
Additions NE 2,627 - 2,627
Depreciation charge mEBR (7,374) = (7,374)
Exchange realignment b 5, 58 B (118) = (118)
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE——%F
+=—A=+-—A8 2,992 - 2,992
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AR A R B
16 LEASES (continued) 16 HME(#)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEARBA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HEERE

HERBREENRFAZBMNT

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
—B--F —T-FHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HIREE 8,475 80,701
New lease A 2,627 -
Accretion of interest recognised F AR I8N
during the year 330 1,447
Payments (NE (7,979) (20,160)
Disposal on early termination of a lease RERITHERES = (28,926)
Revision of a lease term arising from BRI EH ) 1H & 0 2
a change in the non-cancellable PREE & 2 HERFIER]
scope of a lease - (25,573)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE — KT E A R - @7
Exchange realignment TE 7 5828 (126) 1,013
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=-—HA=+—BZEEE 3,327 8,475
Analysed into: XV
Current portion BNERER 2 1,663 7,689
Non-current portion FEENERER 1,664 786

HEABIHBELTNES PR

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

36(c) to the consolidated financial statements. FKHI5E36(c) PIHE o
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) BHEERBEZERZZHEMT :
leases are as follows:
2021 2020
—EZ-F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T TET
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERE 330 1,447
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ {FHEEENTEER 7,374 12,629
Expense relating to short-term leases EREBREE 2R
(included in other operating expenses) (FFAEMEEER) 2,152 2,469
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets B FEEEEERE 2 AX
(included in other operating expenses) GtAEMEEER) 3,926 7,017
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIERERZBEE 13,782 23,562
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A B B TR i
16 LEASES (continued) 16 (%)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREEAE)
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) (d) HER&RIEAENREESTBRE
to the consolidated financial statements. BRE31(c) M EE ©
The Group as a lessor REBERHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (Note 15) consisting REBRBREBSEHERHEEHREME
of several commercial properties in Korea under operating (3E15) - BIEEBE TEAYE - HE
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require ER—BITERBPL X NRFR - WRE
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic ERTMACHAZRES - AEERFRE
rent adjustments according to the prevailing market conditions. RZHEEWAR19,212,0008 (=T =
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was T4 11,742,00087T) °
HK$19,212,000 (2020: HK$11,742,000).
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments RZZE——F+-_HA=+—0 F5ER
receivables by the Group in future periods under non- BEERPFI 2 T HHEEAERK
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: RERFEIUCER 2 AR BAER FE W AR E IR T -
2021 2020
— e Sl
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Within one year —FN 9,303 7,094
After one year but within two years —FRERREA 6,162 5,391
After two years but within three years MERER=FA 5,226 1,750
After three years but within four years =FREREFEAN 4,141 1,056
After four years but within five years MERERAFR 3,448 296
After five years HF1E 13,925 -
42,205 15,587
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A s R M
GOODWILL 17
HK$'000
THET
At 1 January 2020: R-EZEF-H—HB:
Cost BXAR 5,336
Accumulated impairment REPRE -
Net carrying amount BREHE 5,336
Cost at 1 January 2020, R=B=ZFF—B—HZHE
net of accumulated impairment MR RETRE 5,336
Impairment during the year FARE (5,438)
Exchange realignment HE 5, T8 B 102
At 31 December 2020 R-Z2-_2F+-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2020: R=Z=ZF+=HA=+—8:
Cost (DN 5,637
Accumulated impairment ZERE (5,637)
Net carrying amount BREFE =
At 31 December 2021: R=B=-Z—F+=ZA=+—8:
Cost (DN 5,187
Accumulated impairment Z2:HRE (5,187)
Net carrying amount BRERE -
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17 GOODWILL (continued) 17
Impairment assessment of Gaming CGU

Certain property, plant and equipment, goodwill acquired
through business combination and intangible assets have been

7 (48
BEEBRTELEMRERNR

ETW%  BELRRE BBRGAHE
BeBEBEAMENEEC D REBYER

allocated to the Gaming CGU for impairment testing. The REEEBMUAMERBEAR ZEEEZ
carrying amount of these assets are as follows: FREBESHIIAT -
2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi — 7 —3 E'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FBT
Property, plant and equipment W -~ BE R&E 82,978 121,314
Goodwill EES - -
Intangible assets (Note 18) m & E(KizE18) 169,636 612,366
Gaming CGU BREBREEELEN

The recoverable amount of the Gaming CGU has been
determined by value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The management
considered the calculation based on the current condition and
location at Jeju Shinhwa World, South Korea. The financial
budgets are prepared based on a five-year business plan
considering the past performance, achievement of the medium
or long-term growth target. The financial budgets have also
taken into consideration the developments of Casino business
in Korea, including changes in the customer mix and the trends
of the composition of visitors as well as the resulting changes to
expected costs and margins. It has also taken into consideration
the result of the significant decrease in the number of visitors
result from the adverse impact brought by COVID-19, the
reasonable expectation of the business recovery from COVID-19
and the cost saving initiatives. The value-in-use calculations
was reviewed by independent qualified valuer, BMI Appraisals
Limited. The key assumptions used for the calculation are as
follows:

BYEBREELEM 2 WEISFE TR
BRAEREIE AFHNBREFER
HZRERERR - HEREEAEEE
Eo BEERAS  HEIIARNR KA
(ijAF'ﬁ"éiZt JH AR EE T SR) R EE o BT
BERBRFEEBIEGRE  EhERB
XS TREEZEREENERIBR - M
BRENTERE T BERESEBOER -
BREFHEENEDRIKTHESNBE A
Kl EEMTR A RFBRES - i
S+ INE BB R F LT AR B 5 R A
TEMERRTHBERNBRDHER - ¥
BENNENRSEENSIERE - Uk
ENE AR TR o WETEHRBY A ERMG
EER AR EERARERN - s EE
REEMAZZERET

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE

2021 2020

:;ﬁ:—ﬂi — 7 — = E'E

Average growth rate of revenue T R R 2 86.33% 32.86%
Pre-tax discount rate BRTEAIHTIR 17% 19%
Terminal growth rate REERE 3% 3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment assessment of Gaming CGU (continued)
Gaming CGU (continued))

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has adopted in its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets:

— Annual growth rate of revenue of each projected year
was determined based on various factors including but
not limited to the historical number of visitors, historical
and/or theoretical win rate, and historical gross gaming
revenue per person. Factors were considered based
on each type of gaming revenue which consists of VIP
gaming operations, mass market table, slot machine, and
electronic table game. The projection has also taken into
account of the consumer price index, the implementation
of on-going business strategy by the management and
the adverse impact brought by COVID-19. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Gaming
Business was HK$88,604,000, representing a decrease of
52.5% when compared to the year ended 31 December
2020 (2020: HK$186,486,000, representing a decrease of
12.5% when compared to the year ended 31 December
2019). The Government statistic of Korea indicated that
the number of Jeju foreign visitors in 2020 and 2021 have
dropped by 86% and 94%, respectively, as compared to
the number of Jeju foreign visitors in 2019, which caused
direct impact on the visitation to the foreigner-only
casino in Korea. The adoption of the projected average
annual growth rate of 86.33% (2020: 32.86%) has taken
into account the rebound of visitation after a substantially
low level during COVID-19 pandemic and the reasonable
expectations of (i) COVID-19 transitions from a pandemic
to endemic, (i) the lift of travel restrictions in difference
countries, and (iii) the gradual recovery of the performance
of Gaming CGU to past levels with the implementation
of business strategy after normalisation of business in
coming years.

- Terminal growth rates beyond the five-year period has
taken into account of the historical growth rate of the
gaming industry in Korea, average inflation rate in the
past five years and other relevant economic factors for the
gaming business in which it operates.

17

fo A B 5 AR i

7 (48
BEEBRSEEEMWRENR(E)
BERBRELELEN(F)

TXEAERENETHERBERLEER
BAREMEARSRERAIZSEEE
B
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BEERAEZEBT BEETIRR
IREMBAEAS  BERHIER
BOERANRBEADBELWFE
e SEEXRDERSERMNER
Wi HABREEEYER - &
LR ATHREETEYE - B
RATMEZERIEEMERSE 12
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B 12.5%) o 5E B BT BUE B R
—ECEFR -E - —FRFHEM
RINBRREHER - — NLFE 50
EMN BN R ZEB 2 Bl R 4 86%
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IREEIS SR 2 TN o FRATEAIF
FEEIMREKRGIBU(ZT —T4F
32.86%) EFT R A E MRS K IEH
Mah & & B SR 3 A K T3
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FRBR IR PR 1) R (i) RIRBUF 75
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GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment assessment of Gaming CGU (continued)
Gaming CGU (continued)

- Discount rate is adopted based on the analysis performed
by an independent professional valuer which reflects (i) the
current market assessments of the time value of money
with reference to the relevant industry and comparable
companies in relevant countries, and (i) the risk premium

specific to the Gaming CGU.

The values assigned to the above key assumptions are

consistent with external information sources.

The management is of the view that the valuation techniques
and estimates they have employed are reflective of the current
market conditions and have taken into account the impact of
COVID-19 based on information available as at 31 December
2021. Given that (i) the heightened uncertainty over the length
of COVID-19 outbreak worldwide, (ii) the impact of worldwide
travel restrictions affects the number of visitors to the foreigner-
only casino, and (iii) the ongoing measures being adopted to
address the outbreak, valuations may be subjected to more
fluctuation subsequent to 31 December 2021 than during
normal market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets of Nil (2020: HK$5,438,000) and
HK$398,449,000 (2020: HK$294,462,000) were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The impairment is
mainly a result of the challenging market environment which was
further accelerated by the adverse effect brought by COVID-19
leading to the significant decrease in number of visitors during
the year.

If the average growth rate of revenue applied the cash flow
projections of the CGU had been 1% lower than management's
estimates while overall expenses have adjusted accordingly,
the value-in-use of the CGU would be lower than the estimate
amount by approximately HK$8,180,000.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied the cash flow projections of
the CGU had been 1% higher than management'’s estimates,
the value-in-use of the CGU would be lower than the estimate
amount by approximately HK$35,115,000.

If the terminal growth rate applied the cash flow projections of
the CGU had been 1% lower than management'’s estimates,
the value-in-use of the CGU would be lower than the estimate
amount by approximately HK$25,585,000.
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B S R B
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 WIEH B
Gaming
Trademarks licenses Total
[k BRIER et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FRET

(Note)
(BEE)
31 December 2020 —ZE_ZF+=-H=+—H
At 1 January 2020: R-E-EF-H—H:
Cost PR R 2,702 868,632 871,334
Accumulated amortisation RETEEE (492) - (492)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 2,210 868,632 870,842
Cost at 1 January 2020, RZZBZZF—A—HZHA -
net of accumulated amortisation s Rt 2,210 868,632 870,842
Additions NE 526 = 526
Amortisation provided during the year F & ## §5#E 5 (331) = (331)
Impairment during the year (Note 17)  FERE(HIFE17) = (294,462 (294,462)
Exchange realignment PE W AR 140 38,196 38,336
At 31 December 2020 R=ZE=FF+=H=+—H 2,545 612,366 614,911
At 31 December 2020: R-E-_ZEF+=-A=+—8:
Cost PR 3,424 917,585 921,009
Accumulated amortisation ESE: 5 (879) = (879)
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE — (305,219) (305,219)
Net carrying amount BREDFAE 2,545 612,366 614,911
31 December 2021 —E_—F+=ZH=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of RZEZ—F—H—-BZKAX "
accumulated amortisation PR RETEH 2,545 612,366 614,911
Amortisation provided during the year % (346) = (346)
Impairment during the year (Note 17) 4 ERE(HiFE17) - (398,449)  (398,449)
Exchange realignment bE W FA R (192) (44,281) (44,473)
At 31 December 2021 R=Z=——F+=H=+-—H 2,007 169,636 171,643
At 31 December 2021: R-B-Z—F+ZA=+—-8:
Cost DE 3,151 844,396 847,547
Accumulated amortisation BT (1,144) - (1,144)
Accumulated impairment ZE50RE = (674,760) (674,760)
Net carrying amount BRTEDFHE 2,007 169,636 171,643
Note: Gaming licenses are regarded as having an indefinite useful life MiEE - AR EHERZERENE R - ZER
because the licenses have no prescribed validity period and are WRBEBERAMEAFRE  WAENY
subjected to annual impairment review. The recoverable amounts of FERESEN BREKRSELENY
the Gaming CGU were determined based on value-in-use calculations AJ Y B & B8 DR AR S B RS Rk M 5 E 17
as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. BEAEEAEMET °
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED

19 355 2o 4% 40 F fE AR A Hfth 22 i

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER Wt 2 M HE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2021 2020
—E—F ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Equity investments designated at fair value EERRAFEETAEM
through other comprehensive income EHBERERE
Listed equity investments, at fair value ETARIRERE -
BAFEE 17,957 30,420

The above equity investments are investments in companies
listed on the Stock Exchange and were irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
received dividends of HK$76,000 (2020: HK$484,000) from
the equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The market value of the Group's listed equity investments at the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements was
HK$13,931,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER

fo A B 5 AR i

20 TFEAFSKE ~ RO 5 sk H & i

RECEIVABLES A Wk JE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables BUNE 5508 23,737 13,623
Less: Loss allowance for impairment B BB SR
of trade receivables B BT 18 B (493) (80)
Trade receivables, net (Note (i) FEUE 5 F0A
JERE (BEE () 23,244 13,543
Receivables from gaming customers (Note (ii)) FE B R B P 50 (P 7 (i) 224 7,059
Other receivables (Note (jii)) EL At i Yk 3E (BT & (i) 9,224 255,229
Prepayments SEANEOE 22,954 23,506
Value-added tax recoverable Al Y Bl HE(E R 523 4,865
Deposits (Note (iv)) HEACIEAM) 10,119 13,457
Restricted deposit for bank borrowing RITEEZZBEHITFER 122,437 107,434
188,725 425,093
Less: Non-current portion S 0 FEBNEAER (4,154) (110,410)
Current portion BNERER 7 184,571 314,683

Notes:

(i) Trade receivables, net

EWESHRE B

The Group's trading terms with its trade customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

AEEBREEFEPZEGHEAREERE
B EHEPRIN HIEP—RAREN
Ko GEH-—RA—MER TEXEFAL
RE=ZEA - BREFPHURERSEER
B o AN B ROR M1 BB P I ELR W [ R
WIR - UEEREEERR - fmaHe
HEARREEAB TR o ERN LA
MR AEEZ EWE ZHIRERED BT
FERW BAFEERETEERR - - A
SEY EBE RN E 5 FRIBEGREE TR
HIR AT E IR EEEE - BIRE
HHFBATER °
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20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

Trade receivables, net (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,

20

TEAT SRIH - W B sk EH K B A
e Wk 3 ()

B3

(i)

(&)
P E 5 508 - B ()

RBERHEER  HEFAHRNBE
BRBRZEBKESFERROMOT

is as follows:
2021 2020
—s-—% —EoTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Within 30 days 30HA 22,931 11,585
31 to 60 days 31E60H 205 670
67 to 90 days 61E90H 74 341
Over 90 days 90 HIAE 34 947
23,244 13,543
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade W E S FIBREBERBEZSOT -
receivables are as follows:
2021 2020
—s-—5 —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of year RELD 80 11,980
Impairment losses recognised, net REEBBER - FE 434 74
Amount written off as uncollectible 5 A AT Y Bl 5 58 - (11,677)
Exchange realignment PE 5 F 2 (21) (297)
At end of year RER 493 80

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expected
credit losses. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a loss rate approach to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on a number of factors which include
(i) debtors’ ageing; (ii) historical repayment behavior of debtors;
(iii) other debtors’ specific information available to the Group;
(iv) likelihood of recovery; and (v) taking into account prevailing
and future economic conditions which are relevant for credit risk
assessment. The credit risk categorisation is adjusted to reflect
subsequent information uncovered to an extent that such information
provides evidence of conditions existed as at the year end date and
forward-looking information. The expected loss rates are estimated
based on the expected cash flows that can be recovered based on
historical recovery ratios.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Trade receivables, net (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group's trade receivable using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

bk BV 285 A R i

20 TFEAFSKE ~ RO 5 sk H RO i
W Wk I ()

BaE - ()

(i)

EWESRE - FHEE)

VAT 8051 75 B A 52 1B 1R W2 55 SRR 40 R 3
BEENEERBRNER

R=—®=—%+=H=+-8

Past due
gl

Within 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days Total

30BR 31E60H 61E90H #3890 H Agt

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEBEX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 93.5% 2.08%

Gross carrying amount FREAR(E

(HK$'000) (F#&T) 22,931 205 74 527 23,737
Expected credit losses TRHEEEE

(HK$'000) (F&7x) - - - 493 493

As at 31 December 2020

R=2=®F+=A=1-8

Past due
Within 30 days 31to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days Total
30BA 31E60H 61E90H @90 A FEEy
Expected credit loss rate TRHGEERBEX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 7.79% 0.59%
Gross carrying amount BREAA(E
(HK$'000) (F#87T) 11,585 670 341 1,027 13,623
Expected credit losses REEEEE
(HK$'000) (FA&7T) - - - 80 80
Receivables from gaming customers (i) FEREEEFNRER

The Group's trading terms with gaming customers are mainly on
credit. The credit term is generally 30 days for gaming operations.
Each gaming customer has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by the management. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has certain concentration of credit risk
as 100% (2020: 28%) and 100% (2020: 60%) of the Group's gaming
receivables represent the Group's highest gaming receivable from
a customer and five highest gaming receivables from customers,
respectively. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its gaming receivable balances. Gaming
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEERBYREFZRGEREEEREE
E- -BEEKZEEH—MKA30AB -
BERBYREPHRERSEERBE B8
BRI MR c RIEHER A%
ERRUASESABERE RAKXER
BEZREAEETEESTRR © 55
EASEBEERRIEBEZ100%(ZE=F
1 28%) B100% (=& = T 4 : 60%) °
REBIEFREBELERKRBLEHRIZTEE
AR ETEMNEEEREE - B
FEMER AL AR ©
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20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

Receivables from gaming customers (continued)

The ageing analysis of the receivables from gaming customers as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

20 FEAFKIE - REWCE 5k H RO i
R Wk I ()

BEE

(i)

(%)
EWiEREFSE(8)
MNBEHEEER  RERAHRMNBE

BRBRE2) 2 BB TR RIEREK D
o

2021 2020

—s-—% —EoTE

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHExT

Within 30 days 30ER 224 =
31 to 60 days 31E260H - -
67 to 90 days 61E90H - -
Over 90 days 90 B A - 7,059
224 7,059

Receivables from gaming customers include receivables from
individual gaming players, which are interest-free and repayable on
demand. These balances are granted with reference to their credit
history and track record settlement.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of gaming
receivables are as follows:

EUREYZFFIRBEEMNEYER ZE
WHIE BEERBEREERARERE
B RERBRNESEREZERETHR
EREAEEREmMRL -

ERRURIBEREBEREZHNT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At beginning of year RED 348,173 346,453
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment) AEEE, CRERE)

recognised , net "R FE 6,726 (7,720)

Amount written off as uncollectible, net WA TR E SR - FEE = (6,526)

Exchange realignment [EE 5%, 3 2 (18,639) 15,966

At end of year RER 336,260 348,173

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss allowance of
HK$6,726,000 was recognised as a result of the sluggish recovery of
bad debt, which impaired previously, of HK$348,173,000 and expected
credit loss rate was adjusted accordingly. As at 31 December 2021,
receivables from gaming customers amounting to HK$336,260,000
(2020: HK$348,173,000) were fully impaired and provided for. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, reversal of the loss allowance of
HK$7,720,000 was recognised as a result of the continuous recovery
of bad debt of HK$4,701,000.
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BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIEE "
& U [ 5% /i B R (B A 52 BK 348,173,000 7%
T H#E 2 2R A8 T T R U8 18 B 18 6,726,000 7%
L MEHSEEEBEEHEAR - R=Z2
——f+-A=+t—08 BLELEF
X I8 £336,260,0008 (= F = T F ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii)

20 FEfFH

bk BV 285 A R i

K IH > WS B ek T B 3L At

W Wk I ()

Notes: (continued) MisE ()
Receivables from gaming customers (continued) (i) FEWEEEFXEE)
The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expected REBRKABE A EAERBEEERS -
credit losses. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting &S BB AR R R R B 1T
date using a loss rate approach provision matrix to measure expected WESTAGTEEREERE - BEXT
credit losses. The provision rates are based on a number of factors BREZERZET  ERBRENEBTAZ
which include (i) debtors’ ageing; (i) historical repayment behavior of BRIR ¢ () EEABEEBRITA () AEE
debtors; (iii) other debtors’ specific information available to the Group; ‘H—%Hﬁﬁﬁ‘*/\%méﬂ K (v BEER
and (iv) current industry conditions and future economic outlook which A R 2 TR 1T FE AR R R AR A Al
are relevant for credit risk assessment. The credit risk categorisation cEEEROSREEFAE  URBKE
is adjusted to reflect subsequent information uncovered to an extent ﬁ‘fﬁZfﬁ%Eﬁﬂ BEEHERRREE
that such information provides evidence of conditions existed as at HEBREEREZBBERAELEER -
the year end date and forward-looking information. The expected ﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬂ@ 3 T AR BE ¥ FE sk Wk [ R 5+ E AT I
loss rates are estimated based on the expected cash flows that can be Bl FEHIR @R E fhEt
recovered based on historical recovery ratios.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the ATNEIE AR SE EWER SRR E
Group's gaming receivable using a provision matrix: REEHEENEERBRNER
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZB--%+-A=+—H
Past due
B
Within 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days Total
30HA 31Z60H 61Z90H BB 90 H Act
Expected credit loss rate  FEHIE B E1EX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 99.93%
Gross carrying amount BREAA(E
(HK$'000) (FA&T) 224 - - 336,260 336,484
Expected credit losses TRHEEEE
(HK$'000) (F%&T) = - - 336,260 336,260
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+-A=+—H
Past due
B
Within 30 days  31to 60 days 61to90days Over 90 days Total
30HA 31ZE60H 61Z90H #1890 H st
Expected credit loss rate ~ TEHAEEEER 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 98.01% 98.01%
Gross carrying amount FREAR(E
(HK$'000) (F%&T) = - - 355,232 355,232
Expected credit losses RHEEER
(HK$'000) (F&7x) - - - 348,173 348,173
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20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Other receivables

Included in the Group's other receivables are other receivables
from debtors in non-trade nature amounted to HK$9,224,000
(2020: HK$8,864,000). In prior year, balance also included loans and
interest receivables from independent third parties amounted to
HK$246,365,000. Except for the loans and interest receivables which
charge interest rate at 6% per annum and repayable on demand,
other non-trade receivables from debtors are interest-free and
repayable on demand. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its other receivable balances.

Decrease in balance was mainly due to the full repayment of loans
and interest receivables from independent third parties.

The movements in impairment allowance of other receivables are as follows:

20 TFEAFHE ~ REWCE B sk I & fib
e Wk 3 ()

B3

(iii)

(&)
H b FE KR IE

AAAASEHEMERREARKESAZ
HBIEE S ME 2 5KI89,224,0007% 7T
—ZT_FF :8,864,00087C) c REF -
BRELERRBYUE - T 2ERRFE
246,365,000 7 ° R IZF F K 6% 51 B &
BIREREEOEFMEWRF SN - Hib
EREZAREESREZTEAEERE
RENREE - NEBWERH th KA
EHREFATAERRSETEANRER
I

RERLNTIEZERARBLE =TEEM
BERRERFE

Hib W ERE 2 EFHmT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&xT FHIT

At beginning of year RELD 91,385 24,135
(Reversal of impairment)/ CRERE),RE

impairment losses recognised, net EiE MR - HEE (6,378) 60,461

Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (6,487) 6,789

At end of year RER 78,520 91,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Other receivables (continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the impairment was specific in nature
which was considered in default due to indicators which showed
that the Group was unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amount. Where applicable, an impairment analysis is performed
at each reporting date by considering the probability of default of
comparable companies with published credit ratings.

The decrease in the loss allowance was mainly due to the following
significant changes in:

(a) Reversal of loss allowance of HK$7,259,000 (2020: loss
allowance of HK$17,477,000) as a result of the full repayment of
loan and interest receivables from independent third parties;

(b) Reversal of loss allowance of HK$3,190,000 (2020:
HK$77,938,000) as a result of the full repayment of lease-
related receivables and management fee receivables from
independent third parties; and

(c) Loss allowance of HK$4,111,000 (2020: Nil) as a result of other
receivables which were past due and the recoverability is
remote. The expected credit loss rate was applied at 100.00%.

Expected credit losses on the remaining other receivables balances
are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
historical loss records of the Group. Based on historical loss records
and economic conditions, the directors are of the opinion that
the expected credit losses on the remaining other receivables are
minimal.

Deposits

As at 31 December 2021, among the deposits, HK$2,623,000 (2020:
HK$2,850,000) has been pledged as collateral in relation to a lawsuit
in Korea.

fo A B 5 AR i

20 TFEAFHE ~ REWCE B sk I & fib
B Wk 3 ()

B3

(iii)

(iv)

(&)
HL o FE WURROR ()

BERA ANEPRBLRASETAA
BRRBAREEANESE  WREBRBR
EWE - EEANBELT  BEINNE
EREABEBERERMEETROAE
LA BB AR RAETT

BERBERL DI EHRATEANES :

(a) 1B AR [E 7,259,000 T(= &
—TE  EEEE 17,477,000 T)
TERBYSE=AEEREERR
EAFE

(b) &8 R & B [ 3,190,000 T (= =
T4 177,938,000 7T ) YA TE
ME=FEEMA M ERERERF
WEERERKERREEEER
RN &

(© RIEEE4S111,0008 T(—E-F
&) R E B H A E b fE U SR
BAEATEEEEN - BB ZTAH
EEEERA100.00% °

BRTEMERFBEEFZRBEEEBERT
RABBRXAL2EAKEZBEBERRL
BRFHEE - EREEBRTHMEER
5 EBERE SR TEMEKREZES
EEERMFEN -

A&

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—H #Ei£RK
92,623,000 7T( = T = T 4 : 2,850,000
B IT) BB AR 2 SR AR A A B RO S AT

o
om °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B 5 A R i

20 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 20 TEAFEKIE - REWCE 5wk H K ik
RECEIVABLES (continued) W Wik L (48
Notes: (continued) Mt - (88
(v} Other than trade receivables, gaming receivables and other (v)  BRoBIRKIEEG) ~ (i) R (i) 5 2 FERE 5
receivables specified in note (i), (ii) and (iii), respectively, the financial FRIA TR R UL SR IA Ko H At JE W FRIE b
assets included in the above balances relates to receivables for which FPA LS eR 2 B S B E R R L
there was no recent history of default and past due amounts. As at Lo RERSE s BRKRIERR R F
31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be ——FR-_F-_ZTF+-_A=+—H " &
minimal. BREEGRE -
The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, trade and other REEFBNFKIE - BWE 5FKIBREME
receivables approximated their fair values and are denominated in the WOoRIE 7 BREERE A FEEES - WA
following currencies: THEHBEHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EoFEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
HK$ BT 9,860 10,520
RMB AR - 246,366
KRW B2 178,864 162,346
PHP SFEEWR - 5,860
Others Eth 1 1
188,725 425,093
21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21 #RPWE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi85 Fx
At the beginning of the year, at cost REL - REAE 122,622 236,781
Transfer to completed properties for sale B SEEEKE
(Note 22) (PFif=E22) - (1,724)
Transfer from properties, plant and equipment B B Y3 « BE M EE
(Note 14) (Pi7E14) 777 5,809
Transfer to properties, plant and equipment HEEYE - KB REE
(Note 14) (BfEE 14) (1,930) (131,049)
Exchange realignment bE AR (7,548) 12,805
At the end of the year, at cost RER » BERAE 113,921 122,622
Properties under development comprises: BRAYEDLE:
Land use rights T R A 113,921 122,622
Properties under development pending 2 Em R
construction expected to be recovered B E—F1&
beyond more than one year SR BEPYE 113,921 122,622
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B A s R M
21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21 #FERpWE ()
(continued)
The analysis of land costs with an aggregate net carrying STAZEARYE 2 TH K AER BREFE
amount included in properties under development is as follows: BEZ2 WA -
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
South Korea L
Freehold land KAFERE T 113,921 122,622
22 COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE 22 FECEBRME
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
Completed properties for sale comprises: FEDERMERE
Construction cost and BREERK AN I E At
other capitalised expenditures BERAX 570,483 816,930
Interest capitalised BERMEFE 17,003 24,680
Land use rights T fsh 22,488 34,027
609,974 875,637
The analysis of land costs with an aggregate net carrying STARER BRI E 2 LKA ERRE
amount included in completed properties for sale is as follows: REBBEZOTWT
2021 2020
—gF-—-F —ECFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
South Korea [
Freehold land KAFERE T 22,488 34,027
The Group's completed properties for sale are located in South REBEZHFEDERYEMNEE - RR
Korea. The completed properties for sale are stated at the lower HHR - FFEE AR AR E A 1R
of cost and net realisable value at the end of the reporting FERIEESE
period.
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o B 5 A R i

22 COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, cost of completed
properties for sale amounted to HK178,363,000 (2020:
HK$67,678,000) were recognised in the profit or loss.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's completed properties
for sale with a carrying value of HK$609,974,000 (2020:
HK$875,637,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 26).

Further particulars of the Group's completed properties for sale
are included on page 223.

22

ORI E (H)

BE-FT-_—F+-A=t—BLF
B FEEERNWERANIBZ TR
R £178,363,000%8 L(= T = & F:
67,678,000/ 7T) °

RZZBE-_—F+-_A=+—8  x&EEBK
M B 5609,974,0008 T(—Z & — T F :
875,637,000 7T ) 2 & B & A 1) = K
EAAEEER —RFTHRE Z BRI
X 26) °

AEBFECERYEZE—FFBFIR
5 223H

23 INVENTORIES 23 f#HE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Raw materials EA 53,295 58,359
Finished goods BURY SR 10,522 12,138
63,817 70,497

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24 Bl&RBGEEY R 2R BE

RESTRICTED CASH

2021 2020
—B-—F —E T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Cash and bank balances (Note (i) B& RIBITEEER(BIEE()) 650,652 477,390
Short-term time deposits HHITE HAfE R 170,265 170,028
Restricted cash for the Cash Incident (Note (i) ¥R & F45 R $I13IR 2 (KMI:E (i) 66,556 =
887,473 647,418

Less: Restricted cash for B REEHZRHIRE
the Cash Incident (Note (ii) (K= Gii)) (66,556) —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 820,917 647,418
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

In prior year, cash and bank balances included restricted bank
deposits of HK$5,208,000 and HK$1,425,000 which can only be
applied in a lawsuit in Korea prior to its conclusion and a lease
deposit in Korea prior to its expiry, respectively.

On 4 January 2021, management of the Group discovered that
certain funds amounting to KRW14,555,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$103,713,000) belonging to the Group kept in Jeju, South Korea
was missing (the “Cash Incident”). The Group was unable to reach the
employee-in-charge of the funds and the Cash Incident was reported
to the police in South Korea.

Based upon the Investigation Progress Notification issued by Jeju
Special Self-Governing Provincial Police Agency of Korea (the
“Jeju Police”) to the Group in March 2021, the Jeju Police revealed
that KRW13,400,000,000 (equivalent to retranslated amount of
HK$87,867,000 as at 31 December 2021) (the “Seized Money") was
seized by them in accordance with the due process of Korean law,
and are being kept in the deposit account of a bank under the name
of the Jeju Police. According to the legal opinions from independent
lawyers, the Seized Money is expected to be part of the amount of
the Group missed as a result of the Cash Incident and will be retained
by the Jeju Police until the investigation process is complete.

Based on the report of factual findings issued by an independent
external auditor in Korea, the cash balance in relation to the Cash
Incident located in a premises of the Group in Korea and under the
Group's possession as at 31 December 2020 was KRW10,150,000,000
(equivalent to HK$72,325,000). Accordingly, cash loss of
KRW4,405,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,961,000) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020. The remaining balance of the Seized Money were
found elsewhere but is anticipated to be part of the missing fund. The
investigation is still being conducted by the Jeju Police, and as at 31
December 2021, the balance of this restricted cash is amounted to
KRW10,150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$66,556,000) (2020: Nil).

fo A B 5 AR i

24 Ble RBEFEY K2R &
(%)

B3

0] EA%*E R& MRTTRST BEZREIR

17 17 54 5,208,000 7 7T 21,425,000 % 7T *

D RIE R R BB SR EA R R AT E A RN ER
MRS REIMAEA -

(i) M-ZT-_—F—ANA AEETEER
BERASEREREMNRENSE TRIE
14,555,000,000 % [ (48 & 7 103,713,000 7
TTEBERK(HREEHR]) - AEBEREHRES
BEZENENREES  YERBESEHFmmeE
EITRE °

RZZT-—F=F  REREEMNEHA
mégﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁfnm¢ilﬁﬁm
FEERBN ENEHEEHDRER

%@WE#Ef 14 13,400,000,000
ZEMEER-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8
2 B E £ 587,867,000 7T ) (41
) WEAEME R NZEFRRIBITH
GFREFF - RIEBIRMOEEER
IR ﬁﬁh%¢ﬁ$$ﬁ£$ﬁlLﬁ
ZEMRF - WRBENESRER
RAERF -

RIREBEIND B AN EEFAE R
E RZZE-TF+=-A=+—8 &%
EERRBEBENYETHAEBRESR
B3R & E (IR & 45 #% 4 10,150,000,000
& B (& 772,325,000 7T ) ° A L -
I/ & %k 74,405, ooooooﬁa l(*a 2 R
28,961,000 L) ERBE_T_TF+=
A=+— Eﬁiﬁﬁé%m%ﬁﬁwoﬁ
H fth 3t 75 $% B (0RO B4R 58 - TEET S A
KA —E5 o AEDBBEMNE LT
mMR=—ZE=-_—%+=-A=+—8" mxm
#1284 45 £2 4 10,150,000,000 7 B (5 & ¥
66,556,000 BTL)(ZF=FF : T) o
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AR A BA B R M RE
24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 24 & KB & FEY KRB E
RESTRICTED CASH (continued) (%)

RITASRBARTERNERFEZZS
F R BRERA S - AT TR AR A
BEAZE3IEANE  BFAKEZAER
SRKME  WIKE B 2 HEFHA
TEREUH B, o RITHE 8 S 8 HATE BT 5k 1
MAMEE R 4F BT B 58 ) fo 8% 2 3R

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between 1 month and 3 months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and short-term time deposits are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

7 o

Re MR EEBMATIEEFHE

currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FET
HK$ BT 392,137 419,623
GBP e 737 746
KRW 78 418,674 206,692
SGD Wb 2,879 324
Us$ =TT 4,102 19,310
PHP JEREEHRER 2,318 565
Others Efb 70 158
820,917 647,418

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25  WEATE 5 sk JE B R fth E A K IE

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-F4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables (Note) ERE SFIE(WE) 8,773 5,398
Deposit received BT 4,773 20,113
Deferred revenue FEIEUW 2,208 1,830
Accrued expenses BT 79,307 61,445
Accrued employee benefits fEsHE 227 54,426 58,074
Other tax payables H iS58 161,176 198,730
Other payables (Note) H e~ 3| (B sE) 96,735 100,189
Contract liabilities AEHaE 113,121 57,833
520,519 503,612
Less: Non-current portion 0 FEBNEAER (11,890) (31,877)
Current portion BNHEAER 2 508,629 471,735
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Note:

Trade payables and other payables are non-interest bearing and have an

average term of 1 month.

Trade and other payables are denominated in the following

fof o B AR M

25 A 5 sk H M At E fF 5k JH
(%)

B3

BNESREREMENRERRE - FHHR
R1ER -

FET B 2508 R B At S SR LA A &%

currencies: =HE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
HK$ BT 86,557 78,739
RMB AR 6,500 7,633
KRW [ 421,933 390,737
SGD N T 5,381 26,387
Others Hith 148 116
520,519 503,612

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

26 ®FEERAT &

2021 2020
—B=-f% b 33
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRAI= -/ 7ilkS
(%) 3#A TEr (%) 5|#A THT
Current ik
Bank loan — secured ROEH— &R 5.98% 2022 2,114,515 5.98% 2021 829,234
598 ZBICE 5.98E It S 3
Non-current FEH
Bank loan — secured RITEH— AR - - - 598% 202 1,707,264
- = 598 “Z--F
2,114,515 2,536,498
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o B 5 A R i

26 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

at S ERAT 1 B (4)

(continued)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAxT
Analysed into: DT
Bank borrowing repayable: RTFIEREEE 2
RITER
Within one year —FR 2,114,515 829,234
In the second year FE - 1,707,264
2,114,515 2,536,498
Less: Amount repayable within one year B R—EFERERINA
and classified as current portion BNEAE D & %8 (2,114,515) (829,234)
Amount classified as non-current portion 5 AFEBNEREL o M) & 58 = 1,707,264

Bank borrowing is secured by the Group's property, plant
and equipment amounting to HK$1,375,739,000 (2020:
HK$1,405,418,000) (Note 14), investment properties amounting
to HK$62,364,000 (2020: HK$54,649,000) (Note 15) and
completed properties for sale amounting to HK$609,974,000
(2020: HK$875,637,000) (Note 22).

The effective interest rate of the Group’s borrowing is 5.98%
(2020: 5.98%) per annum. The carrying amount of the Group's
borrowing is denominated in the following currencies:

£1,375,739,000%8 o(= T = T F
1,405,418,0007% st )(M =£14) ~ #&

Y) % 562,364,000 T(ZZE =ZF F
54,649,000 7T ) (ff 5F15) R AF & E &K
¥ 2 5 609,974,000 T(— T — T 4 :

875,637,000 70 ) (MI5E 22) 1EHE(R o

RITREURNATEEDE  BELRB

&

AEERBEZERFEMNERSBE(ZE
“TF:598E) AREEEZEREE
ATNSIEHEE -

2021 2020
—B-——fF —E-F4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT T

KRW gE 2,114,515 2,536,498
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27 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27 BEBIHAM
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year, FAN - Rt RAARBBE AR A EHE
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances HEBRZBERAT  BEHBEEEZSHN
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Accrued Fair value
expenses adjustments Others Total
FEETBIX AFEERE Hith )y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THET THET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-ZF—A—H - 15,237 16,510 31,747
Deferred tax debited to the RENREIEFIBREBLE
statement of profit or loss B
during the year 8,486 - - 8,486
Deferred tax debited to RENBLERERS
equity during the year 2RI - 2,451 - 2,451
Exchange realignment i K, 35 Jall 729 930 2,370
At 31 December 2020 and R-Z-2F
1 January 2021 +t=ZA=+—HkK
—E-_—-f%—-H—H 9,197 18,417 17,440 45,054
Deferred tax debited to the RENRIEHIBRELE
statement of profit or loss BamE
during the year 3,286 = = 3,286
Deferred tax credited to FNFT AR
equity during the year ZIRER IR - (453) = (453)
Exchange realignment [E 7 A (846) (1,286) (1,391) (3,523)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-—-F
+=B=+—H 11,637 16,678 16,049 44,364
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27 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 27 EAEHLIE A E (M)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

SEFER  ETREERBEEERAED
R BB EIRRKREE - LT AAEEH
FHEBESENEELERALRIEL ZD
#r

2021 2020
=B —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the ﬁ’\ e M IR R FERR
consolidated statement of financial position RIEF BB EF58 44,364 45,054

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
these entities that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. In the prior year,
deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income
amounted HK$1,859,882,000 (2020: HK$2,917,233,000). Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$1,859,144,000 (2020:
HK$2,916,500,000) that will expire as follows. Other losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

E-—F+-A=+—H BRKE
EREEE—BREEARBEERT
PRSI 8 A o MIEEE - R &
W EBERERELERIBEE - REF - 5t
ZiLfRIEJEETEWﬁﬁEu ZIBEERITREEILNE
BT TS 35 Al B B AR PR B R Bl A B3R 2
BERRBR o

@%
|

RFEEBRER AEEBREREE
R TE E 18 0] K 8H R R B R B Uk A
£1,859,882,0008 w(= & = T F:
2,917,233,0007% 7T ) o 7 fE 3R % 18 /& 18
B 45 1,859,144,00078 T(= & = T F
2,916,500,0008 7T ) K& 18 + 15 58 T oI F
D EIAR - HfhE518 n] AR HR 4582 o

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

2023 :E:zi 7,945 7,945
2024 —ZUE 1,633 1,583
2025 -z _£¢ 48 48
2026 TR 5 —
2027 _7_t¢ - -
2028 —E-)\F = 552,840
2029 —ENF 439,246 1,483,734
2030 —E=TE 417,282 870,350
2031 = 992,985 =
1,859,144 2,916,500
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 27 ERERIE G0 (4])
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% RIEPEIDEFTEHE - P BRI
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign ZINBREMINEIREE TR 2 IR EIRS
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established MI0% 2B - BEEARER _ZTZTN
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January F-A—BRER - BERAR-ZZTLF
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower TZA=T—BE&ZEF o figrp BA f= i
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty SN B E B RVEE R AT B B IRA -
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign AlERA AR REARERE - RZFT
investors. At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been ——F+ZA=+—H  XEBRRKRRF
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the B A ek 2 B B 2 )RR A5 i SR B HH & A 2
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of ERTEHT M S - MR ERERRLED
the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the I BERA  ZEMBRARINA RFHR
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries MEAERBNZAREMLTIKR - RZFT
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The Z—F+ZRA=+—8 - ERFREREH
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with BARKREEHMAVARERELHIEAE
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred ZEREEEE 152,560,008 T(ZF
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled HK$2,560,000 ZZ4F 1 740,00087T) °
at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$740,000).
SHARE CAPITAL 28 A
Shares gy
2021 2020
— —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Authorised: ERE
1,000,000,000,000 ordinary shares 1,000,000,000,000 A% &= R% &
of HK$0.01 each 0.01 BTz LR 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHR :
4,226,252,310 (2020: 4,226,252,310 i%
3,521,877,510) ordinary shares T FTE
of HK$0.01 each 3,521,877,5100%)
BIREEO0.01 87T 2 Bl 42,263 35,219
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28 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28 JBeA (%)
Shares (continued) A7 (48)
A summary of movements in the Company's issued share capital RARDEITRAZ SR T -
is as follows:
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Tota
[=%¢H)
BROEHE EBROTRE ROEER a3t
‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THERT FTHET
At 1 January 2020 R-E-2F—-A—H 2,934,898 29,350 14,020,947 14,050,297
Issue of shares (Note (7)) FITRAD (BHEE () 586,980 5,869 132,070 137,939
Share issue expenses (Note () 2% 2 A (ML () = (791) (791)
At 31 December 2020 and R-B-25+=-A=+-H
1 January 2021 k=—Z2-—-%—-A—H 3,521,878 35,219 14,152,226 14,187,445
Issue of shares (Note (ii)) FATRAD (BRHEE (1)) 704,374 7,044 131,718 138,762
Share issue expenses (Note (i) %2 A (F5E (i) = (151) (151)
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-%f+=-H=t+—H 4,226,252 42,263 14,283,793 14,326,056
Notes: Mz -

(ii)

On 22 April 2020, pursuant to a share placing agreement, the
Company placed 586,978,800 ordinary shares of the Company to not
less than six placees, who are independent third parties, at HK$0.235
per share. The aggregate cash subscription price received, before
share issue expenses, was HK$137,939,000. This transaction resulted
in an increase of the issued share capital and share premium account
of HK$5,869,000 and HK$132,070,000, respectively. Share issue
expenses of HK$791,000 were charged to the share premium account
accordingly.

On 2 June 2021, pursuant to a subscription agreement, the Company
allotted and issued 704,374,800 ordinary shares of the Company to
a subscriber, who is an independent third party, at HK$0.197 per
share. The aggregate cash subscription price received, before share
issue expenses, was HK$138,762,000. This transaction resulted in
an increase of the issued share capital and share premium account
of HK$7,044,000 and HK$131,718,000, respectively. Share issue
expenses of HK$151,000 were charged to the share premium account
accordingly.
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(i)

RZZE-_EEMA-+-H  BRERGE
EE s ARARER0.235BTHEAR
7] Z 586,978,800 % i i@ AR A% 19 Bit & F 1 4
RANBBILE=FARA - CIREFRER
BECKT /R E A ) 137,939,000 7T °
ZR 5L EBITRA KR EE RS 58
$n5,869,0005% 7t K& 132,070,000 7T °
791,000 7 7T 2 3 A% & FA IV AE FE A BR 15 2 (B
ARFOBR ©

R-ZZE-_—FXA-_HBH BEZE®
HARRERER0IIEBTEARRZ
704,374,800 % & i A& A% 0 Bc 3 R 34T T
—EBBUE=AREA  CRERESRE
BORET & A ) 138,762,000/ Tt ° #%
RBLEBITRARBKGEERS B
$07,044,000% 7T % 131,718,000/8 TT °
151,000 7T 2 B AR 2 A 71 AR FE R AR 19 )4 (B
ARFOBR ©
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29 RESERVES 29 it

Fair value

reserve of

financial assets

at fair value

Capital  Contributed Asset  through other

Share  redemption surplus Exchange Other  revaluation ~comprehensive  Accumulated

premium reserve (Note) reserve reserve reserve’ income losses Total

RAVEE

TARH2E

W 2B

U N BE  BEZLY
B EE ROt (GGEY E i AtRE  EfERE EERE ZiTER -h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
T TR T TR TR Thn TR Thn TR

At 1 January 2021 RZF=-£-H-A 14,152,226 6,503 3,460,931 482,197 (522,966) 78813 (288,595) (6,957,711) 10,411,398
Loss for the year FEER - - - - = = = (1,055,766)  (1,055,766)
Other comprehensive EREMEEEE
loss for the year:
Remeasurement of employee ~ EX:TE2EERFIER
benefit obligation - - - - 514 - - - 514
Changesinfairvalue of equity ~ RATEEFALMZE
investments at fair value W REREZ
through other comprehensive ~ AFEEEE)
income - - - - - - (12,463) - (12,463)
Exchange differences on BEENSHER 2
translation of
foreign operations - - - (707,178) - - - - (707,178)
Total comprehensive FREEHRER
loss for the year - - - (707,178) 514 - (12,463) (1,055,766) (1,774.893)
Release of revaluation REEENE  HER

of investment properties AEREERENE
upon transfer to property, 251

plant and equipment - - - - - (950) - 950 -
Release of revaluation REHRENRE

of investment properties BEZSME 2R

upon written-off - - - - - (1,097) - 1,097 -
Issue of shares (Note 26) R (KiE2) 131,718 - - - - - - - 131,718
Share issue expenses (Note 28) R ER(Hiz28) (151) = = = = = = = (151)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%

TZA=t-R 14,283,793* 6,503 3,460931% (224.981) (522,452) 76,766* (301,058 (8,011,430) 8,768,072
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29 RESERVES (continued)

29 filiffii (48)

Fair value
reserve of
financial assets

at fair value
Capital  Contributed Asset through other
Share  redemption surplus Exchange Other revaluation  comprehensive  Accumulated
premium reserve (Note) reserve reserve reserve’ income osses Total
BATEE
FARMBEE
Wi 2B
v NGl BE  BEILY
byt RO (H3E) B A E= Bk ZiER a5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000
Tin TEx Tin TEn Thn Thn THn Thn Thn
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-2E-H-H 14020947 6,503 3460931 (58,587) (527,311) 80,866 (283,169) (4,844,763) 11,855,417
Loss for the year FEER - - - - = = = (2,115,001) (2,115,001)
Other comprehensive EREMEEEE
loss for the year:
Remeasurement of employee ~ EX:TEEERFIE
benefit obligation - - - - 4,305 - - - 4,305
Changeinfairvalue of equity ~ RATEEFALMZE
investments at fair value W REREZ
through other comprehensive ~ AFEEEE)
income - - - - - - (5,426) - (5,426)
Exchange differences on BEENSHER 2
tranlation of
foreign operations - - - 521,488 - - - - 521,488
Release of exchange REENBAAGRRZ
reserve upon dlisposal ERGRE
of subsidlaries - - - 19,29 - - - - 19,29
Total comprehensive ERREFRES
loss for the year - - - 540,784 4,345 - (5,426) (2,115,001) (1,575,298)
Release of revaluation REEENZ HER
of investment properties FEEEERENE
upon transfer to property, ZEf
plant and equipment - - - - - (2,053) - 2053 -
Issue of shares (Note 28] Hiln (i 28) 132070 - - - - - - - 132070
Share issue expenses (Note 28) B ER(Hiz28) 1) - - - - - - - (791)
At 31 December 2020 R=8-%%
t=B=t-H 14,152,226 6,503 3460931 482,197 (522,966 78813 (288,595 (6957,711) 10,411,398
Note: Contributed surplus of the Group was arisen from the Company's MisE : REB 2 BARKRTI AR R E NS AT
capital reorganisation. Bk
o These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves * ZERBREEGERREIRZEEH
of HK$16,779,502,000 (2020: HK$17,369,109,000) in the consolidated fib (15 16,779,502,000 B T(Z T =T 4F :
statement of changes in equity. 17,369,109,000787C) °
# The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an # AEEHHFEHEDIEERAMEZREEER

owner-occupied property to an investment property carried at fair

value.
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30 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 30 HiEFH R 2 W
2020
—ECFHF
HK$'000
FAET
Net assets disposed of: HEsBEFE :
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) M - WE REREMEE14) 122,954
Right-of-use assets EREEE 42
Prepayments, trade and TR - BWE H0E
other receivables e EoAth R MR TR 56
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFED 1,136
Trade and other payables FERHE 5 R I8 e HAth &~ RRIE (181)
Lease liabilities MEARE (27)
Loan from an intermediate — P EEZER A E]
holding company B
— Shareholder’s loan —IREHRER (395,716)
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FTRIRITEE (1,890)
(273,626)
Outstanding shareholder’s loan disposed of FTH & 2 RIEERREK 395,716
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal R HERERE 2 [E 7 & 19,296
141,386
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 6) HENB AR ZEB(MHEs) (21,386)
Satisfied by: AR
Cash BHe 120,000
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FHEENBARMNRE RBSEEDR
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: NFEELFTWT :
2020
—B_FHF
HK$'000
FBT
Cash consideration ReNRE 120,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of FTH & 23R & RIRITEER (1,136)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ERLENBARNEE R
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries REeFEBMRAFE 118,864
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

In prior year, the Group completed the disposal of the entire
issued share capital of Stepwide Developments Limited
(“Stepwide Developments”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, to an independent third party at a total
consideration of HK$120,000,000. A loss on disposal of
Stepwide Developments of HK$21,386,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2020.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use asset and lease liability of HK$2,627,000
and HK$2,627,000, respectively, in respect of a lease
arrangement for a leased premises.

(i) In prior year, the Group had non-cash termination
of an existing lease resulting in a derecognition of
right-of-use asset and lease liability of HK$47,876,000
and HK$28,926,000, respectively, and corresponding
recognition of a loss on lease termination of
HK$18,950,000, in respect of a lease arrangement for
a leased facility.

(i) In prior year, the Group had non-cash revision of an

existing lease resulting in a derecognition of right-

of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$24,560,000
and HK$25,573,000, respectively, and corresponding
recognition of a gain on lease termination of

HK$1,013,000, in respect of a lease arrangement for

a leased office premises.
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30

31

85 B 2 ) (4)

REF  AEBTHEERRAIZ2EW B
REERERERAR(ERER]) 2T
BETBRAT—BBIFE=T  BREA
120,000,000 7T » & EE %R 2 E18
21,386,000 B TENEE S -_TF+=
A=T—RHIFEZHEEBRRER °

EXFRERS

() FA- A EEHG-HEEFH
B Bl#EBERER
EECEAREERMERRE
2,627,000/ 7T }2,627,0007%
5L o

(a)

(i MEF AEEE-—EREHE
EZBRSRIFEBERES
ERHEBEDIKIEER
47,876,000/ 7T & 28,926,000
BT WARERER B — 18
EXRBHEELTHENBEERIE
E518 18,950,000 78 7T, ©

REF  AEER—-BEREHA
ECIERSETERERAEE
ERHEESBED ALK IEER
24,560,000 7T K& 25,573,000
BT WARERERAE—1BHE
ERFHNHERNHEERIE
251,013,000 78 7T °

(iii)
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fo A B 5 AR i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

B0 Bl & i R M A (A

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METBELENEBERL
activities
2021 —E-—F
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowing liabilities
STEBITEE HEaE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THERT
At 1 January 2021 R=-ZE=-_—F—H—H 2,536,498 8,475
Changes from financing cash flows MERTREZD (251,221) (7,649)
Changes from operating cash flows EELREamnE# 23,766 -
New lease EE - 2,627
Interest expense FEFAX - 330
Interest paid classified as DERBERERELZ
operating cash flows BEATFLE - (330)
Exchange realignment bE 3 AR (194,528) (126)
At 31 December 2021 R=ZB=—%
+=A=+—8H 2,114,515 3,327
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31 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31 #&6H4eREFEME(H)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METHEEMNEBESL(E)
activities (continued)
2020 —E-EF
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowing liabilities
TRRITEER HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT
At 1 January 2020 R=Z=ZF—H—H 2,566,911 80,701
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREELE) (184,907) (18,713)
Changes from operating cash flows EELREamnE# 21,695 =
Interest expense FEFX = 1,447
Interest paid classified as NERBEREREZ
operating cash flows BEAAE = (1,447)
Disposal on early termination of a lease RERIE—EHERRE = (28,926)
Revision of a lease term arising from FSRNIEEI6:z0pEh = e
a change in the non-cancellable scope BYMELCHE
of a lease ESREH) = (25,573)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—REB AT (1,890) (27)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 78 BE 134,689 1,013
At 31 December 2020 R-B-2F
+=A=+—H 2,536,498 8,475
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERSRHALE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HERERERTRIENHEERS
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: mbEzEmT
2021 2020
—E-—F —T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within operating activities B TR 6,408 10,933
Within financing activities BEEBA 7,649 18,713
14,057 29,646
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COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

fo A B 5 AR i

3
AEERBERRE TIINEAEIE -

2021 2020
B —F T _TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4BREME -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE RHE 1,895 12,600
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 B2 5
In addition to the transactions details elsewhere in these Rt EFM B mREMAB o TR HIN
financial statements, the Group had the following material AEBNRFAGHEBHHETIEARS
transactions with related parties during the year: NN
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Short-term benefits (Note) %2 HAtE A (PR EE) (21,363) (32,525)
Note: Bt E

The amounts represented remuneration of directors of the Company during
the year, which was determined by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions
were conducted in the ordinary course of business of the
Group.

EFRSBREARARANEERFRIHH - T
ZEERTEARRETSBEMEE

EERRLEARSERNAEEEERES
TRRETT -
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 IRENE G ZWHTH
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EUBITEERNNHRER R REEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: N
Financial assets MBEE
2021 —E-—f
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
BROVEETA
Hitt2HKE 2
BBEE
Equity  Financial assets
investments at amortised cost Total
RS AT IR 2
RERE MBEE Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHET FERT
Equity investments at BAFEES AR MZE
fair value through other Was 2 RIERE
comprehensive income 17,957 - 17,957
Financial assets included in STAEMFIE - ERES
prepayments, trade and OB R H A IR 2
other receivables MBEE - 165,248 165,248
Restricted cash ZRERE - 66,556 66,556
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEED - 820,917 820,917
17,957 1,052,721 1,070,678
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R B R M R
34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 BN E 32 BT H(4)
(continued)
Financial assets (continued) B EE(E)
2020 —EB-BF
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
BATEEETA
Htv2ERE 2
MBEE
Equity ~ Financial assets
investments at amortised cost Total
TRE SR AN AR 2
MR R & BB ERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FHET
Equity investments at BATEBEARMER
fair value through other Wi 2 BRI &
comprehensive income 30,420 - 30,420
Financial assets included in STAENRIE  ERES
prepayments, trade and TR R EH MR FIR
other receivables BEE - 396,722 396,722
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY = 647,418 647,418
30,420 1,044,140 1,074,560
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

Financial liabilities

34

RN B 5y 2 BB T H (4)

MHEE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

BRBERATTEZHMBAE

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAETT

Financial liabilities included in trade FTAERE S FHIAR
and other payables HtENFIE MBRE 304,917 246,808
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FTRIRITEE 2,114,515 2,536,498
Leases liabilities HEAE 3,327 8,475
2,422,759 2,791,781

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, the current portion of trade and
other receivables excluding non-financial assets, the current
portion of trade and other payables excluding non-financial
liabilities and the current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowing approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the Financial
Controller is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The Financial Controller reports directly to the
directors and the Audit Committee. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the Audit Committee for financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.
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35

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade and other
receivables excluding non-financial assets, the non-current
portion of trade and other payables excluding non-financial
liabilities and the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowing have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-
performance risk for trade and other receivables excluding
non-financial assets, trade and other payables excluding non-
financial liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowing as at 31
December 2021 were assessed to be insignificant. Management
has assessed that the fair value of the non-current portion of
trade and other receivables excluding non-financial assets,
the non-current portion of trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities and the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowing approximate to their carrying amount.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

The following table presents the Group's financial assets and
liabilities that are at fair value at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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REERFEERERATIERERR

JE W B 55 3R Ko ELA FE WO IR 2 FE BN ER AE
DTBERIMBEE) BNESHFER
Hit AR 2 IERNHE D (T B IR I
BRE) ARG BRITERE 2B
ZAFEEDRBAGEUER  FER
BRRGHRZ TAZRAER  MRE
HRRREREAESL - ARER=-F
——F+-A=t—HEMRKRE A
LREMERRB(TEEHRMBEE)
RNEZRAREMENFTATEEIE
MBAB) AR RRTEEZASG TE
HEBREHN A TFEEZDRIESTE
K- BEECHHERKESKEANEM
MR 2 JERVEREE D (N BT B E
E) BNEZRAREMENRELZIE
EIRER D (MBS RE) ARG BIR
TREEZIRNEE D 2 AFEE - 2
EHFmEMES

FikERE 2 A FEEDET S ®RER
& o

TRENAEER _ZZ—FR_FF
F+_A=T—BRATEEFEZHE
BENAE -

Fair value measurement using

BERUTRABE A FEETE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERME EBEATHRE EXTTEE
Z8BE A BB WA RS
(F—4) (=4 (B=4) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET THET
At 31 December 2021 R-B=—F
+t=A=+—H
Financial assets BMBEE
Equity investments at fair value 1ZAFEEFTA
through other Hih 2wz 2
comprehensive income g tER & 17,957 = - 17,957
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35 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 35 WEs THZAFMEMEEAFEAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) G (5)

Fair value measurement using

ERATBAZREZ A FHEENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

REETS BEARER BEATAEER
Z$RE B ABIR LN ¢

(F—%H) (B4 (B=5) BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT T BT THT
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF
+=A=+—H
Financial assets BKEE
Equity investments at fair value & AFEEFTA
through other Hih 2 EKE 2
comprehensive income fetER & 30,420 = = 30,420
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair R_EZ—FR_ZFTF+_A=1T—
value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. H ANEBEWEEAZEAFEETEZH
HBaIE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RER - BBEERMBEERERE—
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers REE—FREEBENFLEETE © TES
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial MBEERMBAEBEBARBHEE=R
liabilities (2020: Nil). (ZB=ZF - |) -

212 Landing International Development Limited 5 5} B B 58 2 47 FR 24



36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central finance department
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Financial Controller
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific
areas such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in HK$ and KRW. The majority
of assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$
and KRW, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The
Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising
from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated in
a currency other than HK$ and KRW, which are
the functional currencies of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group currently
does not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

At 31 December 2021, if KRW had weakened by
5% against HK$ with all other variables held constant,
the Group's other components of equity would have
been lower by approximately HK$408,205,000 (2020:
HK$505,999,000), as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of KRW denominated
assets and liabilities.
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o B 5 A R i

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for bank deposits,
which earn low interest rate. The Group's interest
rate risk arises mainly from borrowing. Borrowing
obtained at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk because of investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated statement of financial
position at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk
arising from investments in equity securities, the
Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the
portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by
the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, for the listed equity
investments included in financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, the
impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve
(non- recycling). If the price of the listed equity
investments increased/decreased by 5% (2020:
5%), with all other variables held constant, the
Group's other components of equity will increased/
decreased by HK$898,000 (2020: HK$1,521,000)
mainly as a result of the fair value change of these
investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets included in
prepayments, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Credit risk is managed
on a group basis, except for credit risk relating to trade
receivables and receivables from gaming customers.

The Group has policies and guidelines in place to assess
the credit worthiness of customers from the Gaming
Business to ensure that credits are made to parties
with an appropriate credit history and a good history
of performance records. As at 31 December 2021, the
gaming receivables representing 0.1% (2020: 1.8%) of the
Group's total financial assets included in prepayments,
trade and other receivables. The Group monitors the
issuance of credit on an ongoing basis to minimise
the exposure to credit risk. The activities of individual
credit account are monitored regularly for management
to decide if the credit facility should be continued,
changed or cancelled. Management regularly evaluates
the allowance for doubtful receivables by reviewing the
collectability of each balance based upon the age of the
balance, the customer’s financial condition, collection
history and any other known information.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, trade and other
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

36 S EURE A P H R R R (A

(b)

EERE (%)
REREERRFEAEEER

TREFERAEEEERRZE
EEZEMEREERR  TENE
HENBEERRFAETRER
ZRAEB N2 BERTESEME
) RR+ZA=+—BF&RM
BEER M2 SBR/VBEEL
AREARE -

R-ZB-_—F+=-HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A FEH
FEFE >HAREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—RER ERER E=MEE [k APz st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET THET
Trade receivables* JEWE 5 FRIE * - - - 23,737 23,737
Gaming receivables* JEWIE R R I8 * - = = 336,484 336,484
Financial assets included in ST ATEFIE -
prepayments, deposits and Re REA K
other receivables HIBZMBEE
— Normal** —IEF** 141,780 - - - 141,780
— Doubtful** — R HR ** - 78,520 - = 78,520
Restricted cash ZREIFE S
— Not yet past due —iH AR 66,556 - - - 66,556
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
— Not yet past due — AR B 820,917 - - - 820,917
1,029,253 78,520 - 360,221 1,467,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

fo A B 5 AR i

36 S R KE A BE H AR R BOR (%)

Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREMK(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEERERRFESHEEER (&)
As at 31 December 2020 R-EBE-_ZF+=-HF=+-—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 {6 A 78 &7
EEEE THEMEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE—FER EREER £ Sk Papz “Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THETT THETT FHET FExT
Trade receivables* e E 5 5k08 * = = = 13,623 13,623
Gaming receivables* JE W HE 2 FR I * - = = 355,232 355,232
Financial assets included in FTATER A -
prepayments, deposits and RE R HAh FEI
other receivables AL I EE
— Normal** —1E & ** 376,120 - - - 376,120
— Doubtful** —RER** - 60,461 - - 60,461
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED
— Not yet past due — A AR 8 ER 647,418 - - - 647,418
1,023,538 60,461 - 368,855 1,452,854
& For trade and gaming receivables to which the Group applies * AR B R A SR E T AR B

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and gaming receivables are disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by the Finance
Department. The Finance Department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group's liquidity requirements to
ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs
while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn
committed borrowing facilities at all times.
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Bl BRERMBEEZERER
RIRIE]

BRAARNSEAAZERKE 5 5HIE R
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— S ELBEBERNGE M B HRKRME
20455 o
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36 A # 8l kg 45 P H A2 K 800K (%)

AND POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

At the reporting date, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$820,917,000 (2020: HK$647,418,000)
(Note 24) and trade and other receivables, net, of
HK$32,468,000 (2020: HK$268,772,000) (Note 20) that are
expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
interest-bearing bank borrowing. 100% of the Group's
debts would mature in less than one year as at 31
December 2021 (2020: 32.7%) based on the carrying
value of borrowings reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due in the foreseeable future, based on
the cash flow projections of the Group and after taking
into consideration that the Group obtained a letter of
intention from the bank for their willingness of the renewal
of the bank borrowing. Further details of which are set out
in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(c)

REBE SRR

RBEBH  ~EEREFHEERER
& £ B A820,917,0008 T(—ZF
= T4 647,418,000 7T ) (M 5
24) LA K FEUR B 5 508 I E At FE UL 3K
TH 558 /532,468,000 L (- &
£ 1 268,772,0005 7T ) (KT 5£20) -
TEHREE RS ESRRAIRE
EIRERA °

AEEBEMERABBRERT BRI
EERBEESHEERBET Y
MOFEE R —F+= A
=+—H  100% A& B E 5 i %
—FRHNE(ZZZFF : 32.7%)
TR ERGE VB RER ARG
BEREE - ZEER5 BELAEE
MESTRERIRKEEERAEEE
BMGRITERZ  FBEERRITHE
B rAEESRERENEEES
BEBLLETRARAKEELN
MBEM - E—THBRAGREY
TERRMITE2.1

AEEMBRERBSHRRES
HIRREZR M RRE BRI ANT

Less than 1to 2 to
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DR1E 1Z82F 2855 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBT FBx FET
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—F
+=A=+—H
Trade and other payables BB SR IB R
Hfth FE T 5RIB 296,468 2,499 5,950 304,917
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,745 1,001 705 3,451
Interest-bearing bank FHRRTT
borrowing BE 2,177,808 = - 2,177,808
2,476,021 3,500 6,655 2,486,176
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36 A # &k 4% BE H A2 K Bk (4)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) WREBELER(E)
Less than 1to 2to
1 year 2 years 5years Total
PRE 1224 2E5F et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET FHET
At 31 December 2020 R-Z2-FF
+=BA=+—~H
Trade and other payables FENB S FIE R
H AR 223,394 10,726 12,686 246,806
Lease liabilities HERE 8,002 808 - 8,810
Interest-bearing bank SHRRTT
borrowing E25 870,696 1,785,611 - 2,656,307
1,102,092 1,797,145 12,686 2,911,923
Capital management EXREHE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are AEEEAER T EARRRERAEE
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern FEREZRRNIHFRAEERLLE - LA
and to maintain optional capital ratios in order to support its XFEEY  BEERREEZAL  BE
business, maximise shareholders’ value, provide benefits for tF =R E TR R = MR EE KA ©
other stakeholders and reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group RRFFFAERERERE - AEENZHE
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, AMBRRKNZREEHE  MERREREE
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to AN BEATHETAR () 3k H B B E AR R & o
reduce debt. No changes were made in the objectives, policies REBE—E-—F+-_A=+—HEK=Z
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 “EFF+_RA=+—HIEFE  EEEAX
December 2021 and 31 December 2020. WER  BERLBRETEZS -
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as bank borrowing less cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash. Total capital is calculated as equity
attributable to owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

36

St 5 ) i 4 B H AR B BOR (%)

EXEE(E)
AEBERABELXERERN R XK
ERFER AR E RN RERF R 2 BT
H o BERFRERRITEERRE RS
BYEXRFBEAE - @EREE LA
BEARGERAE R _—FKk=
Z_EFF+_A=+—HZARBKXM
B

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FRIRITEE

(Note 26) (BaE26) 2,114,515 2,536,498

Less: cash and cash equivalents B HERREEBEY R
and restricted cash (Note 24) ZRRHIIRE (FizE24) (887,473) (647,418)
Net debt B35 1,227,042 1,889,080
Total equity farEs 8,810,335 10,446,617
Capital and net debt BARRERF5E 10,037,377 12,335,697
Gearing ratio BELX 12.2% 15.3%

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio is 12.2% (2020:
15.3%).

220 Landing International Development Limited 5 ) B b 58 2 47 FR 24+

R-EBE-_—F+-_A=+—H B8FLX
B122% (ZE=FF : 153%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE COMPANY

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting date is as follows:

fof o B AR M

7% 2> ) B 5 IR Ot

REEBR - BRARBRMBRREZ
BERT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 A
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTB AR ZI&KE 2,462,964 1,952,918
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K& 1,060 37
Right-of-use asset EREEE = 5,448
Amount due from a subsidiary JEJ%Z EILEINEIERE 7,628,364 8,237,613
Equity investments designated at fair value il ﬁ?ﬁ@ifﬁ@d’)\
through other comprehensive income B 2mEiies s RIERE 16,317 28,820
Total non-current assets IEmBIEERE 10,108,705 10,224,836
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE IR B A B FUR 1,011,443 1,985,954
Prepayments and other receivables ?Eﬁmlﬁﬁﬁmf%m 8,660 9,913
Cash and cash equivalents Be NIBEEEY 201,629 195,897
Total current assets MENE EEE 1,221,732 2,191,764
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables HAb R I8 77,174 78,094
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT PR A RIZIE 276,768 269,572
Lease liabilities HEAR 4,694 5,858
Total current liabilities M aERE 358,636 353,524
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEERE 863,096 1,838,240
NET ASSETS EEFE 10,971,801 12,063,076
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 42,263 35,219
Reserves (Note) () 10,929,538 12,027,857
Total equity RS 10,971,801 12,063,076
Yang Zhihui Wong Hoi Po
mEs E2:5Y4
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
TEFHTEE HITEFE

Annual Report 2021 4£# 221
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37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37 AN EIMEARDE(H)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Mz
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARHEBENT -

Fair value
reserve of
financal
assets at
fair value
through
Capital other
Share  redemption  Contributed Other  comprehensive  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve income losses Total
BOYERE
AR
2EREZ
HHEEL
Rita EARDRHE SABH Rt  AYREERS Efy ! &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TEn - Tix TR TR TEn

At 1 January 2020 W-B-2%-A-A 14,020,947 6,503 3,460,931 193,993 (283,959) 4,855,626) 12,542,789
Loss for the year FEER - - - - = (641,125) (641,125)
Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ ZATFEEAEMZE

at fair value through Wi REREZ

other comprehensive income INEEEL ) - - - - (5,086) - (5,086)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2AFRLEE - - - - (5,086) (641,125) (646,211)
Issue of shares (Note 28) BR(A (i 28) 132,070 = = = = = 132,070
Share issue expenses (Note 28) ERER(M328) (791) - - - = = (791)

—E--f£-8-H 14,152,226 6,503 3,460,931 193,993 (289,045) (5,496,751) 12,027,857
Loss for the year FEER - - - = = (1,217,383) (1,217,383)
Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ ZATFEEAEMLRE
at fair value through gz RERE 2
other comprehensive income ATEELEE - - - - (12,503) - (12,503)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2AFRLEE - - - - (12,503) (1,217,383) (1,229,886)
Issue of shares (Note 28) BlR(A (K 28) 131,718 = = = = = 131,718
Share issue expenses (Note 28) BRER (M) (151) - - - - - (151)
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-£+-A=+-8 14,283,793 6,503 3460931 193993 (301,548) (6714134 10929538

38 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38 #t#it% %

The financial statements were approved and authorised for MBmMERE_—_F=A=1THAKES
issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2022. SHE R
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MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
ARLEHFrA 2 L 8Y) %

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BEWE

Attributable

interest of

Location Use Tenure the Group
wE A& FHHA AEBEELERS
Units at Jeju Shinhwa World, Andeok-myeon, Shops/commerecial Freehold 100%
Seoguipo City, Jeju Special, Self-Governing
Province, South Korea
RSB N Bl B a8 Fa 88 T Andeok-myeon JE, B KA ZERE
S 4 5 T R %% (Bl B2 L
Flat A, 38th & 39th Floors, Tower 1, Residential Medium term lease 100%
Larvotto, No.8, Ap Lei Chau Praya Road,
Hong Kong
EEMPNEEESREL 1 BBRVEAT A= o B4
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE RECERDE

Attributable

interest of
Location Total GFA Usage the Group
NE HREMBE A& REBELER
(‘000 sg.m.)
(FEFK)

Seogwang-ril in Andeog-myeon, Seoguipo City, 27 Residential 100%
Jeju Special, Self-Governing Province,
South Korea
FSRE MR B e AR E T F=

Andeog-myeon Seogwang-ril
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A P R 2L

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the N TAXREEHEZE-_ZT—+F  ZFT—N\F -

five years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, Z=ZT—NF  ZTE-_TFR-_FT-_—F+=A
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial =+—BItAAFEZXE EERAGER
statements, is set out below. T EERE B TR EBIRA A VS HRE -

Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—RHILLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—FtF ZFN\F ZFNF ZFFF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 =~ HK$'000
FAET FAET FHBT FHET FTHET

(Restated)
(&%)
RESULTS ES
Revenue g 840,244 2,099,025 815,533 788,011 1,349,996
Profit/(loss) for the year FEmF, (&i8) 501,222 (701,527) (2,132,855) (2,115,001) (1,055,766)
Attributable to: FE(Y :
Owners of the parent SBRAREA A 505,067  (701,527) (2,132,855) (2,115,001) (1,055,766)
Non-controlling interests R = (3,845) - - - -
501,222  (701,527) (2,132,855) (2,115,001) (1,055,766)
At 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—2—tF —T-N\F T—NF —T_TF ZFZ—F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T T T T F#&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BERE 19,228,926 17,671,019 15,119,840 13,548,542 11,509,972
Total liabilities BER (3,072,178) (3,068,758) (3,235,073) (3,101,925) (2,699,637)
Shareholders’ funds fRERE & 16,156,748 14,602,261 11,884,767 10,446,617 8,810,335
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